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Healthier Tomorrow
“A healthier tomorrow starts with a resilient promise of trust and relentless
performance. At GSK, we nurture this promise by focusing not only on the highest quality
of products but also on all activities we do as an organisation.

We adhere to our commitment towards building a healthier tomorrow by ful�lling our promise
of providing the highest quality healthcare products. As we continue to strive relentlessly towards our 
commitment, we are con�dent that a tomorrow that is healthier than today is not far away. “
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Our goal:
most innovative,
best performing

and trusted

Our strategy, 
values and 

expectations

Performance

Trust

Innovation

Our purpose:
do more,

feel better,
live longer

OUR DNA



GSK at a Glance

OUR PURPOSE 
Improve the quality of human life by enabling people to do more, feel better and live longer. 

OUR GOAL 
To be one of the world’s most innovative, best performing and trusted healthcare companies. 

OUR STRATEGY 
Bring di�erentiated, high-quality and needed healthcare products to as many people as possible, 
with our three global businesses, scienti�c and technical know-how and talented people. 

OUR VALUES AND EXPECTATIONS 
Our values and expectations are at the heart of everything we do and form an
important part of our culture.

OUR VALUES 
Patient Focus, Transparency
Respect for People, Integrity

OUR EXPECTATIONS 
Courage, Accountability,
Development, Teamwork
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Innovation
We invest in scienti�c and technical excellence to develop and 
launch a pipeline of new products that meet the needs of 
patients, payers and consumers. 

Millioni
HIV scientist, 
US

Performance
We aim to achieve industry-leading growth by investing 
e�ectively in our business, developing our people and 
delivering �awlessly.

Ricky
Trade sales manager,
Hong Kong

Trust
We commit to ensuring the quality, safety and reliable supply of 
our products; and to building trust through our approach to 
engagement, pricing, global health and
being a modern employer.

Michael
Production line operator,
UK
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At GSK, we believe that operating in a responsible and 
ethical manner is essential to our business. This belief in 
Values-Based Decision making underlies everything we 
do, and supports the delivery of our business strategy. 
We are committed to earning the trust of our 
stakeholders, both internal and external, by delivering 
on our promises as employees and as a Company. In 
doing so, we foster an environment where people feel 
safe to speak up and identify areas for improvement, as 
well as issues of concern. Trust is the key to our good 
reputation, and crucial to our Company’s success.

Our Values provide the management tone for the 
whole organization. They describe the spirit in which 
we operate and provide a reference point when we 
encounter di�cult situations. The consistent 
demonstration and communication of values by 
leaders at all levels is essential in making our controls 
e�ective. We all have an individual responsibility to live 
the values in everything we do, every day, for GSK.

All GSK employees follow Speak Up culture; to ask 
questions and Speak up. Every employee is guided to 
hold themselves and each other accountable for 
abiding by our Code of Conduct. Furthermore, 
employees are empowered, and required to promptly 
raise concerns of possible misconduct, potential 
con�icts, or known breaches of this Code and Company 
expectations. Suspected violations of country laws and 
regulations must also be reported. This includes the 

potential misconduct of employees, complementary 
workers, consultants, vendors, and partners with whom 
we jointly do business (including corporate entities). 
Our Speak Up culture and procedures encourage 
everyone to raise concerns about potential unethical or 
illegal conduct, and assure con�dentiality and 
protection from retaliation, retribution, or any form of 
harassment to those reporting such concerns.

Living Our Values

Our values re�ect our belief, that it is not just what we achieve that counts, it is also how we achieve 
that matters.

GSK Annual Report 2017 I 05

Be patient focused Act with integrity

Demonstrate respect for people Operate with transparency
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GSK Anti-Bribery and Corruption Standards:

1. GSK has an Anti-Bribery and Corruption (ABAC) policy 
which covers GSK’s general principles and standards 
on anti-bribery and corruption (ABAC) and 
maintenance of business documentation and �nancial 
records. It reinforces our zero tolerance towards all 
forms of corruption and our commitment to 
maintaining accurate records of our business dealings.

2. GSK operates on our corporate values and our four 
ABAC Foundational Principles: legitimacy of intent, no 
undue in�uence or con�ict of interest, transparency 
and proportionality.

3. We prohibit the giving, o�ering, accepting or 
requesting of improper payments. Improper 
payments are anything of value transferred directly to 
an individual, or on someone’s behalf, with the 
purpose of in�uencing or inducing an act to secure an 
improper business advantage, or to improperly obtain 
or retain business. This applies to everyone we deal 
with, regardless of their a�liation with a government 
organization or a private company.

4. It is unlawful even to o�er a bribe, even if the o�er is 
not accepted or no bene�t is gained. It is critical that 
bribery and corruption risks are assessed on an 
ongoing basis within each business area, that 
mitigation plans are appropriately established, and 
that the appropriate systems of internal controls are in 
place.

5.  Payment covers anything of value, so not just cash but 
also gifts, services, job o�ers, loans, travel expenses 
and entertainment. The bottom line is that we must 
not o�er anything to improperly in�uence any person, 

regardless of whether they are in the private or public 
sector, or government o�cials.

6. GSK prohibits all facilitation payments. These are 
payments or gifts o�ered to secure or speed up (rather 
than in�uence) a routine government decision that 
should take place anyway e.g., payments to customs 
o�cials to release imports or expedite o�cial 
procedures.

7. All our �nancial records must accurately re�ect the 
substance of transactions, regardless of their size. No 
transaction can be authorized or funded unless the 
substance of the transaction is accurately recorded 
and disclosed in our books and records.

8.   We have to perform su�cient risk-based due diligence 
prior to the engagement of any third party and 
ensure appropriate contractual clauses and oversight 
controls are put in place as described in ABAC Third 
Party and Business Development frameworks.

9. Our Interactions with Government O�cials are in full 
compliance with laws, regulations and codes of 
conduct applicable to Government O�cials to protect 
GSK’s reputation.

10. GSK has zero tolerance towards bribery and 
corruption.

11. GSK employees shall not make, o�er to make, or 
authorise payment to a third party (e.g., sales agent, 
distributor or intermediary) with knowledge that all or 
part of the payment will be o�ered or given to any 
individual to secure an improper advantage, obtain or 
retain business.

06 I GSK Annual Report 2017

ABAC Program

Bribery and Corruption are illegal no matter where in the world you work.

There is no greater priority for GSK than the ethical conduct of our people. We exist to improve patients’ lives. Everything 
we do must be in the best interests of the patient. No matter where we operate in the world, in our interactions with 
patients, prescribers, payers and governments, we must live our values of respect for people, transparency and integrity.

Nowhere is our commitment to ethical conduct more evident than in the area of corruption prevention and detection. 
At GSK, our attitude towards corruption in all its forms is simple: it is one of zero tolerance. We operate in challenging 
commercial environments and in cultures where corruption can be widespread. However, this can never be an excuse. It 
is vital that we ensure that our people and those who work on our behalf understand their responsibilities and operate 
to the highest ethical standards.

Know
• Do not o�er or         

accept bribes
• Understand our 

policies and
   the corruption risks 

you face

Prevent
• Be vigilant and   

assess risks
• Keep up to date 

with training for 
you and your team

Report
• Properly document 

any risks
• Speak up if you 

identify a risk or any 
wrongdoing
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GSK globally spends over £11 billion every year with 
suppliers, distributors and other organisations 
including more than 38,000 vendors that provide us 
with a wide range of goods and services. The process of 
embedding the GSK Principles into all relevant 
contracts will therefore take time. A dedicated team has 
been established to manage our undertaking in this 
area. Its focus is on ensuring that all existing Third 
Parties have been risk assessed against the GSK 
Principles and remediation steps taken, including, 
where appropriate, amending contracts to re�ect GSK’s 
Anti-Bribery and Corruption (ABAC) and Labour Rights 
Principles.

Following the global guideline the GSK Bangladesh is 
implementing a comprehensive third party oversight 
programme to strengthen our management of risk in 
the supply chain. The aim is to ensure that all third 
parties are risk assessed against the Principles, and 
contracts amended as necessary. With a large supplier 
base, we need to focus our e�ort on working with those 
at highest risk of non-compliance with our standards 
on responsible business.

It will also ensure that, going forward, appropriate new 
Third Party contracts include commitments that meet 
our ABAC and Labour Rights Principles and that a 
risk-based audit programme is in place to oversee Third 
Party compliance with their contractual obligations.

Our Global Manufacturing and Supply team continues 
to manage and regularly assess the performance of the 
suppliers that support our manufacturing, speci�cally 
on quality and ethical, environmental, health and safety 
(EHS) management systems. On completion of all 
audits, we identify areas for improvement, work with 
suppliers to develop improvement plans and check the 
plan is implemented within an agreed time frame. If a 
signi�cant concern is identi�ed, we may suspend or 
terminate our work with an existing supplier, or decide 
not to work with a potential new supplier.

Third Parties are encouraged to: 

•  Enable their sta� to report concerns or illegal 
activities in the workplace through formal 
reporting structures. These concerns should in 
turn be investigated, and if needed, corrective 
action should be taken. 

•   Create an environment where sta� concerns may be 
reported without fear of reprisal or retaliation. GSK 
may take action, in accordance with local laws, 
against any Third Party who threatens, or engages in 
retaliation or harassment of any person who has 
reported, or is considering reporting, a concern in 
good faith. 

GSK’s Support of Open and Non-Retaliatory 
Engagement 

All employees of Third Parties are encouraged to report 
suspected violations of law, rules and regulations 
related to their work with GSK, including fraud, either 
through their own internal reporting channels or 
through GSK’s ‘Speak up’ Integrity Lines. Worldwide 
numbers and information are available online at 
www.gsk.com/integrity.
 
This includes reporting misconduct by GSK sta� 
(including contingency workers) with whom they do 
business. GSK is committed to non-retaliation and will 
maintain, as appropriate, con�dentiality and 
anonymity with respect to all disclosures.
 
GSK Public Policy Positions for Working with Third 
Parties

•   GSK is committed to operating to the highest ethical 
standards to help maximise the long-term 
sustainability of our business and of the 
communities in which we operate. We will only work 
with Third Parties who share our approach. 

•   As a multinational organisation with global outreach, 
often exercising substantial in�uence over those 
with whom we conduct business, GSK recognises 
that we have a role to play in driving best practice in 
key areas such as human rights, environmental 
protection, anti-bribery and corruption. 

•   GSK expects all Third Parties with whom we engage 
to comply with all applicable laws and regulations 
and to adopt, at a minimum, GSK’s Anti-Bribery & 
Corruption and Labour Rights Principles. 

•  In addition to meeting GSK’s Anti-Bribery & 
Corruption and Labour Rights standards, we expect 
Third Parties to comply with our standards on 
quality, patient safety, health and safety and the 
environment. All expectations will be formalised in 
contracts and subject to appropriate levels of audit 
and oversight. 

•   Appropriate action will be taken against those Third 
Parties found in breach of their undertakings, up to 
and including termination of their contract with GSK. 

•   The behavioural expectations we set for Third Parties 
are matched by those we set for our sta�, re�ected in 
our own employee Code of Conduct.
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General Information

Board of Directors
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Mr. Masud Khan                      
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A view of manufacturing site of GSK Bangladesh in Chittagong
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The Company

GlaxoSmithKline plc is a science-led global healthcare 
Company with a special purpose: to help people do 
more, feel better, live longer. We research and develop a 
broad range of innovative medicines, vaccines and 
consumer healthcare products. With headquarters in 
UK, we are a Company of nearly 100,000 individuals 
united by our special purpose and our values and 
expectations. We have two primary areas of business in 
consumer healthcare and pharmaceuticals. 

Our Company wide strategy is to bring quality 
healthcare products to as many people as possible, 
with our scienti�c and technical know-how and 
talented people. To deliver the strategy everyone at 
GSK are focused on three priorities: Innovation, 
Performance, Trust. Our goal is to be one of the world’s 
most innovative, best performing and trusted 
healthcare companies. In 2017 we set out three 
long-term priorities which we believe will deliver 
improved performance and better returns over the 
long term.

The heritage of GSK Bangladesh goes back to almost 7 
decades and following a number of mergers and 
acquisitions, GSK Bangladesh Limited, a subsidiary of 
GSK plc, started its journey in 2002. GSK Bangladesh’s 
activities include manufacturing and marketing of 
pharmaceutical products, vaccines, consumer 
healthcare products, nutrition and oral healthcare 
products. Our activities in all three business areas are 
strictly guided by “GSK values” which include showing 
respect for people, being patient/customer focused, 
commitment to transparency and demonstration of 
highest integrity in our conduct.
 
The Consumer Healthcare unit leads the Health Food 
Drink (HFD) category in Bangladesh and maintains a 
dominant presence in the market. Horlicks continues to 
be one of the top Brands in Bangladesh across all 
Categories because of the brand’s consistent delivery of 
its ‘Promise of Nutrition’ to the consumers. GSK 
Bangladesh also has �agship brands in the categories 
of Oral Health Care and Vitamins & Minerals which 
include Sensodyne and Glaxose amongst others. 

Our Pharmaceuticals business include globally 
renowned inhaled respiratory medicines like Seretide 
and allergic rhinitis medication brands like Avamys. 
GSK Vaccines in Bangladesh provide a whole range of 
disease prevention for both infants and adults. Our 
leadership position in dermatology is strengthened by 

the existing growth for �agship brands like 
Betnovate-N (Dermatology) and cosmeceuticals 
brands like Acne-Aid & Physiogel (consumer 
dermatology portfolio from Stiefels). 

GSK plc has made a global commitment to re-invest 
20% of the pro�ts we make in developing countries to 
address issues around providing healthcare services to 
the underserved communities. In line with the above, in 
Bangladesh, more than 1 million GBP per year has been 
invested through GSK plc since 2010 in a number of 
projects in partnerships with CARE, icddr,b and 
Friendship.

Our perennial commitment is to uphold the highest 
ethical standards while carrying out our business 
activities, and ensuring that consumer and patient 
safety is always a priority in our decision making. 

Performance

Trust

Innovation
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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the Board, I am delighted to 
welcome you all to the 45th Annual General 
Meeting of GlaxoSmithKline (GSK) 
Bangladesh Ltd. and present the Annual 
Report of the Company for the year 2017. 

I am pleased to report that after a year of 
challenging business results, in 2017 the 
Company has delivered positive growth, 
driven by the focused strategies around key 
product portfolios. 

In July 2017, GSK Group presented its new 
strategy, setting out long term priorities 
under the three bold themes- 

•  Innovation
•  Performance 
•   Trust

In line with this direction, our priority is to 
drive long term value for investors through 
renewed focus on innovation and improving 
performance of GSK Bangladesh.

Business Outlook and Financial 
Performance
In 2017, the Consumer Healthcare business 
retained its leadership and increased its 
market share in the Health Food Drinks 
category, which has experienced �at growth 
over the year. Our �agship brand Horlicks has 
gained market share in a heavily competitive 
environment. Consistent and integrated 
action plans across Legal, Regulatory and 
Commercial arenas over last two years have 
led to a 10.3% growth of this business. 

The Pharmaceuticals business continued to 
face an increasingly challenging external 
environment from regulatory restrictions 
and supply challenges of both �nished 
goods and global ingredients. This has 
resulted in a low single digit growth for the 
Pharmaceuticals business.
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To ensure the Company maintains its commitment to 
deliver maximum shareholder return, the Board 
recommends a �nal cash dividend of Tk 55 per share for 
2017. 

Risk Management & Governance
The Board aims to assure the integrity of GSK 
Bangladesh business operations through rigorous 
processes and systems. In 2017, the Company went 
through a major Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) 
upgrade which brought in signi�cant changes to our 
business processes, systems and reporting. Key 
processes changes were re�ected through 
amendments to our internal Standard Operating 
Processes (SOPs). 

Risk management remained a key part of Board and 
management discussions. Earlier in the year, the 
Pharmaceutical Commercial operations was subject to 
a GSK Global Audit. The Audit appreciated a high level 
of proactive measures and focus on the overall 
compliance environment.  No major �ndings were 
observed and recommendations were provided for 
improving the control framework.

At our Global Manufacturing & Supply (GMS) Site in 
Chittagong, investments have continued in compliance 
to GSK Global quality standards. These investments 
have helped the Site to come out of the “Remediation 
Plan”. For the �rst time, three full shifts have been in 
operation for the topical line to increase production 
capacity. The site has further invested in several 
measures to enhance safety.

It gives me immense pleasure to share that this year 
your Company’s Annual Report 2016 has been 
recognised by the prestigious Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) under the Best 
Presented Annual Reports 2016 in the manufacturing 
sector.

People Development & Culture
GSK continues to be a preferred employer for aspiring 
professionals in the country. As part of our strategic 
priorities, we drive individual empowerment of our 
employees and promote diversity. The Company 
continued its �agship ‘Future Leaders Programme’ (FLP) 
across all Business Units (BUs). This year we hired four 
new FLP trainees for Consumer Healthcare, 
Pharmaceuticals and Global Manufacturing and Supply 
(GMS) BUs. In 2017, the Company achieved signi�cant 
improvement in employee engagement scores 
re�ecting continued e�orts to improve the work 
environment and enabling employee development.

Board Changes and Composition
This year there have been a number of changes to the 
Board. During the course of the year, Mr. Md 
Iftikhar-uz-zaman, retired from the position of 
Managing Director of Investment Corporation of 
Bangladesh (ICB). The Board deeply appreciates the 
valuable services of Mr. Zaman during his tenure of 
association with the Company and wishes him the best 
on his next assignment. In his place, Mr. Kazi Sanaul 
Hoq, has been appointed as Managing Director, ICB, 
with e�ect from 22 October 2017. 

Furthermore, Mr. Gopalakrishnan Venkatramani, 
General Manager, Consumer Healthcare also retired 
from the Company. In his place Mr. Prashant Pandey 
assumed this role. The Board also notes that the 
Company’s Independent Director, Mr Mesbah Ul 
Hoque, tendered his resignation from the Board in 
September 2017. This role was �lled by Mr. Mohsin 
Uddin Ahmed after due noti�cation to the Securities 
Exchange Commission. The new members will bring in 
new capabilities and perspectives to the Board. All 
pro�les are included in the section on Directors’ pro�le.

Commitment to our Values
We are committed to upholding the highest ethical 
standards while carrying out our business activities, 
and ensuring that consumer and patient safety is 
always a priority in our decision making. Every 
employee of the Company embeds the GSK values of 
Integrity, Respect for People, Patient/Consumer Focus 
and Transparency into their everyday work life. 

I conclude by expressing my thanks to all employees of 
GSK Bangladesh for the hard work they have put in 
during the last year. On behalf of the Board, I convey my 
sincere appreciation to our valued Business Partners, 
the Healthcare Professionals and Institutes, Suppliers 
and Government Authorities for their trust and 
continued support to the Company. 

David Pritchard
Chairman

6 March, 2018
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Mø¨v‡·vw¯§_K¬vBb (wRGm‡K) evsjv‡`k wjwg‡UW-Gi 
45Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq †ev‡W©i c¶ †_‡K Avwg 
Avcbv‡`i mKj‡K Rvbvw”Q AvšÍwiK ï‡f”Qv Ges †mB 
mv‡_ †Kv¤úvwbi 2017 mv‡ji evwl©K cªwZ‡e`b 
Dc¯’vcb KiwQ|

Avcbv‡`i Avb‡›`i mv‡_ Rvbvw”Q †h, MZ GK eQ‡ii 
P¨v‡jwÄs e¨emvwqK Kvh©-m¤úv`‡bi ci, 2017 mv‡j 
†Kv¤úvwb BwZevPK cÖe„w× AR©b K‡i‡Q, hv m¤¢e n‡q‡Q 
g~j †cÖvWv± †cvU©‡dvwjI¸‡jv wN‡i mywbw`©ó †KŠkj 
cÖYqb I ev¯Íevq‡bi d‡j|

2017 mv‡j RyjvB gv‡m wRGm‡K MÖæc `xN©‡gqv`x 
AMÖvwaKvi¸‡jv wba©viYc~e©K wZbwU cÖavb wk‡ivbv‡gi 
Aax‡b bZyb †KŠkj Dc¯’vcb K‡i‡Q-
• D™¢veb
• Kvh©-m¤úv`b
• Av¯’v 

wewb‡qvMKvix‡`i `xN©‡gqv`x my‡hvM-myweav e„w× Ki‡Z 
D™¢ve‡b bZzb K‡i GKvMÖZv I Kvh©-m¤úv`‡b mdjZv-B 
Avgv‡`i cÖavb D‡Ïk¨| 

e¨emvi MwZaviv Ges Avw_©K djvdj
2017 mv‡j Avgv‡`i KbRy¨gvi  †nj_‡Kqvi e¨emv 
†bZ…‡Z¡i kxl©¯’vb a‡i †i‡L‡Q Ges †nj_ dzW wWªsK 
K¨v‡UMwi‡Z Zvi gv‡K©U †kqvi evwo‡q‡Q hvi cÖe„w× 
MZeQ‡ii mgvb| d¬¨vMwkc eª¨vÛ niwjK&m AZ¨šÍ 
cÖwZ‡hvwMZvg‚jK cwi‡e‡kI gv‡K©U †kqvi AR©b Ki‡Z 
m¶g n‡q‡Q| MZ `yB eQi a‡i AvBwb, wbqš¿K I 
evwYwR¨K LvZ¸‡jvi g‡a¨ mymsnZ I mgwš^Z Kg© 
cwiPvjbvi Kvi‡Y GB e¨emvwUi 10.3% cÖe„w× n‡q‡Q| 

Avgv‡`i dvg©vwmDwUK¨vjm e¨emv GLbI bvbvb 
wbqgZvwš¿K evavi gy‡L µg AebwZkxj GK cÖwZK~j 
cwi‡e‡ki g‡a¨ w`‡q hv‡”Q| Gi cvkvcvwk i‡q‡Q 
wdwbk&W †cÖvWv± I KvuPvgvj mieiv‡n mxgve×Zv|  Gi 
d‡j dvg©vwmDwUK¨vjm e¨emvq ïaygvÎ GKK A‡¼i 
cÖe„w× N‡U‡Q|
†kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i m‡e©v”P wiUvb© cÖ`v‡b †Kv¤úvwbi †h 
cÖwZkÖæwZ i‡q‡Q, Zv ev¯Íevqb Kivi Rb¨ †evW© 2017 
mv‡j cÖwZ †kqv‡i 55 UvKv P‚ovšÍ bM` jf¨vsk cÖ¯Íve 
K‡i‡Q|

†Pqvig¨vb-Gi wee„wZ
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SzuwK e¨e¯’vcbv I wbqš¿Y
†evW©-Gi j¶¨ n‡”Q K‡Vvi cÖwµqv Ges c×wZi gva¨‡g wRGm‡K 
evsjv‡`k-Gi e¨emvwqK Kvh©µ‡gi b¨vqcivqYZv wbwðZ Kiv| GB 
eQi, †Kv¤úvwbi BAviwc wm‡÷‡g GKwU eo ai‡Yi Avc‡MÖ‡Wkb 
Kiv n‡q‡Q hvi gva¨‡g Avgv‡`i e¨emvi c×wZ, cÖwµqv Ges 
wi‡cvwU©s-G D‡jøL‡hvM¨ cwieZ©b G‡m‡Q| Avgv‡`i Af¨šÍixY 
÷¨vÛvW© Acv‡iwUs cÖ‡mm (GmIwc)¸‡jvi ms‡kva‡bi gva¨‡g g~j 
cÖwµqvi cwieZ©b¸‡jv cÖwZdwjZ n‡q‡Q|

GB eQ‡i †evW© Ges e¨e¯’vcbv Av‡jvPbvq ¸iæZ¡c‚Y© welq wQj SzuwK 
e¨e¯’vcbv| eQ‡ii ïiæi w`‡K, dvg©vwmDwUKvj evwYwR¨K 
Kvh©µg¸‡jv wRGm‡K †Møvevj AwWU-Gi ch©‡eÿYvaxb wQ‡jv| 
mvgwMÖK wbqwš¿Z cwi‡e‡ki Ici GKwbôZv I g‡bvwb‡e‡ki Rb¨ 
AwWU wefvM †Kv¤úvwbi cÖksmv K‡i‡Q| AwW‡U †Zgb †Kv‡bv eo 
iK‡gi ch©‡eÿY cvIqv hvq wb Ges wbqš¿Y KvVv‡gvi DbœwZi Rb¨ 
civgk© †`Iqv n‡qwQ‡jv|

PÆMÖv‡g Avgv‡`i †Møvevj g¨vbyd¨vKPvwis A¨vÛ mvcøvB (wRGgGm) 
mvBU-G, wRGm‡K-Gi wek¦e¨vcx ¸YMZ gvb`Ð eRvq ivL‡Z 
wewb‡qvM Ae¨vnZ Av‡Q| GB wewb‡qvM¸‡jv mvBUwU‡K Ò†iwgwW‡qkb 
cø¨vbÓ †_‡K †ei n‡Z mvnvh¨ K‡i‡Q| cÖ_gev‡ii g‡Zv, 3wU m¤úΞY© 
wkd&U UwcK¨vj jvBb-Gi Drcv`b ¶gZv e„w×i Rb¨ KvR Ki‡Q| 
mvBUwU‡Z wbivc` cwi‡ek ˆZwii Rb¨ †ek K‡qKwU D‡`¨v‡M 
wewb‡qvM Kiv n‡q‡Q| 

Avcbv‡`i‡K GUv Rvbv‡Z †c‡i Avwg AZ¨šÍ Avbw›`Z †h, GB eQi 
Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤úvwbi evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`b-2016, Bbw÷wUDU Ae 
PvU©vW© A¨vKvDbU¨v›Um Ae evsjv‡`k (AvBwmGwe) KZ©…K Drcv`b 
Lv‡Z †kÖô gv‡bi evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`b wn‡m‡e ¯^xK…wZ †c‡q‡Q|

gvbe Dbœqb I ms¯‹…wZ
wRGm‡K †`‡ki D”PvKv•Lx †ckv`vi‡`i Rb¨ GLbI GKwU cQ›`mB 
wb‡qvMKZ©v| †KŠkjMZ AMÖvwaKv‡ii Ask wnmv‡e, Avgiv Kg©x‡`i 
e¨w³MZ ¶gZvqb wbwðZ Kwi Ges ˆewP‡Î¨i gva¨‡g `„p n‡Z 
AbycÖvwYZ Kwi| †Kv¤úvwbi me e¨emv BDwbU (weBD) Rz‡o d¬¨vMwkc 
ÒwdDPvi wjWvim †cÖvMÖvgÓ (GdGjwc) Ae¨vnZ wQ‡jv| GB eQi 
Avgiv KbRy¨gvi †nj_‡Kqvi, dvg©vwmDwUK¨vj Ges †Møvevj 
g¨vbzd¨vKPvwis A¨vÛ mvcøvB (wRGgGm) weBD-¸‡jvi Rb¨ PviRb 
bZzb GdGjwc †UªBwb wb‡qvM K‡iwQ| 2017 mv‡j †Kv¤úvwbi Kg© 
cwi‡ek DbœZ Ges Kgx© Dbœqb mwµq Kivi Ae¨vnZ cÖ‡Póv, 
†Kv¤úvwbi cÖwZwU weBD Ry‡o Kgx©‡`i Gb‡MBR‡g›U †¯‹v‡i 
Zvrch©c~Y© DbœwZi ga¨ w`‡q cÖwZdwjZ n‡q‡Q|

†evW© cwieZ©b Ges MVb
GB eQi †ev‡W© †ek K‡qKwU cwieZ©b n‡q‡Q| eQ‡ii PjwZ mg‡q, 
Rbve †gv. BdwZLvi-DR-Rvgvb, Bb‡f÷‡g›U K‡cv©‡ikb Ae 
evsjv‡`k-Gi e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK c` †_‡K Aemi MÖnY K‡i‡Qb| 
†evW© Rbve Rvgv‡bi †Kv¤úvwb‡Z _vKv mg‡q Zvi g~j¨evb Ae`v‡bi 
AMva cÖksmv Ges Zvi cieZ©x D‡`¨v‡M mg„w× Kvgbv K‡i‡Qb| Zvi 
¯’v‡b Rbve KvRx mvbvDj nK‡K 22 A‡±vei, 2017 †_‡K 

AvBwmwe-Gi e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK wn‡m‡e wbhy³ Kiv n‡q‡Q| GQvov 
†Kv¤úvwb †_‡K Aemi wb‡q‡Qb KbRy¨gvi †nj_‡Kqvi-Gi †Rbv‡ij 
g¨v‡bRvi Rbve †MvcvjK…òvb †fbK¨vUigvwb| Zvi ¯’v‡b Rbve cÖkvšÍ 
cv‡Ð GB c‡` `vwqZ¡ MÖnY K‡i‡Qb| †evW© AviI D‡jøL K‡i‡Q †h, 
†Kv¤úvwbi ¯^Zš¿ cwiPvjK Rbve †gRevn Dj nK, 2017 mv‡ji 
†m‡Þ¤^i gv‡m †evW© †_‡K c`Z¨v‡Mi cÖ¯Íve w`‡qwQ‡jb| wmwKDwiwUR 
G·‡PÄ Kwgkb-Gi Kv‡Q h_vh_ weÁwßi ci GB c`wU Rbve 
gnmxb DÏxb Avn‡g` c~iY K‡i‡Qb| bZzb m`m¨iv †ev‡W© bZzb 
`¶Zv Ges ̀ …wófw½ wb‡q Avm‡eb| mg¯Í †cÖvdvBj¸‡jv cwiPvjK-Gi 
†cÖvdvBj wefv‡M AšÍf©z³ Kiv Av‡Q|

g~j¨‡ev‡ai cÖwZ Avgv‡`i A½xKvi
m‡e©v”P bxwZMZ gvb`Ð eRvq †i‡L Avgv‡`i e¨emvwqK Kvh©µg¸‡jv 
m¤úbœ Kivi Rb¨ Avgiv cÖwZkÖæwZe× Ges GKB mv‡_ MÖvnK I †ivMxi 
wbivcËv Avgv‡`i wm×všÍ MÖn‡Yi †¶‡Î me©`v AMÖvwaKvi †c‡q _v‡K| 
†Kv¤úvwbi cÖ‡Z¨K Kg©x Zv‡`i ˆ`bw›`b Kg©-Rxe‡bi g‡a¨ wRGm‡K 
g‚j¨‡eva- mZZv, gvbz‡li cÖwZ m¤§vb, †ivMxi/†fv³vi cÖwZ 
g‡bvbx‡ek Ges ¯^”QZv cÖwZcvjb K‡i|

me‡k‡l weMZ eQ‡i K‡Vvi cwikÖg Kivi Rb¨ wRGm‡K 
evsjv‡`k-Gi mKj Kgx©‡`i Avwg AvšÍwiK ab¨ev` Rvbvw”Q| †ev‡W©i 
c¶ †_‡K Avgv‡`i g~j¨evb e¨emvwqK cvU©bvi‡`i, ¯^v¯’¨‡mev 
cÖ`vbKvix e¨w³ I cÖwZôvb, mieivnKvix Ges miKvwi KZ©…cÿ‡K 
†Kv¤úvwbi cÖwZ Zv‡`i Av¯’v Ges avivevwnK mn‡hvwMZvi Rb¨ 
AvšÍwiK K…ZÁZv Rvbvw”Q|
 

†WwfW wcªPvW©
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Pharmaceuticals

Annual Conference 2017
The Annual Conference for 2017 with the theme, 
“Hungry for Growth” was held with all the 
Pharmaceutical’s employees in February at a local hotel 
in Dhaka. The conference was a one of a kind event as it 
broke the traditional format and had multiple sessions 
which were designed to disseminate information in a 
more interactive way. The two-day itinerary involved 
interaction between Leadership team and Employees 
via Talk show, Awards ceremony and Case solving 
workshops. Through all activities, the 2017 direction 
was set and it was emphasized that we all have to be 
Hungry for Growth through Accountability, 
Compliance, Courage and Operational Excellence. 

Health Care Organization (HCO)/ Medical Society 
Engagements
Partnering with HCOs and professional bodies relevant 
to GSK therapy areas through active participation in 

scienti�c events like medical congresses is one of the 
mainstays of GSK’s knowledge-based promotional 
strategies.

In 2017, GSK continued to reinforce such engagement. 
The major events/activities include –

• OGSB Congress: At 26th International Scienti�c 
Conference & 44th AGM of Obstetrical and 
Gynaecological Society of Bangladesh (OGSB), a 
satellite symposia on “How e�ective is HPV vaccine in 
preventing cervical cancer” was held on 9 December. 
Dr. Sanjay Gandhi, Vice President & Cluster Medical 
Lead, GSK Vaccines, South Asia was present as GSK 
speaker in the symposia.
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• BPA Congress: At the 20th National Conference of 
Bangladesh Paediatric Association (BPA), a satellite 
symposia on “Overview of Varicella disease and 
vaccination” was held on 17 November. Dr. Giacomo 
Casabona, Medical Director, Global Medical A�airs, 
GSK Vaccines was present as GSK speaker in the 
symposia. In both events, commercial booths were 
also arranged in the conference where updated 
information was shared with the HCPs. 

• BLF Congress: Bangladesh Lung Foundation 
Congress is considered as one of the important 
platform for respiratory HCPs for gathering more 
information about products which will facilitate 
patients’ lives. Seretide Stall at the conference 
organized by BLF was thus an important highlight of 
the year 2017. This conference was attended by top 
notch and renowned chest physicians from all over 
the country, thus this commercial booth was an 
outstanding way of engaging with the HCPs. The 
main highlight was demo device use illustration 
which had been a common request from the HCPs.

  
• 5th Child Pulmocon 2017 was held on 2 December 

2017 and by Bangladesh Pediatric Pulmonology 

Forum. GSK sponsored a scienti�c symposium with 
focus on role of ICS LABA combination in the 
management of pediatric asthma. More than a 
thousand registered pediatricians attended the 
program. 

Webinars
Facilitating and arranging Global GSK live webinars for 
HCPs for interaction with global experts in relevant 
therapy areas is an unique vehicle for knowledge 
transfer. Although there were physical challenges and 
limitations of time and space, GSK in pursuit of its 
commitment of innovatively delivering the latest 
scienti�c knowledge to HCPs successfully arranged a 
number of webinars in 2017. Few of the  major Global 
Webinars were Asthma Webinar, Cervical Cancer 
Awareness Webinar and Derma Webinar (Smart use of 
Steroid). 

• The Asthma Webinar on “Making It Work for Patients 
and Doctors” was arranged at seven venues in Dhaka. 
This webinar was highly appreciated as a platform to 
help the HCPs in their day to day practice on 
counselling patients. 
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• On 27 July 2017, GSK Bangladesh Ltd. telecasted a 
global webinar in four di�erent venues across 
Bangladesh on the topic “AS04 adjuvanted HPV 
16/18 vaccine: 10 year Journey: From Clinical Trials to 
Real-world Evidence.” Three Speakers- Dr. Laurence 
De Moerlooze, Global Medical A�airs Leader - GSK 
vaccines, Belgium; Dr. Martin Ryser, Senior Manager 
Global Medical A�airs - GSK vaccines, Belgium and 
Dr. Piyali Mukherjee, Medical Manager - GSK vaccines 
in Asia Paci�c region, spoke on this topic. The 
webinar was mainly focused on real-world evidence 
of HPV vaccine. The session was very engaging and 
informative from start to �nish. 

• Moreover, GSK Dermatology team organized a local 
webinar on 26 October, 2017 to celebrate upcoming 
“World Psoriasis Day”. The title of the program was 
“Topical steroids in Psoriasis & SMART use of topical 
steroids” which took place in 8 venues 
simultaneously. Two GSK Area level speakers were 
engaged: Dr. Santoshni Govindasamy, Area Medical 
Lead ADC & Dr. Bernadette Arcilla, Area Medical 
Expert, Dermatology. There were 2 live presentations 
from South Africa & Philippines, respectively. 
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Consumer Facing Activities
One of the most important activities in 2017 were the 
commercial stalls showcasing Stiefel Products. On a 
pilot basis, the three consumer brands- Spectraban, 
Physiogel, and Acne Aid were showcased at the Stiefel 
awareness stalls that were organized at fairs and 
educational institutions. Brand promoters used 
pre-event brie�ng material as well as lea�ets and 
product packs to further guide and inform the visitors, 
and used moisture meters to test their skin dryness 
level. Spot purchase services facilitated some product 
sales as well.

Capability Building
With an objective to supporting our customer facing 
sta� to meet the challenge of conveying the right 
information of right product for right patient to HCPs, 
STAR program was launched in 2017. This aimed to 
enhance the skill and expertise of sales force in 
delivering patient focused, scienti�c & impactful 
interaction in group settings with HCPs. This has been 
designed as a capability building initiative led by 
Training & Capability medics in partnership with 
Commercial Excellence, Marketing, HR and Sales team. 
The STAR program was implemented phase wise. The 
attendees were evaluated by an expert panel on their 
ability to execute the learning and based on the 
assessment nine were awarded certi�cates as 
recognition as a ‘STAR’. Currently more such plans for 
other sales teams are in the pipeline. 

Medical

Breathe Well Workshop
GSK continued its focus on providing scienti�c 
knowledge to HCPs and tried to reach broader audience 
for patient bene�t. One of the most appreciated and 
di�erentiated activities in 2017 were the number of 
workshops titled “Breathe Well Workshop”. The objective 
was to sensitize relevant HCPs about the practice of 
spirometry as aligned with standard guidelines to bring 
improvement in Asthma & COPD patient management. 
The target audience of the workshop were the 
practicing and aspiring clinicians who treat patients 
with Respiratory disorders on a regular basis. Each 
workshop had two sessions: in the 1st session a 
Respiratory Key Opinion Leader (KOL) presented about 
the basic ideas and guidelines of performing spirometry 
on a Zero value agreement followed by an extensive 
hands-on training on Spirometry.

Workshop on Code of Practice
Code of Practice sessions were held  in Q2 and Q3 of 
2017 for respective stakeholders in corporate o�ce. The 
objective was to embed the tenets of GSK Code into our 
everyday practice. The sessions were designed to focus 
on real life challenges in our day to day work & how to 
resolve them as per the Code. Both sessions were very 
exciting with vibrant discussions among the attendees 
which led to identi�cation and clari�cation of a number 
of issues.
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Number #1 Health Food Drink Brand Award
Horlicks won the awards of “Second Most Loved Brand 
in Bangladesh” amongst all brands and “No.1 HFD 
Brand” award in the category at the 9th Best Brand 
Awards 2017. For two years in a row, the Brand has won 
the second place as the “Most Loved Brand”- and for the 
last 5 years, Horlicks has been consistently in top 5 
brands, making it an iconic brand powered by 
Consumer love. “Best Brand Awards” is organized by 
Bangladesh Brand Forum in association with Kantar 
Millward Brown, who conducts the study for Best Brands 
in Bangladesh.

OTC Regulation Conference 2017
GSK Bangladesh successfully organized and held a scienti�c conference on developing an OTC regulation titled 
“Global best practices on OTC drug regulations: A way forward for Bangladesh” at the conference hall of the 
Directorate General of Drug Administration (DGDA) Bangladesh on 15 October,  2017.

The objective of this event was to share the global perspective of OTC drugs regulations among stakeholders 
including: the Drug Authority, KOL, Academia, HCP, Chemist Association, Pharmacist’s Association and Industry 
Association aiming to draw some recommendations for upcoming OTC regulations.

First ever Bangladesh Food Safety Conference 2017
The �rst ever “Bangladesh Food Safety Conference 2017” was held on 23 and 24 August in Dhaka with the active 
participation, strong involvement and support of GSK Bangladesh Limited. 

Seven scienti�c session including one inaugural and closing session has been organized with the energetic 
participation of Ministers, Regulators, Foreign and Local Speakers, Industry Experts, Leaders and Participants. More 
than 300 participants actively participated across the two days. Bangladesh Food Safety Authority (BFSA), 
Bangladesh Standard and Testing Institute (BSTI), Foreign Investor’s Chamber of Commerce & Industry (FICCI), and 
Metropolitan Chamber of Commerce & Industry (MCCI) were the organisers. GSK supported the event as Diamond 
sponsor. From GSK, the Head of Regulatory A�airs Mr. Nahar Islam was involved as joint secretary of “Central 
Organizing Committee”. 

All members of GSK Marketing team and Quality team had participated in the sessions along with Ian Urquhart, 
Veena Sharma and Pooja Ratkali of the Regulatory A�airs team. Along with other policy makers, the Food Minister 
and Industry Minister participated in the inaugural session as Special Guest and Chief guest respectively. 

Ian Urqurhat, Category Regulatory A�airs Lead - Nutrition & GI, CH VP Regulatory had delivered his speech as a 
panelist in the event. During closing session, Food Minister and Commerce Minister joined as Special Guest and Chief 
Guest respectively.

Consumer HealthCare
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On 9 August 2017, First SFA went Live in Bangladesh market through Veeva CRM platform. Through this function, it 
is now much easier to reach HealthCare Professionals, make calls and e-mail.

National Quiz Contest
Strong scienti�c knowledge is the backbone of Expert Marketing Team. On 21 December 2017, the Expert 
Marketing team arranged the 1st ever national quiz competition. The purpose of this initiative was to reinforce 
nutritional, oral healthcare and product knowledge which are vital in day to day Expert Marketing Operation. 
Apart from this, the competition also contributed in strengthening the communication and interpersonal skills 
amongst the medical �eld force which would ultimately boost their con�dence level.
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Women Empowerment
Empowering women is one of the vital program of GSK globally. Under the umbrella of this program, Raju 
Krishnaswamy, Regional Supply Chain Head, South Asia initiated discussions with GMS, Women employees at 
Chittagong in October, 2017. All female management employees participated in the meeting. Women employees 
of GMS Chittagong in the meeting discussed about obstacles for female empowerment, progress of the 
development plan on women leadership at GMS site. Mr. Raju Krishnaswamy motivated them with his valuable 
words and gave feedback on the development plan. 

MAL PAL Inauguration Ceremony on 6 December, 2017
MAL (Material Air Lock) - PAL (Personal Air Lock), an upgradation of Facility at Tablet Manufacturing, was 
inaugurated on 6 December 2017 by Raju Krishnaswamy, regional Supply Chain Head, South Asia and Site Director 
GMS, Chittagong. The objective of MAL and PAL is the minimization of cross contamination in Granulation area of 
Tablet Manufacturing section. This upgradation will ensure highest level of compliance for Potent product 
manufacturing in Tablet Manufacturing area at GMS, Chittagong Site. 

Career Fair At AUW 
The HR Team from GSK Bangladesh was invited to participate in the Asian University of Women (AUW) Career Fair 
on 6 May 2017. At the fair, career opportunities in GSK Bangladesh and GSK Global was discussed. The discussion 
also focused on Diversity & Inclusion and Women Leadership Initiatives by GSK. 

Finance

CERPS Launch
After seventeen months long journey, the road to implementation of Commercial Enterprise Resource Planning 
System (CERPS) reached its destination through the GO LIVE on 5 June, 2017. During the project tenure, the 
project team worked in di�erent streams of SAP to smoothly GO LIVE and �nally embed the ERP system in GSK 
Bangladesh. The objective of CERPS is to create a common core of standard processes, systems and data. This is 
GSK’s top 10 strategic projects to enable and drive simpli�cation of the operating model through one 
standardised �nancial and commercial process. The project in Bangladesh was led by the Finance team.

Family Day
For further enhancing the GSK Family bonding, the much awaited “Family Day” and Recreation Club celebration 
was held with all  GMS Management employees and their families with a lot of festivity. Internal talents 
participation made the day more enjoyable.

Human Resource

HR Team Building 
HR & Admin team from Corporate O�ce and GMS Site went for a 2-day team building workshop on May 17-18, 
2017.  Erum visited the workshop to share her expectations from the team on 18 May. The workshop focused 
around team building activities, sharing of new regional/global cross functional information (recruitment, 
rewards, talent & performance management, etc.
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Finance Line of Sight 2017
The theme for the Annual Finance Conference for 2017 was "Acceleration through Transparency”. After a period of 
signi�cant challenge due to the transformation of entire ERP system of the Company, this was an opportunity to 
re-energise the team spirit and re-invigorate the members. The event was marked with "Lets Talk" sessions where 
the Company's direction and expectation were discussed. Director, HR graced the event with his deliberation on 
the Future of Finance. The conference served as a platform to align di�erent functions of Finance to facilitate better 
teamwork and synergy, improved ways of working resulting in better �nancial service to the business that will 
ultimately enable the organisation to attain its objectives in line with overall GSK strategy. Individual Finance team 
members were recognized for contributing to a better GSK corporate culture.

E-VAT-2017 Go live on 29 November, 2017
VAT software launching program was held on 29 November 2017 at GMS, Chittagong. This software is an 
accounting software that empowers the business and people to be more productive in Manufacturing, Trading, 
Distribution and other services organizations. The software is an integrated solution enabling business to bene�t 
from a deeper visibility into their front and back o�ce operations. Finance Director, GMS Chittagong Site Director 
and IT manager were present among other project team members in the launching event. 

The Go Live was marked with a launch event at the Corporate O�ce in Dhaka, where in presence of all Bangladesh 
employees, two (2) Golden Transactions were completed by Erum Shakir Rahim, Managing Director, GSK Bangladesh 
Ltd. and Azim Uddin Ahmed, Chairman, Mutual Group (Distributor of Consumer Healthcare products).

GSK Annual Report 2017 I 25



Communications

David Meets MOH & CARE O�cials
David attended the Dissemination of the Mid Term Results of the GSK CARE Community Health Workers Initiative of 
Bangladesh” event during his visit to Bangladesh in April, 2017. In the dissemination meeting, GSK  and  CARE shared the 
results, success and learnings for the Community Health Worker Initiative (a 20% Re-investment Project) to  key 
stakeholders including o�cials from the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, International NGOs, WHO and other 
important stakeholders. The midterm evaluation was conducted by the country’s most accredited and reliable research 
organization icddr,b.

The government representatives noted that this public-private-partnership (PPP) initiative remarkably improved the 
maternal and child health status of Sunamganj district, especially in reduction of child mortality and in-equity in 
accessing MNCH service uptake. The project monitoring data showed that 50% of health entrepreneurs are now earning 
5000BDT ($67) or more in a month.

David, in his speech, reiterated GSK’s commitment to create access and support strengthening of healthcare infrastructure 
in the LDCs. He pointed out that Bangladesh had the largest 20% re-investment initiative in Africa DC.  He commended the 
team for its innovative approach and celebrated the partnership between GSK, Ministry of Health and CARE.  

Town hall with David & Meeting the Talents
A town hall with David Pritchard, was held with the employees of the Corporate o�ce and Dhaka Sales Team.  It was a 
very lively and interactive session where David thanked everyone for their remarkable 2016 performance and discussed 
the 2017 expectations. In the town hall, emphasis on excellent execution and the reinforcement of the need to support 
the Medical Representatives through re-invigoration of the selling model was discussed. David also talked about the 
Innovation, Performance and Trust (IPT) model. The town hall concluded with very interactive Q/A session. A pool of the 
Company Talents (all the Pharma FLPs and Functional talents) also met David for discussion on how they see the 
Company, their expectations, their challenges and how they see themselves as Future Leaders.
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Breakfast with Erum & Leadership Team (LTs)
To enable two-way communication between the leadership team and the employees, monthly Breakfast 
meetings were held. The breakfast meetings participants were usually across departments and informal 
discussion were held between them and the MD and other selected Leadership Team members (LTs). The 
objective of the meetings are to have a better understanding of each other and to facilitate on issues 
individuals/teams are facing.

International Women’s Day (IWD) Celebration 
International Women’s Day was celebrated with all the corporate o�ce employees in March. The IWD theme for 
2017 was #BeBoldForChange. To mark the IWD, the Women Leadership Initiative was launched for all employees 
in Bangladesh and  the leadership team spoke on the occasion.

Orange Day Celebration:
Every year globally a day is dedicated by the employees for Volunteering in the communities, this day is called 
Orange Day. The purpose of this one-day employee-led volunteering activity is to encourage employee 
engagement, community service, team spirit and FUN!
On July 27, 109 employees from the Corporate o�ce took part in the GSK Bangladesh Orange Day celebration. 
Prior to a week before the Orange Day, all the employees came together to raise funds for the day through Fund 
Raising Lunch Carnival.  With the raised funds, on July 27, employees in partnership with Teach for Bangladesh,  
went to 2 underprivileged Primary Schools in 2 areas; Mirpur & Kamrangichar. 
These underprivileged schools needed painting and many other repair works. The employees painted the walls of 
the schools and also spent time with the students of the schools doing activities like: Read Aloud and Art Session 
on Health & Hygiene and Importance of Education. The employees also cleaned school premises to role model for 
the children

The employees also donated water puri�cation systems, fans and Lights to the schools, with the funds raised 
through the employees fundraising carnival lunch .
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Therapeutic Area            Trade Name                                Composition                                      Therapeutic Class

Product Index

 Ceporex Cephalexin Oral cephalosporin
 Cexime Ce�xime Oral cephalosporin
Anti-bacterial Zinnat Cefuroxime axetil Oral cephalosporin
 Glaxipro Cipro�oxacin Oral tablet
 Seretide Salmeterol + Fluticasone Bronchodilator/anti-in�ammatory
 Ventolin Salbutamol Bronchodilator
 Avamys Fluticasone Furoate Anti-Allergic
 Beconase ANS Beclomethasone dipropionate Intra-nasal anti-in�ammatory
Respiratory Flixonase ANS Fluticasone propionate Intra-nasal anti-in�ammatory
 Piriton Chlorpheniramine maleate Anti-histamine
 Ventolin Nebules Salbutamol Solution for Nebulization
 Ventolin Respirator  Salbutamol Nebuliser solution
 Solution
 Ventolin Evohaler Salbutamol (as sulphate) 100 mg Bronchodilator
 Betnovate Betamethasone valerate Topical corticosteroids
 Betnovate N Betamethasone valerate + Topical corticosteroids &
   Neomycin sulphate combinations
 Betnovate CL Betamethasone valerate +  Topical corticosteroids &
  clotrimazole combinations
 Dermovate Clobetasol propionate Potent topical corticosteroids
 Eumovate Clobetasone butyrate Topical corticosteroids
 Cutivate Fluticasone propionate Topical corticosteroids
Dermatology Bactroban Mupirocin Topical antibiotic
 Neobacrin Neomycin + Zinc bacitracin Topical antibiotic
 Fluvin-OD Fluconazole Systemic antifungal
 Grisovin FP Griseofulvin Oral anti-fungal
 Tinatrim Clotrimazole Topical anti-fungal
 Dermovate Scalp Clobetasol Propionate 0.05% Topical corticosteroids
 Application
Gastro-intestinal Norain Omeprazole Anti-ulcerant
 Zantac Ranitidine Anti-ulcerant
Vitamins Berin Plus Thiamine Mononitrate,  Vitamin
  Pyridoxine Hydrochloride, 
  Cyanocobalamin Crystals
Analgesics Parapyrol Paracetamol Analgesic and anti-pyretic
 Panadol Extra Paracetamol BP 500mg Non-narcotic Analgesics
  Ca�eine BP 65 mg 
Oral steroid Betnelan Betamethasone Glucocorlicosteroids
 Prednelan Prednisolone Glucocorticosteroids
Eye/Ear preps Otosporin Polymyxin+Neomycin+ Anti-infective
  Hydroco rtisone
Special use prep Kemadrin Procyclidine HCI Anti-parkinsonism
 Tracrium Atracurium besylate Anaesthetic
 Eltroxin Levothyroxine sodium BP 50 mg Hormone
Oncology Imuran Azalhioprine Anti-cancer
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Therapeutic Area            Trade Name                                Composition                                      Therapeutic Class

 Engerix B Hepatitis B Surface antigen Hepatitis B vaccine
   (HBsAg)
 Havrix Inactivated hepatitis A virus  Hepatitis A vaccine
  (HM175 hepatitis A virus strain)
 Fluarix Inactivated in�uenza vaccine  Inactivated In�uenza Vaccine
  (split virion) consists of WHO 
  recommended strains (Northern 
  Hemisphere) for the season 20132014.
 Varilrix Oka strain of varicella zoster virus Chicken pox vaccine
Vaccines Priorix Attenuated Schwarz measles, Measles, Mumps Rubella
   RIT 4385 mumps (Jeryl Lynn  (MMR) vaccine
  strain) and Wistar RA 27/3 
  rubella strain of viruses
 Rotarix Live attenuated human  Live-attenuated human
  rotavirus RIX4414 strain rotavirus vaccine
 Syn�orix Pneumococcal polysaccharide  Pneumococcal conjugate 
  and Non-Typeable Haemophilus vaccine
   in�uenzae (NTHi) protein D 
  conjugate vaccine, adsorbed 
 Infanrix-Hexa Diphtheria, Tetanus, Acellular Hexavalent vaccine for infants
   Pertussis, Hepatitis B recombinant, 
  Inactivated Poliomyelitis, Conjugated 
  Haemophilus In�uenzae Type B
 Cervarix Human Papillomavirus Vaccine  Cervical cancer vaccine
  Type 16 and 18
 Rabipur Rabies Vaccine Rabies Vaccine (Human) BP
Stiefel Pharma Duac Once daily gel Clindamycin & Benzoyl Peroxide Topical anti-acne
Stiefel Non-Pharma Acne-Aid Sulphonated Surfactant Blend Topical anti-acne
 LactiCare Lactic Acid & Sodium Pyrolidone   Antipruritic & soothing
  Carboxylase
 Oilatum Bar Light Liquid Para�n & Salt of High  Antipruritic & soothing
  Molecular Weight Fatty Acids
 Oilatum Emollient Light Liquid Para�n Antipruritic & soothing
 Oilatum Baby  Light Liquid Para�n Antipruritic & soothing
 Bath Emollient
 SpectraBAN 60 Micro�ne Zinc Oxide,  Sunscreen preparation
  Octyl  Meihoxycinnamate, 
  4-Methylbenzylidene Camphor,
   Avobenzone
 Physiogel Caprylic/Capric Triglyceride Antipruritic & soothing
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Standard Horlicks
In 2017, GSK Consumer Healthcare Bangladesh’s  largest 
brand, Standard Horlicks, maintained its position as the 
market leader by a signi�cant margin in the health food 
drinks category. Its extension Chocolate Horlicks also 
thrived in 2017. Standard Horlicks had  great media 
presence throughout the year and conducted an exam 
campaign targeting a vast number of schools across the 
country. It also received overwhelming response to the 
sachet relaunch which saw a reduction in price of a 
sachet from Tk.12 to Tk.10. 

Junior Horlicks
In 2017, Junior Horlicks launched a new TVC with a new 
thematic focusing on fussy eating. The TVC has been on 
air since March 2017 and has received good response 
from the consumers in terms of the connection, brand 
proposition and scienti�c claims. The brand also 
provided two attractive consumer promotions at the 
end of the year, including 50 g extra provided with the 
Jar and a free ti�n box. 

Mothers’ Horlicks
One of the comparatively newer brands in the portfolio, 
Mothers’ Horlicks is a scienti�c specialized nutrition 
solution for expectant and lactating mothers. The brand 
continued its consistent growth trajectory, increased 
both distribution and penetration to reach a 
commendable size in 2017.

Growth Plus
In 2017, GSK Bangladesh launched Horlicks Growth Plus. 
This high-science product has been scienti�cally 
formulated and designed to help catch up on lost 
growth of children aged between 5+ and 9 years of age. 
It contains high quality whey protein and growth 
promoters that are clinically proven to provide visible 
growth of height and weight in children in 6 months, 
without causing obesity. Since May 2017, Horlicks 
Growth Plus is available in Vanilla Flavor as a 400g Jar in 
selected outlets, as recommended by pediatricians. The 
product has been operating in the market with support 
from the Expert Marketing Team, which has worked to 
build awareness among healthcare professionals.
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Sensodyne
2017 was a very successful year for Sensodyne as the 
brand witnessed robust growth and was yet again the 
fastest growing brand in GSK Consumer Healthcare 
Portfolio. This growth was driven by both increased 
distribution nationally, increased brand equity and 
consumer pull in the market. Multiple brand building 
initiatives across TV, print, digital & consumer 
engagement via activation; drove awareness about the 
brand and also the issue of tooth sensitivity amongst 
consumers.

Glaxose D
Despite a decline in the powdered drink category, 
Glaxose D maintained its stronghold and grew at a 
reasonable rate.  The e�orts in 2017 to launch Glaxose 
Orange by beginning of 2018 were successful and with 
the introduction of this brand into the category, the 
company aims to capitalize on the till now untapped 
market opportunity in the form of �avored powdered 
drinks. With cricket star Shakib Al Hassan as brand 
ambassador and the legacy of 50 years in the glucose 
category, Glaxose D is widely relied on by consumers for 
instant energy.
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Vaccines
GSK Bangladesh supplies di�erent vaccines 
countrywide to help in reducing the disease burden. 
GSK Bangladesh has one of the most comprehensive 
vaccine solutions ranging from Hepatitis A & B, Cervical 
Cancer, Chickenpox, Measles, Mumps & Rubella, 
Rotaviral diarrhea, Pneumonia etc. The portfolio 
includes leading brands like Engerix, Rotarix, Cervarix, 
Syn�orix etc.

Antibiotics
Zinnat is the foundation of the GSK Anti-infective 
Portfolio and will continue to treat thousands of 
patients by expanding access and o�ering a range of 
indications. Glaxipro and Cexime are also some few 
brands enriching the Antibiotics portfolio ensuring 
better health.

Pharmaceuticals
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Dermatologicals
GSK Bangladesh Dermatological portfolio includes 
Dermovate, Betnovate, Cutivate, Eumovate, Bactroban, 
Fluvin OD, Grisovin FP, which are reliable solutions in 
derma care. We o�er a variety of skin health products 
over-the-counter. We o�er Physiogel for dry and 
sensitive skin, SpectraBAN 60 as Sun Block cream, Acne 
Aid for oily and pimple prone skin and Oilatum for dry 
skin treatments.

Respiratory Portfolio
GSK, being the pioneer in Asthma & COPD therapy, 
brings Seretide which is considered for unique 
treatment options among large group of patients in 
achieving asthma control and making their lives easy 
with smooth breathing. Apart from Seretide, Seasonal & 
Perennial Allergic Rhinitis are the usual problems where 
patients seek treatment care very frequently. GSK 
Avamys has been introduced with its good e�cacy and 
sustainable results among Healthcare Professionals 
who may choose this drug to relieve su�erings of the 
patients with allergic rhinitis. Ventolin Evohaler is a 
well-accepted non-CFC treatment in Bangladesh. In 
anti-histaminic market, Piriton is still one of the top 
preference. For rhinitis, Beconase and Flixonase nasal 
spray are considered as gold standard therapy.
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20% Pro�t Re-investment Initiatives
 
As a Healthcare Company, we continuously strive at 
GSK to create access to quality healthcare in the 
communities we work for. To ful�ll our commitment 
towards creating access and to facilitate healthcare 
service delivery, GSK has taken an initiative to re-invest 
20% of its pro�ts to build healthcare infrastructure in 
the LDCs. Under this initiative, GSK Bangladesh has 
been re-investing 20% of its pro�ts since 2011 for 
creating Health Human Resources at the Hard to Reach 
areas of the country in multiple projects in partnership 
with Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, CARE, icddr,b 
Friendship.  The Projects are :

GSK-CARE BANGLADESH Community 
Health Worker Initiative (CHWI)

Phase 1
The Phase 1 or scoping phase of the project started 
with a pilot phase in mid 2011 in one sub district of 
Sunamganj. The one year long pilot project paved the 
way to the initiative’s second phase by identifying the 
activity areas.

Key Achievements and Results

Phase-2
Since December 2012, GlaxoSmithKline (GSK) in 
partnership with CARE under the supervision of 
Ministry of Health and Family Welfare has been 
implementing a Community Health Workers (CHWs) 
Initiative. It aims to address the lack of skilled human 
resources in the remote and underserved Sunamganj 
district. 
The overall goal of the CHW initiative is to improve 
maternal and child health outcomes in 
underserved/remote and poor communities in 
Bangladesh by increasing their access to quality health 
care services. Through a unique model of Private-Public 
Partnership (PPP), the project in the Phase 2 has already 
developed 168 Private Community-Based Birth 
Attendants (P-CSBAs), 2,100 Community Health 
Workers (CHWs) and 3,100 Community Health 
Volunteers (CHVs). Over 1,000 Government health 
personnel have been reached through capacity 
building activities and 318 Community Support 
Systems (CmSS) were established to facilitate health 
awareness, promote accountability, and address issues 
of poor families’ access and timely referrals to health 
facilities at the community level. As a result, the 
initiative has demonstrated signi�cant improvement in 
Maternal Health service uptake, especially by the poor 
in 50 remote Unions of Sunamganj district.

Phase-3
Based on project successes in the three years of 
Phase-2, representatives and o�cials from the local, 
district/sub-district health authorities and Ministry of 
Health and Family Welfare (MoHFW) expressed their 
desire to see a continuation of CARE-GSK project 
activities and scaling them up throughout the district. 
As a result of which, the GSK CARE CHW initiative was 
expanded till December 2018 to its third phase and 
scaled up to all unions of Sunamganj. 
While experience and evidence from the second phase  
are being used to further improve e�ciency and cost of 
the new project, the current project  also deepened its 
focus by adding new health services, such as nutrition, 
WASH, sexual and reproductive health, 
non-communicable diseases (NCD), limited curative 
treatments and basic diagnostic tools for health 
screening and referrals. Also  mobile and information 
technology  are being used for service promotion, 
pregnancy registration, service noti�cation, online data 
management, referral linkages, vital registration and 
statistics, and continuous e-learning for health workers.
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300
Private skilled 

health care 
providers 

(Private CSBAs)

3000
CHWs

872
Community Support 

System(CmSS)*

14,824
CmSS Members

*CG & CSG 

Social 
Entrepreneurship 

brings 
financial 

sustainability 
of the providers

GSK-CARE CGW Initiative was presented in 
different global platforms such as Global Health 

and Innovation Conference (GHIC) at Yale, 
Wilson Center and USAID in DC. The project 

was also featured as one of the best practices in 
Bangladesh by Johns Hopkins University.

7,38,252
Skilled health 

services 

28,963
Skilled deliveries

were done

23,000
referrals

were made

87
Upazillas allocated 
budget to support 

PCBAs

34,8758
Households reached with 

health information

80%
Entrepreneurs 

earning 5000 BDT 
or more in average
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Goals and objectives
Project goal:
To improve health and nutrition outcomes of the 
population in remote, poor and underserved areas with 
special attention to maternal and child health.
 
Project objectives 
1. Using the Private Public Model the GSK CARE CHW 

Initiative will serve the whole  Sunamganj district. 
2. Deepen and build on the current evidence and 

learning of the initiative to ensure its long-term 
institutionalization and sustainability. 

3. Develop a holistic partnership model to increase 
health services access in remote communities which 
can be replicated by the government, donors and 
other stakeholders in other areas.

Who have we supported? 
1. Number of health workers trained during the 

reporting period and in total to date:  To date, total 
300 Private-CSBAs and total 3,000 Community 
Health Workers (CHWs) have been trained. Mostly 
Private CSBAs were followed up with refreshers 
within skill lab, clinical attachment with GOB facilities 
and on job support.

2. Direct number of bene�ciaries reached during the 
reporting period and in total to date: In this 
reporting period the project has reached 145,370 
direct bene�ciaries and since the beginning, the 
reached out total direct bene�ciaries are 825,491. 

3. Indirect number of bene�ciaries reached during 
the reporting period and in total to date: In this 
reporting period, 413,607 indirect bene�ciaries 
(family members of the women of reproductive age 
and children under-5) were reached and total 
182,7270 indirect bene�ciaries have been reached 
since inception of the project. 
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The project is working in six factories in the Gazipur 
area and aims that, by the end of this project in 
September 2018, the garment workers of these 
selected factories and their family members will be able 
to live a healthy, productive and secure life, free from 
violence and exploitation and supported by good 
governance and adequate policies. 

Health Access and Linkage Opportunities for 
Workers (Halow) Project
The HALOW project between GSK, M&S and CARE was 
launched in April 2015 to support and build on existing 
health service provision for the 7,700 RMG workers of 
Interfab Shirt Manufacturing Ltd. and Intersto� 
Apparels Ltd. The project aimed to facilitate their access 
to needs-based health services including preventive 
care, health and nutrition information and education.
The project systematically assessed existing gaps in 
basic health awareness, health-service needs and 
identi�cation of areas where services could be 
improved and new services or linkages could be 
introduced. 

Project objectives were to 1) improve healthcare access 
for RMG workers and raising health-awareness and 
educating worker 2) increase the preventative and 
curative service uptake by workers 3) Mobilise 
communities through creating health referral networks 
and connecting local health services to RMG workers and 
their families 4) Create shared multi-stakeholder 
platforms across the factory and community to address 
underlying health and nutritional issues faced by workers.

The Project achievement till date
• 4,620 female workers now have access to Tetanus 

vaccination and visual VIA test (for detecting cervical 
cancer) at the factory provided by the Health 
Department, Gazipur 

• 50,000 iron folic acid tablets were provided to the 
female workers through Health & Family Planning 
department 

• 952 factory workers received health services from 
Government and NGO referral health facilities
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GSK-CARE BANGLADESH Urban Health Ready Made Garment (RMG) Workers Initiative

Background and Context
There are around 6,000 ready-made garment (RMG) factories in Bangladesh, employing approximately 4.5 million 
workers. The vast majority of RMG workers are women who have migrated from rural areas, living in slums near the 
factories where they work in the capital, Dhaka. Good quality and high volume production output depends on the 
consistency and e�ciency of workers; factors which are adversely a�ected by poor health and nutrition.  There is 
a lack of adequate on-site health services and the workers depend largely on the public and private facilities and 
providers. 

Given the context, GSK took up multiple initiatives:
1. GSK CARE Readymade Garment Workers Initiative (October 2014-September 2018)
2. Health Access and Linkage Opportunities for Workers (Halow) Project- A project in partnership with Marks & 

Spencer  (March 2015 -April 2016) & CARE
3. Health Access and Linkage Opportunities for Workers (Halow)  Plus Project- The expanded project  partnership with 

Marks & Spencer & CARE (September 2017-September 2020)

GSK-CARE Ready Made Garment (RMG) Workers Initiative
To support the Urban Health System specially for the RMG workers  and their families living in the urban- peri 
urban areas of Dhaka city GSK, in partnership with CARE has been implementing a multi year project since 
October 2014.  The project intends  to establish a sustainable and comprehensive health and nutrition program 
delivery model for the RMG workers and their families.
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 The RMG Project Impact at a Glance till Date

Phase 2
HALOW Plus
The  signs of success demonstrated in HALOW project in 
empowering workers to access services in-factory and in 
the community  led the expansion of the HALOW project 
to HALOW Plus.  The HALOW project demonstrated that 
empowering worker ‘champions’ for transferring 
knowledge and information to workers and mobilising 
communities to engage with leaders and decision makers 
creates positive platforms for change for individual 
workers, their families and communities. This also enables 
individuals to collectively in�uence the systems and 
policies which a�ect their lives. 

The monitoring of the social impact of the HALOW  has 
provided GSK along with its partners M&S, CARE; the 
insight to move into a 3-year extension programme, 
HALOW Plus, in order to truly achieve long-term 
sustainable social and economic impact for the 
individuals, businesses and communities involved. To 
widen the reach of the partnership and deepen impact, 
the 3-year  HALOW PLUS programme (December 2017- 
December 2020) was launched in December 2017.  The 
programme will be based in existing and additional 15 

participating factories and aims to: 

• Develop empowered workers with skills to represent 
their own health and social needs 

• Enable productive and healthy factory systems to 
support response to workers’ needs 

• Increase access to/awareness of appropriate healthcare 
for RMG workers and their communities 

• Mobilise communities to negotiate responses to health 
and social needs with other structures and institutions 
in the community 

• Share learning, business case and attribution data to 
scale partnership impact 

GSK-Friendship M-Health Project

The multiple year partnership GSK Friendship M-Health 
project  with NGO Friendship was taken up to help bring 
the bene�ts of modern technology to the remote 
communities in the Chars of  Gaibandha District, through 
a mobile phone based health diagnosis application. Since 
its inception in 2012, the project has built a health 
platform.

The major accomplishment:
• In total, 40 symptomatic diagnosis algorithms have 

been fully developed 
• 150 Field Community Medics (FCMs) have successfully 

completed the 17-day intensive resident training and 
have started using the mHealth application in the �eld 

• 10 doctors and 26 project sta� have been trained in the 
use of mHealth

• A Doctors’ Centre was established in Dhaka to provide 
direct consultation support to the Field Community 
Medics by quali�ed doctors 

• A highly motivated software development team was 
developed to produce and manage the mHealth 
application 

• The mHealth reporting system and maintenance tools 
have been developed 
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Duration
Oct 2015 to Sept 2018
 including GSK-M&S HALOW project 
from March 2016 

Location
Factories: 
Jeacon Garments Ltd. 
Panache Knitted Creations Ltd. 
Interfab Shirt ManufacturingLimited 
(HALOW) 
Intersto� Apparels Limited (HALOW) 

Impact population
10,760 Ready Made Garments
workers and over 40,000 family
members in Gazipur 



After implementation of GSK-icddr,b HSS program, 
standard infection control practices have seen 
signi�cant improvement with improved infection 
control practices by the Healthcare Workers’ (HCWs) in 
the project areas. The project has till date seen the 
below successes in the catchment area hospitals

• reduced rate of healthcare associated infections 
(HAIs), 

• minimized duration of hospital stay and associated 
healthcare costs

• less privileged people having more opportunity for 
medical care as the bed occupancy rate has 
decreased 

The program in addition to the HCWs, through improved 
quality of care, is bene�tting the population covered by 
the program hospitals who regularly visit the facilities to 
seek healthcare through facilitating di�erent hygiene 
and hospital management practices. Also the training 
modules which are being developed through the 

program is supporting to establish a comprehensive 
infection control National Guideline.
 
Total number of population bene�ciaries of the 
GSK-icddr,b HSS Program

Impacts of the mHealth project:
• More than 572,000 health services have been 

rendered using the mHealth app
• 98,000 services have been rendered to children 

under 5 years of age
• Signi�cant improvement (99.9% from <57% 

previously) has been achieved in implementing 
vitamin A supplementation and the government’s 
Expanded Program on Immunization (EPI)

• A 50% increase has been achieved in the average 
number of bene�ciaries served by FCMs in a day

• No maternal death has been reported in the mHealth 
intervention areas in the last 2 years. 

• More than 9,900 patients have been referred to 
Friendship �oating hospitals and other 
secondary/tertiary care centres for advanced 
treatment. 

The Long-term sustainability Vision: 
• More than 80% of the trained FCMs are expected to 

become self-sustainable by increased service delivery 
volumes (they charge a minimal fee for diagnosis 
o�ered through the mHealth app and sales of 
over-the-counter medicines) 

• The FCMs will remain in their communities and 
continue to provide healthcare services over the long 
term. Their skills, competencies, and experience will 
remain in the community even after the project 
development is complete. 

GSK- ICDDR, B Health System 
Strengthening Program
Healthcare Associated Infections (HAIs) are considered 
as the most frequent adverse outcome that can cost 
millions of lives as well as resources. In Bangladesh, the 
HAI rates  are 30% at tertiary level hospitals due to poor 
quality of care. To address the issue, GSK under its 20 % 
Re-investment Initiative is partnering with iccddr,b in a 
Health System Strengthening Program through 
module based training on infection control for selected 
hospital workers (from Ward boys - Doctors). The 
program began with a Pilot project in 2013 in 3 
hospitals which is now expanded till 2019 in 6 more 
hospitals in the greater Sylhet District; along with 
Sunamganj.
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Area Population Covered

Sunamganj Sadar 2 19,000

Chattak Upazila 200,000(Kaitak sub center)

Bishwamvarpur Upazila 126,000

Total 5,45,000
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3

28

134
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1

4

1

0
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3
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21

0

0

0

21

3

4

2

1

10

225
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22
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320

Sunamganj Sadar
Hospital

RM General Hospital,
Sunamganj

Kaitak Health
Sub-Center,
Chattak, Sunamganj

Bishwamvarpur
Upazila Health
Complex, Sunamganj

Total

Physicians Nurses
Lab

Tech.
Ward
Boys

Matts Paramedics Pharmacists Total
Cleaning

Sta�
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Background 
Violence in Rakhine State of Myanmar which began on 
25 August 2017 has driven an estimated 440,000 
Rohingya refugees across the border into Cox’s Bazar, 
Bangladesh. The speed and scale of the in�ux has 
resulted in a critical humanitarian emergency. The 
people who have arrived in Bangladesh since 25 
August came with very few possessions. They are now 
reliant on humanitarian assistance for food, and other 
life-saving needs. Basic services that were available 
prior to the in�ux are under severe strain due to the 
massive increase in people in the area. 

In response to the current gaps and needs, the project 
was initiated by GSK and CARE. The objectives of the 
project are: 

1. Provide health services for women, men, boys and 
girls living in refugee camps

2. Ensure adequate supply of essential medicines, 
supplies and logistics 

Our Response & Activities
• Community Health Clinics were  inaugurated by the 

Ministry of Health, CARE and GSK senior o�cials on 
December 07, 2017 and 1 ambulance service was 
also handed over to the local health department at 
Ukhiya, Teknaf for the Refugees. The clinics are 
delivering all basic health including sexual and 
reproductive health (SRH) and essential healthcare 
service. They are also acting as referrals to 
government community clinics for secondary health 
facilities.

Myanmar Refugee Response By GSK 

In response to the Myanmar Refugee (popularly known as Rohingyas) crisis GSK initiated Two (2) Community 
health clinics in Ukhiya in partnership with CARE and Ministry of Health & Family Welfare. GSK also donated 
medicines to DGDA to support the combat against the  Diptheria outbreak at the refugee camps.
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• The medical services recipients are receiving medicines and family planning commodities free of cost. With the 
project funds, essential medicine and supplies are being procured: the temporary community clinic. In order to 
cover the gaps in government’s supply chain (for treatment of Refugees in Cox’s Bazar), the project is providing 
the required medicine to the Ministry of Health. 

GlaxoSmithKline (GSK) and CARE Bangladesh handed over medicine to the Directorate General o�ce of Drug 
Administration (DGDA) to address Diphtheria outbreak among Myanmar displaced population living in Ukhiya, 
Cox’s Bazar.

On 21 December 2017, representatives from GSK 
Bangladesh and CARE Bangladesh handed over 
diphtheria medicines of worth BDT 1 million funded by 
GSK plc to Md. Golam Kibria, Director (Administration), 
Directorate General of Drug Administration, MoHFW, 
Bangladesh, at the Conference room of Directorate 
General of Drug Administration (DGDA), Mohakhali, 

Dhaka. This is also a part of GSK’s response to the 
Myanmar Refugee crisis. 
GSK’s support is reaching out with health services to 
approximately 50,000 in the targeted area. This 
represents 11,500 women, 9,500 men, 14,500 girls, and 
boys. Among these, there are 2,000 pregnant and 3,500 
lactating women. 
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The Employees are the lifeline of the Company. The 
Human Resources (HR) team is persistently supporting 
the business by recruiting, and retaining skilled 
employee base in the Company.  

GSK over the last few years have introduced new ways 
of working and the Company thrives on a performance 
driven philosophy. The HR team is continuously 
working to embed the culture amongst the employees 
through di�erent activities and initiatives.

 ‘Future Leaders Programme’ (FLP):
The Global GSK FLP program continued its 3rd year in 
Bangladesh through recruitment of four new FLP 
trainees for Consumer Healthcare, Pharmaceutical and 
Global Manufacturing & Supply (GMS). The aim of the 
program is to develop early talent to become our next 
generation of Future Leaders who will deliver our 
strategy. Amongst them two of the FLP trainees were 
inducted in GSK’s Global ‘Graduate Advisory Board’, a 
testament to high quality FLP trainees from Bangladesh 
across all Business Units (BUs). 

Practical Coaching at Workplace:
In order to help build a performance-focused team, 
several training initiatives were taken for the line 
managers; which include Coaching capability; 
Employee Resilience and Energy for Performance. The 
trainings focused on equipping employees to handle 
multi-tasking and demanding tasks; on creating 
awareness on physical and mental wellbeing and 
support to keep oneself and team members �t and 
healthy. To further develop the employees; capability 
workshops for our First Line Leaders (FLL) and First Line 
Sales Leader (FLSL) were held both locally and 
internationally. 

Diversity and Women Empowerment:
This initiative focused on creating platforms for female 
employees to promote personal development and drive 
contribution to the business. As a result of which the 
Chittagong team also won the regional GSK Production 
System (GPS) champions awards in South Asia.

#LetsTalk Sessions:
#LetsTalk is a Company-wide series of conversation 
about the things that matter most and will help make 
GSK even stronger. These sessions facilitate dialogues 
across teams and the Leadership team. In GSK 
Bangladesh, Lets Talk sessions across the year created 
the engagement opportunities led by the General 
Managers, Site Director and Leadership Teams (LT) with 
employees. In the #LetsTalk sessions, two-way 
conversation were held on topics including our values, 
quarterly performance, sharing of future goals and 
objectives etc, These sessions have also encouraged 
the employees to think about their improvement needs 
and critically consider how they can develop their 
career at GSK Bangladesh. 

All Hands Meet/Annual Conference:
All-employee meetings: one for Pharmaceutical and 
one for Consumer Healthcare were held where the 
General Managers shared the business vision for next 
couple of years. In these meetings, all employees of the 
BUs come together and functional strategies and 
objectives are shared.

Rewards and Recognition:
GSK employees are always recognized and rewarded 
for their contribution in the Company. Alone in 2017 
20% of the GSK Bangladesh employees were 
recognized.
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Engagement Score:
Every year, to understand what the employees feel about the Company, what are their understanding of our 
values, and to understand the challenges and needs of the employees, engagement survey is done globally by 
GSK. In 2017, GSK Bangladesh achieved signi�cant improvement in employee engagement scores across all BUs 
re�ecting continued e�orts to improve the work environment and building employee capability.

My Plan:
For further support to employee development skills and management of  their performance process in 2017, GSK 
globally changed its performance management process. Named MyPlan, the system focuses on ensuring regular 
performance dialogue, early alignment of performance objectives by the end of the preceding year and enhanced 
focus on development plans with the aim of driving a collective performance culture. 

With employees being at the heart of what we do, GSK Bangladesh was amongst the top 10 most preferred 
Companies to work for across all industries according to Nielsen Campus Recruiter Index 2016. 
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Environment, Health and Safety (EHS) remain to be the 
priority for the Company. GSK Bangladesh is committed 
to ensuring ‘Zero Accidents’ by providing a healthy and 
risk-free environment for its employees, service 
providers and visitors at the Manufacturing site (GMS) 

GMS Chittagong Site ended 2017 with “Zero” Lost Time 
Injury and Illness (LTI&I) cases. This is the result of 
addressing unsafe conditions, unsafe behaviour and 
near misses as part of the Zero Accident Promotion 
(ZAP) program. In 2017, site employees proactively 
reported and closed 2,816 cases of near misses and 
proactively mitigated the precursor of accidents with 
99% engagement of site teams. The highest ZAP 
achievers were rewarded and recognized. Furthermore, 
the Site Leadership Team (SLT) members carried out 
Zero Access physical guarding and Lock-Out/Tag-Out 
(LOTO) audits at the site and closed the gaps in 
Machinery Safety compliance. 

The GMS EHS Assurance Audit Group carried out a Level 
2 audit on Internal Control Framework (ICF) on EHS 
systems. The Regional Process Safety Engineer 
reviewed progress on the GMS EHS Blue Chip programs 
on Process safety and machinery safety with 
progressive trend scores. Factory Mutual (FM) Global 
also carried out a �re safety review and gave their 
observations. The Site accepted FM’s 
recommendations; actions are being progressed.  

Signi�cant progress were made at the GMS Chittagong 
site to control exposure of ‘chemical agents’ by 
maintaining and reviewing of Microsoft project (MSP) 
project tracker. Engineering controls, review of 
Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) Management as 
per PPE matrix, completion of risk-based health 
surveillance program, completion of base-lining of 
occupational hygiene monitoring samples and 
cross-functional governance were put in place. 

Henceforth, the Chemical agents MSP tracker 
progressed from 23% to 64% in 2017 and the Chemical 
agents Diagnostic score has improved to 77%. 

An assessment of the Pharmaceuticals in the 
Environment/Environmental hazards assessment 
category (PiE/EHAC) Milestone program was done and 
achieved an outcome of EHAC / PiE milestones (E1 to 
E7) and all operations with ecotoxic were green. The 
declaration was made by the Global EHAC Champion. 
Also both the boilers at the GMS site were found to be 
compliant for regular operation.

To ensure increased EHS risk awareness amongst the 
employees, GMS carries out Risk perception training 
and awareness program on the use of PPEs to reduce 
at-risk behaviour. The Site Occupational Hygienist and 
Site EHS Leaf also successfully passed two British 
Occupational Hygiene Society (BOHS) modules and 
was successfully certi�ed in both the �ve-day courses 
and subsequent exams. Finally, the Site Occupational 
Health Physician and Site EHS Lead are always trained 
and certi�ed.
 
GMS conducts Site Occupational Health programs 
which include diabetic screening, �rst aid trainings, 
vaccination program, pirometry (lung function) tests 
amongst others.
          
As a part of GSK’s sustainability commitment for 
reduction of Carbon and Water consumption, the 
Chittagong GMS site consumed 9% less water than the 
previous year in 2017. The Site’s environmental 
foot-print and biodiversity remain to be remarkable to 
both interal and external stakeholders.
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Company's Philosophy of Governance
The Company's philosophy of Corporate Governance is 
aimed at assisting the management of the Company in 
the e�cient conduct of its business and in meeting its 
obligation to the stakeholders and is guided by a strong 
emphasis of transparency, accountability and integrity. 
For several years, the Company has adopted a codi�ed 
Corporate Governance Charter, which is in line with the 
best practices and fully compliant with the relevant 
legal and regulatory requirements. All employees are 
bound by a code of conduct that sets forth the 
Company's policies on all important issues.

Corporate Governance Charter
The Board of Directors has adopted a Corporate 
Governance Charter which has been complied with 
throughout the year.
The purpose of this charter is to codify the Company's 
system of corporate governance so as to assist the top 
management of the Company in the e�cient conduct 
of its business and in meeting its obligations to the 
shareholders.

The Charter Speci�cs
• The relationship with other Group Companies
• The role of the Board of Directors
• Responsibilities of the Managing Director
• Responsibilities of the Finance Director
• Responsibilities of the Company Secretary
• Important matters requiring the prior approval of the 

GlaxoSmithKline plc Board or its Committees
• Matters requiring prior approval of Group central 

functions
• Important matters requiring approval of the 

Company's Board
• Control of expenditure
• Professional advisor

The Board
The Board consists of a Chairman, four Executive 
Directors, one Non-Executive Director and two 
Non-Executive Independent Directors. There is a clear 
division of responsibilities between the Chairman's 
functions and that of Managing Director. The Chairman 
is mainly responsible for chairing the Board Meeting as 
well as the Annual General Meeting. On the other hand, 
the Managing Director is responsible for implementing 
and coordinating the Company's corporate and 
commercial programs to achieve its business 
objectives. All Directors have full and timely access to 
all relevant information and independent professional 
advice.

Role of the Board
The Board is responsible for the strategic direction, 
policies and overall management of the Company. It 
ensures that the Company's policies and activities 
conform to Mission, Key goals and a Core values. Code 
of Conduct, Key strategies, Policies and Practices as set 
out in the statements of policies, safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and establishing an adequate as 
well as e�ective system of internal control.
The Board has authorized the formation of a number of
Committees to implement the stated policies and
activities. The Committees are: The Committee of 
Directors, Pension Fund Trustees; Provident Fund 
Trustees; and Company Executive Committee.

Frequency of Meetings
The Board meets at least once a quarter. The number of
meetings that were held during the �nancial year 
ended 31st December, 2017 was 6.

Management and Conduct
The Board supports good Corporate Governance based
on generally accepted framework. Compliance with 
statue governing the industry is of great importance to 
maintain the reputation of the Company. Key sta� have 
been appointed and given speci�c responsibility to 
ensure compliance.
Independence in decision without con�ict of interest is 
considered important in discharging stewardship 
function of the Board of Directors. The Company 
therefore follows stringent policy which prohibits any 
�nancial accommodation to Directors. Also, the 
Directors are required to make declaration of their 
interest in any contract with the Company. These 
measures ensure that any con�ict of interest does not 
arise.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee reviews the �nancial and internal
reporting process, the system of internal controls, the
management of risks, and the external and internal 
auditing process. The Committee also proposes to 
shareholder the appointment of the external auditors 
and is directly responsible for their remuneration and 
oversight of their work. The Audit Committee consists 
of a Non-Executive Director, An Independent Director 
and an Executive Director. The Company Secretary acts 
as the Secretary of such Committee.

Report of Corporate Governance
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We have a duty to ensure we protect patient safety, our 
people, the environment, Company assets and our 
reputation, whilst also achieving our business 
objectives, safeguarding shareholder investment and 
complying with legal requirements. Risk management 
and internal control, along with the GSK Values, are an 
integral part of our business processes.
Risk management and internal controls ensure that the 
risks facing GSK are appropriately managed. GSK 
maintains sound risk management and internal 
controls as part of good business practice and in order 
to comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code. 
The Board of Directors discharge their responsibilities 
in this regard through the Audit and Risk Committee 
(ARC).
Company policies, standards and internal controls, 
together with our Company values underpin our 
approach to risk management. We are committed to 
being a responsible, value-based business and our 
leaders are responsible for embedding this into our 
culture, decision making and how we work. Ensuring 
product quality, safety and sustainability are 
fundamental to our business model. 
At GSK Bangladesh, risk is de�ned as “a potential event 
that creates uncertainty or could adversely a�ect the 
expected achievement of our business objectives”. Our 

Risk Management is a 5 step process of proactively 
identifying, assessing and implementing appropriate 
risk treatment to manage risks. 

Employees at GSK are accountable for working to 
establish standards and for identifying and escalating 
encountered risks so that they can be appropriately 
managed. GSK Bangladesh has comprehensive 
learning programmes to ensure employees are suitably 
trained including mandatory training on the GSK Code 
of Conduct and Anti-Bribery and Corruption policies.

Overview of Risk Governance
As a UK based organization, the UK Corporate Governance Code requires companies to implement integrated risk 
management and internal controls that identify and manage signi�cant risks that might have a material impact on 
its �nancial performance. 

Governance structure of Risk Management

Risk
Management
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Board of Directors: Responsible for our system of corporate governance, strategy, 
risk management and �nancial performance

Audit & Risk Committee:  Responsible for reviewing and approving the adequacy and 
e�ectiveness of our risk management and internal controls 

Risk Oversight and Compliance Council: Authorised by the Board to assist the Audit & Risk 
Committee in overseeing the risk management and internal control activities of the Group

Corporate Executive Team: Supports the CEO in managing our business and activities 

Risk Management and Compliance Boards: l Ensure that appropriate internal controls
for e�ective risk management are implemented l Complemented by Country Executive Risk 
Board to ensure a consistent approach to risk management across local geography level

Business units: Responsible for our system of corporate governance, strategy, risk 
management and �nancial performance
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GSK Enterprise Risks
Each year, the Corporate Executive Team (CET) reviews the risks facing the Group and agrees on a list of most 
signi�cant risks – referred to as Enterprise Risks – that require particular attention from a Group perspective, 
including those that could cause our actual results to di�er materially from expected and historical results.

The Corporate Executive Team (CET) of GSK Group has 
operational accountability for maintaining e�ective 
management controls. Each year, CET reviews the risks 
facing the Group and agrees the principal risks that 
present a signi�cant legal, operational or compliance 
risk to the Group. The CET also designate individuals 
responsible for developing and maintaining Enterprise 
Risk Strategies for certain principal risks that have a 
widespread impact across the Group.

Board of Directors of GSK Bangladesh has delegated 
accountability to its Audit Committee for assessing the 
e�ectiveness of management controls for signi�cant 
legal, operational or compliance risks facing the 

Company.
Bangladesh business units and Global Support 
Functions are responsible for executing corporate 
policies; ensuring robust internal control frameworks 
are being maintained and signi�cant risks are 
adequately mitigated. Bangladesh Risk Management & 
Compliance Boards (RMCBs) exist within each business 
unit and Global Support Function to review and take 
action to ensure principal risks are being adequately 
addressed in line with applicable Enterprise Risk 
Strategies.

Patient Safety 
Failure to appropriately collect, review, follow up, or report adverse events from all potential 
sources, and to act on any relevant �ndings in a timely manner.

Product Quality
Failure to comply with good manufacturing practice or good distribution practice regulations in 
commercial or clinical trials manufacture, through the distribution chain by GSK, its contractors or 
suppliers, or through inadequate controls and governance of quality through product 
development, and in supporting regulated activities.

Financial Controls & Reporting 
Failure to comply with current tax law or incurring signi�cant losses due to treasury activities, failure 
to report accurate �nancial information in compliance with accounting standards and applicable 
legislation. 

Anti-bribery & Corruption
Failure of GSK employees, consultants and third parties to comply with our Anti-bribery and 
Corruption (ABAC) principles and standards, as well as all applicable legislation.

Commercial Practices
Failure to engage in commercial activities that are consistent with the letter and spirit of legal, 
industry, or the Group’s requirements relating to marketing and communications about our 
medicines and associated therapeutic areas; appropriate interactions with Healthcare Professionals 
(HCPs) and patients; and legitimate and transparent transfer of value. 

Research Practices 
Failure to adequately conduct ethical and sound pre-clinical and clinical research. In addition, 
failure to engage in scienti�c activities that are consistent with the letter and spirit of the law, 
industry, or the Group’s requirements. 

Third Party Oversight 
Failure to maintain adequate governance and oversight over third party relationships and failure of 
third parties to meet their contractual, regulatory, con�dentiality or other obligations. 
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Country Executive Board (CEB)
CEBs provide a means for di�erent GSK business units 
operating in the country to manage the Enterprise 
Risks, which impact more than one business unit, from 
a country perspective. CEBs ensure country-speci�c 
risks are identi�ed and addressed. 
In Bangladesh, the CEB is chaired by the Managing 
Director and attended by the members including the 
General Manager of Consumer Healthcare, Site Director 
of Bangladesh Manufacturing site, Finance Director, 
Head of Legal and other functional heads across 
separate business units. 

Objectives of the CEB include:
• ensure oversight and strategic coordination between 

the di�erent GSK business units and sites in 
Bangladesh. 

• manage GSK’s Principal Risks and any Bangladesh 
speci�c risks which impact more than one business 
unit. 

• formulate strategy, implement plans and monitor 
progress on joint enterprise initiatives e.g. sales 
compensation, recruitment and talent development 
etc. 

• monitor the external environment to identify 
environmental risk. 

• coordinate internal and external communications so 

we present one culture and voice externally for GSK 
Bangladesh

• manage external stakeholders, e.g. government, and 
media, regulatory more e�ectively

• discuss and take actions on opportunities and issues 
of common interest across businesses while 
maintaining adequate oversight to facilitate the 
achievement of agreed solutions.

Risk Management and Compliance Boards 
(RMCB)
The RMCB, at individual business unit level, reviews and 
assesses the quality and e�ectiveness of the risk 
management system and ensures that the risk policies 
are e�ectively managed. It also oversees the risk 
management strategies to achieve current and 
accurate compliance with operational and legal 
requirements and assists in identi�cation of 
foreseeable trends that could signi�cantly impact the 
Company’s overall business objectives.
Major risks from individual business RMCBs are often 
escalated for discussion at the CEB.

Supply Chain
Failure to deliver a continuous supply of compliant �nished product; inability to respond e�ectively 
to a crisis incident in a timely manner to recover and sustain critical operations

Environment, Health & Safety & Sustainability 
Failure to manage EHS&S risks inline with our objectives and policies and with relevant laws and 
regulations.

Information Security 
Risk to GSK business activitie if information becomes disclosed to those not authorised to see it, or 
if information or systems fail to be available or are corrupted. 

Privacy
Failure to collect, secure and use personal information in accordance with data privacy laws. 
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A Control Framework structures the basis of internal 
control. It is the process that ensures we comply with 
laws and regulations, that our �nancial reporting is 
reliable and that our operations are run e�ciently and 
e�ectively. Furthermore, a Control Framework provides 
the basis on which we assess our control systems and 
identify how to enhance them. Control Frameworks 
also enable us to develop our systems of internal 
control in a structured and e�ective way. They ensure 
that we operate within applicable legislation and 
enhance our ability to deliver our strategic aims and 
adapt to the evolving nature of our business 
environment.

To make people 'Do More, Feel Better and Live Longer’, 
we need to have great products that successfully meet 
the needs of patients and consumers throughout the 
world. However, to grow and sustain our business and 
to protect our reputation, we depend on the success of 
many Business Activities. 

GSK Bangladesh adheres to the GSK Internal Control 
Framework (ICF) which de�nes the essential elements 
expected of our compliance and risk management 
programmes. GSK gains competitive advantage when 
the controls required to mitigate risks are clearly 
de�ned and simple to implement.

Our internal control framework drives:

• Common language
• Decrease in variability
• Reduction of failures in execution
• Reduction of rework
• Reduction of internal and external audit 

observations
• Improvements in the processes used to deliver 

products and services
• Con�dence that risks are e�ectively managed

GSK ICF is designed to ensure the risks associated with 
conducting our Business Activities are e�ectively 
controlled in line with GSK’s risk appetite. 

Enterprise Oversight:
As GSK is a large and complex business, we need to 
approach management oversight in an organised and 
systematic way. This ensures we can con�rm that all 
relevant parts of the Control Framework are either up to 
standard, or identify areas that need improvement. 
Most commonly, this is achieved by a Risk Management 
and Compliance Board (RMCB), although may also be 
managed by other oversight boards, committees, or 
councils.  These bodies report through to the Risk and 
Oversight and Compliance Council (ROCC) and Audit 
and Risk Committee (ARC).   

The GSK Values provide the management tone for the 
whole organisation. They describe the spirit in which 
we operate and provide a reference point when we 
encounter di�cult situations. The consistent 
demonstration and communication of Values by 
leaders at all levels is essential in making the Control 
Framework e�ective.

Business
Activities

Enterprise Oversight

The GSK Value
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Management Accountability supported by 
Compliance
Risk Assessment: A risk assessment is a pre-requisite 
to establish a reference point for controls. It identi�es 
all reasonable areas of scope and then assesses the 
impact and likelihood of potential risks. In turn, the 
Control Framework can provide focus on the greatest 
threats. 

Written Standards: Written standards are formal 
company policies, standard operation procedures, and 
guidelines (collectively called 'control documents') that 
communicate the ideas, rules, controls and 
expectations of the organisation. The objective is to 
establish in-process controls to ensure a process is 
actually happening as intended.

Training: Training is provided to ensure sta� operate 
competently in whatever activity they undertake.

Communication: Managers need to be able to 
articulate to their teams the importance of each part of 
the framework in a relevant and engaging way aligned 
to our Values and encourage a speak-up culture. 
Managers must also implement a process to receive 
complaints or questions and protect whistleblowers 
from retaliation.  

Management Monitoring: Local managers are 
accountable for the controls in their area. Management 
monitoring is an ongoing process of assessing that the 
controls are in place, in use and e�ective. Monitoring 
can be conducted in many ways including but not 
limited to workplace observation of tasks, checklist 
activity inspection, and desktop review of data or 
documentation.

Responding to Problems: Failures and problems o�er 
an important opportunity for learning and 
improvement. By understanding and correcting the 
root cause, they should not recur and thus the overall 
control framework is strengthened.

Discipline and enforcement: Generally refers to 
undertaking appropriate and consistent disciplinary 
action across the company for violations of policy or 
code of conduct.

Business Accountability supported by 
Compliance
Independent Business Monitoring: Involves 
managers conducting regular reviews of activities, 
data, exceptions and deviations in order to 
continuously improve their operations and quality. This 
review gives leadership objective evidence that the 
overall set of controls are e�ective, based on an 
understanding of current information. 
In GSK Bangladesh, this activity is performed by the 
Internal Audit function as well as independent overseas 
audit teams appointed by the Group.
 
Audit and Assurance Accountability
Independent Assurance: Provided by the group 
Internal Audit function “Audit and Assurance” (A&A). 
A&A provides an assessment of management 
e�ectiveness at risk identi�cation and mitigation. It also 
assesses the overall e�ectiveness of the local control 
framework.

We focus on the individual, doing 
what is right for patients and 
consumers. We work with our partners 
and customers to improve healthcare 
and �nd new medicines and vaccines. 
Regardless of our role, we strive to 
understand how our work impacts 
patients and consumers. Patient focus

We should always show respect for 
colleagues and the communities around 
us. Everyone has a part to play in creating 
a fair and inclusive work environment 
that respects human rights and the 
diversity of the cultures we operate in. 
When we embrace diversity and 
individuality we can support and inspire 
each other to achieve great things. Respect 

Transparency is vital to the way we work 
and helps us build trust. We strive to be 
honest and transparent about what we do 
and how we do it. This improves how we 
collaborate with each other and enhances 
the way we are seen by the communities 
we work with. It demonstrates that we are 
open to challenge, discussion and always 
want to improve how we operate. 

Transparency 

We must all live up to the ethical 
standards that are rightly expected of us. 
That means we act with integrity and 
follow the law. More than that, we do 
everything we can to maintain the trust 
and respect of the organizations we work 
with and the communities in which we 
live and operate. By doing so, we protect 
the interests of our patients, consumers 
and our business. 

Integrity 
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David Pritchard was appointed as the Chairman of GSK Bangladesh 
Board on July 20, 2016. David has had an illustrious career with GSK for 
over 28 years. After graduating from Leeds University in Biochemistry and 
Microbiology, David joined GSK plc in 1988. Prior to his current role as Vice 
President & Area Head, Africa & Developing Countries; David was Vice 
President & Head, International Region of ViiV Healthcare, a global 
specialist HIV company, and a joint venture of GSK and P�zer set up to 
deliver advances in treatment and care for people living with HIV. During 
his diverse roles within the Company, David has led GSK with tremendous 
commercial success in various capacities as VP & General Manager, South 
Africa; Area General Manager, DMEA (Developing Markets Eurasia) and 
General Manager, GSK Ukraine.

David Pritchard  I  Chairman

Erum Shakir Rahim was inducted in the GSK Bangladesh Board in 
November, 2015. Erum is currently the Managing Director of GSK 
Bangladesh Limited and the General Manager for Developing Countries, 
Asia which include Myanmar, Cambodia and Laos.   Prior to this role she 
was the General Manager of GSK Pharmaceuticals, Malaysia & Brunei and 
member of the GSK Asia Paci�c Leadership Team. She holds a Masters 
degree in Mass Communication from University of Karachi. Erum began 
her career in journalism and advertising in Pakistan's leading agency 
Atelier BM Pakistan and The News International. She later moved to the 
Pharmaceutical Industry and joined SmithKline Beecham Pakistan in 
Product Management. After the merger of the Company in 2000 to GSK, 
she led 3 marketing groups of the 3 merged companies. In 2006, she 
became the Director, Marketing and Business Development of GSK 
Pakistan, Iran and Afghanistan. Erum was a Member, Board of Directors, 
PhAMA Malaysia; Co Chair PhAMA Ethics Committee; Member, GSK 
Pakistan Board of Directors, Member, Overseas Chamber Committee on 
Trade, Pakistan; Trustee Concern for Children Pakistan, etc. She was also 
awarded Presidents' Award for Syn�orix inclusion in GAVI in 2013.

Erum

 Shakir Rahim  I  Managing Dire
cto

r

Rajib Barua joined GSK in January, 2009 and assumed the position of Site 
Director from March, 2009. He was inducted to the GSK Bangladesh Board 
in August, 2010. Prior to joining GSK, he was the General Manager of 
Unilever Factory, where he had operational responsibility of the 
Chittagong based operations. He spent 16 years in Unilever Bangladesh 
Limited in various management position. Rajib is a certi�ed Food Quality 
Assurance (FQA) Auditor & TPM Instructor of Unilever. He also worked in 
Sonar Cotton Mills Bangladesh Limited, one of the export oriented joint 
venture textile factories. Rajib graduated from Maulana Azad College of 
Technology, Bhopal, India as Mechanical Engineer and is currently a 
Fellow of the Institution of Engineers' Bangladesh.Rajib Barua  I  Site Director
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Prashant Pandey was inducted to GSK Bangladesh Board in October 
2017.  He is currently the General Manager of GSK Consumer Healthcare 
(CH) MyBan (Myanmar, Bangladesh, Nepal). Prior to his current role he was 
the Marketing Director for Nutrition & Digestive Health category, Expert 
Sales & Marketing and Marketing Excellence, and was based in Gurgaon, 
India. Prashant joined GSK in July 2008 as Nutrition Category Head for 
India. He subsequently moved into the Family Nutrition Category 
Development Director role in July 2013, and then as Marketing Director 
for India in February 2015. Under his leadership, exemplary examples of 
best in class marketing and business turnaround was set in GSK CH India.  
Prashant holds Postgraduate Diploma in Business Management from IMT 
Ghaziabad, India, 1995.

M
asud Khan  I  Non-Executive Independent D

ire
ct

or

Masud Khan joined the GSK Board in April, 2013. He is currently the CEO 
of Crown Cement Limited, prior to which he was Finance Director of 
Lafarge Surma Cement Limited (a cross border joint venture project by 
Lafarge of France and Cementos Molins of Spain). With more than 3 
decades  of work experience, this seasoned professional has worked in 
increasingly higher responsibility in the �elds of Finance, Audit and ERP 
implementation in leading multinational companies in Bangladesh 
including British American Tobacco Limited and James Finlay. His long 
work experience also include working abroad at Monrovia Tobacco 
Corporation, Liberia and Price Waterhouse & Co., Kolkata, India. He is a 
Commerce Graduate  from University of Kolkata, India and quali�ed both 
as Chartered and Cost Accountant from Indian Institute with distinction.

Zinnia Tanzina Huq  I  Finance Dire

cto
r

Zinnia Tanzina Huq joined GSK Bangladesh Limited in August, 2014 as 
Finance Director-Designate and was subsequently appointed as Finance 
Director on 1 November, 2014. She has 17 years of experience as a �nance 
professional in progressive leadership roles. Prior to joining GSK, she 
worked with British American Tobacco in Bangladesh. She further worked 
in British American Tobacco, Singapore Supply Hub as the Finance Lead 
for various market projects. She is a Quali�ed Accountant from Chartered 
Institute of Management Accountants, UK and is also a member of 
Institute of Cost and Management Accountants of Bangladesh and 
Institute of Internal Auditors Bangladesh. She is a business graduate from 
Institute of Business Administration (IBA), University of Dhaka.

Prashant Pandey  I  General Manager, 
CH

The Board of Directors

54 I GSK Annual Report 2017



H
e

a
l

t
h

i
e

r
 

T
o

m
o

r
r

o
w

Company Secretary

Kazi Sanaul Hoq was inducted to the GSK Bangladesh Board in October 2017. 
He joined as the Managing Director of Investment Corporation of Bangladesh 
(ICB) on 10 August, 2017. He started his career as a Senior O�cer in ICB on 25 
October, 1984 and served  in various  positions in the same organization. Prior to 
his current role he was the Acting Managing Director of Rajshahi Krishi Unnayan 
Bank (RAKUB). During his long illustrious career he worked in multiple Banks and 
Financial Institutions. He was the Managing Director (Current Charge) and 
Deputy Managing Director at Agrani Bank Ltd. He also was General Manager at 
BDBL and RAKUB. He served as CEO at ICB Securities Trading Company Ltd. 
He is the Chairman of  ICB Capital Management Ltd. and is a Director in the 
Board of Directors of British American Tobacco Bangladesh Co. Ltd. (BATBC), 
LINDE Bangladesh Limited, Renata Limited, Bangladesh Krishi Gobeshona 
Endowment Trust (BKGET), Credit Rating Agency of Bangladesh Ltd. (CRAB), 
Credit Rating Information and Services Ltd. (CRISL), Standard Bank Limited, 
National Tea Company Limited, Apex Tannery Limited, Central Depository 
Bangladesh Ltd. (CDBL)  and others. He holds Masters degree in  Accounting 
from the University of Dhaka.

Rashedul Quayum  I  Company Secre
ta

ry

Mohsin Uddin Ahmed joined the GSK Bangladesh Board in February, 2018.  He 
is currently the Managing Director of LINDE Bangladesh Limited. He joined 
Linde as Chief Operating O�cer in July 2016 and was appointed as the 
Managing Director in January 2017. Prior to joining LINDE Bangladesh, Mohsin 
was the President at Emami Group for its SAARC Countries’ business operations. 
He started his career with British American Tobacco (BAT) where he spent about 
�ve years in various roles under Trade Marketing & Distribution function. He was 
also the Sales Director of Nestle Bangladesh from 2003 to 2011. He was 
expatriated to Nestle Maghreb region (Morocco, Algeria & Tunisia) as Regional 
Sales Development Manager in Morocco. He started his early career in Unilever 
and worked in various capacities under Sales Operations and later in 2011 
rejoined  Unilever as Customer Development Director. He was also the Member 
of Unilever Bangladesh Board of Directors. Mohsin has over 22 years of 
experience primarily in FMCG sector. He holds a Masters degree in Applied 
Physics & Electronics from the University of Dhaka. 

M
ohsin U

ddin Ahmed  I  Non-Executive Independent D
ir

ec
to

r

S.O.M. Rashedul Quayum was appointed as Company Secretary of GSK 
Bangladesh in August 2017. He is currently the Head of Legal and Government 
A�airs for GSK Bangladesh. Rashedul has over 17 years of professional 
experience from FMCG, Pharmaceuticals and legal sector and worked for 
leading MNCs/ law �rms such as Novartis, British American Tobacco, A.F. Hassan 
Ari� & Associates etc. He is a Barrister-at-Law from the Honorable Society of 
Lincoln's Inn, U.K. and enrolled as an Advocate at the Supreme Court of 
Bangladesh. He has completed his LLB (Hons) and Postgraduate Diploma in Law 
from University of Northumbria, U. K. and holds a BBA & MBA degree from North 
South University. In his last job, he held the position of Country Head of Legal & 
Compliance at Novartis Bangladesh Limited.

Kazi Sanaul Hoq   I  Non-Executive Dire
ct

or
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Directors’ statement of responsibility in relation to the �nancial statements

The Directors of GSK Bangladesh Ltd. are:
• responsible for ensuring the maintenance of proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable 
accuracy the �nancial position of the Company at any time and from which �nancial statements can be prepared 
to comply with the Companies Act 1994, Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and the Listing 
Regulations of the Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited 2015;
• required by law to prepare �nancial statements for each �nancial period which give a true and fair view of the 
state of a�airs of the Company as at the end of the �nancial period and of the pro�t or loss for that period;
• responsible also for ensuring the operation of systems of internal control and for taking reasonable steps to 
safeguard the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

The �nancial statements, along with the notes to the �nancials, for the year ended 31 December 2017 are included 
in the Annual Report 2017, which is published by the Company in hard-copy printed form and made available on 
the company’s website.
 
The Directors con�rm that suitable accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of 
�nancial statements, supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates as necessary; applicable 
accounting standards have been followed, and the �nancial statements have been prepared on the going concern 
basis.

The responsibilities of the auditors in relation to the �nancial statements are set out in the independent auditor’ 
report signed by the auditor and included in this report (page-104).

The annual report for the year ended 31 December 2017, comprising the Directors’ Report and the Financial 
Statements, has been approved by the Board of Directors in its meetings dated 6 March, 2018 and 27 February 
2018 respectively and are signed on its behalf by:

Erum Shakir Rahim       Zinnia T Huq
Managing Director       Finance Director   
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The Audit Committee, appointed by and responsible to 
the Board of Directors of GlaxoSmithKline Bangladesh 
Ltd., is constituted according to the internal control 
framework of the Company policy and as per 
conditions of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 
Commission’s (BSEC) guidelines. The Committee 
comprises of three members, of whom 2 are 
non-executive directors. The Chairman of the 
Committee is appointed by the Board of Directors and 
is a non-executive independent director. The Company 
Secretary functions as the Secretary of the Committee. 
Meetings of the Committee are attended by the 
Finance Director, Head of Internal Audit and the 
External Auditors on invitation. All members of the 
Committee are �nancially literate and able to interpret 
�nancial statements and assess the adequacy of the 
internal control processes.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee have 
been determined by the Board in accordance with the 
Audit Committee Charter.

Role of the Committee 
The Audit Committee’s role �ows directly from the 
Boards oversight function and it is authorized by the 
Board to investigate any activity within its terms of 
reference. The Committee reports regularly to the 
Board on the performance of the activities it has been 
assigned. The Committee’s main responsibilities 
include:

Financial Reporting
To review the quarterly, half-yearly and annual �nancial 
statements of the Company along with management 
representatives, focusing particularly on any signi�cant 
changes to accounting policies and practices before 
submission to the Board for approval. Particular focus is 
given on:
- Any signi�cant changes to accounting policies and 

practices; 

- Signi�cant adjustments arising from the audits; 
- Compliance with applicable Financial Reporting 

Standards and other legal and regulatory 
requirements; and 

- The going concern assumption

Related Party Transactions
To review any related party transactions and con�ict of 
interest situations that may arise within the Company, 
including any transaction, procedure or course of 
conduct that may raise questions of management 
integrity.

Audit Reports
• To prepare the annual Audit Committee report and 

submit to the Board which includes summary of its 
activities and review the Board’s statements on 
compliance with the BSEC Codes of Corporate 
Governance for inclusion in the Annual Report;

• To review the internal Audit Committee Charter and 
make necessary revisions for the year. The committee 
should determine that all responsibilities outlined in 
the charter have been carried out. In addition, the 
charter is reviewed, and proposed updates are 
presented to the Board for approval.

Internal Control
• To consider annually the Risk Management 

Framework adopted within the Company and to be 
satis�ed that the methodology deployed allows the 
identi�cation, analysis, assessment, monitoring and 
communication of risks in a regular and timely 
manner. 

• To consider whether internal control strategies 
recommended by internal and external auditors 
have been implemented timely by the management 
thereby ensuring that the system of internal control 
is soundly embedded, e�ectively administered and 
regularly monitored.
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• To review the extent of compliance with established 
internal policies, standards, plans and procedures.

• To recommend to the Board steps to improve the 
system of internal control derived by the Committee 
from the �ndings of the internal and external 
auditors. 

Internal Audit
• Monitor/evaluate whether internal audit functions 

are conducted independently from the management 
and ensure that Internal Auditors have open access 
to all activities, records, property and personnel 
necessary to perform its duties.

• Review and assess the annual internal audit plan and 
evaluate its consistency with the Risk Management 
Framework used.

• Review the �ndings and recommendations made by 
the Internal Auditors for removing the irregularities 
and ensure that appropriate action is being taken.

• Recommend any broader reviews deemed necessary 
as a consequence of the issues or concerns identi�ed 
and raise/ensure special audit where necessary.

• Review the e�ciency and e�ectiveness of internal 
audit function. Evaluate status reports from the 
Internal Audit and ensure that appropriate tracking is 
maintained on the action points agreed upon in 
order to implement the audit recommendations.

External Audit
• To review the external auditor's audit plan, nature 

and scope of the audit plan, audit report, evaluation 
of internal controls and coordination of the external 
auditor;

• To review any matters concerning the appointment 
and re-appointment, audit fee and resignation or 
dismissal of the external auditor;

• To review and evaluate factors related to the 
independence of the external auditor and assist 
them in preserving their independence;

• To be advised of and decide to or not to make 
signi�cant use of the external auditor in performing 
non-audit services within the Company, considering 
both the types of services rendered and the fees, so 
that its position as auditor is not deemed to be 
compromised; and

• To review the external auditor’s �ndings arising from 
audits, particularly any comments and responses in 
management letters as well as the assistance given 
by the employees of the Company in order to be 
satis�ed that appropriate action is being taken.

Other matters
To act on any other matters as may be directed by the 
Board

Activities carried out during the year
In accordance with the “Audit Committee Charter”, 
governed by the BSEC noti�cation on Corporate 
Governance, the Audit Committee carried out its duties 
to work upon areas that were raised for consideration 
and discussed to evaluate issues related to key events 
of annual �nancial reporting cycle.

During the year 2017, the Audit Committee carried out 
the following activities:

1. Financial Reporting Assurance
• Reviewed the quarterly and annual �nancial 

statements of the Company, in light of the �nancial 
performance of the Company;

• Assessed the external auditors report on all critical 
accounting policies, signi�cant judgement and 
practices used by the Company in producing the 
�nancial statements. 

2. Internal Control and Risk Management Process
• Appraised on the risk management and compliance 

framework;
• Reviewed the entity-wide risks and mitigation plans.

3. Internal Audit
• Assessed and endorsed the annual internal audit 

plan 2017 in accordance with the annual objectives 
and risks of the Company;

• Reviewed the outcome of group internal audit;
• Reviewed all major �ndings of the internal audit 

function and monitored the corresponding 
management actions to improve the controls.

4. External Audit
• Reviewed the scope of the services to be provided by 

the external auditors and did not approve any 
non-audit services to the external auditors;

• Reviewed the external auditors’ �ndings, areas of 
concerns and the management’s response thereto 
and is satis�ed that the external auditors remain 
independent and that appropriate action is being 
taken on time.

The committee is of the opinion that adequate controls, 
procedures and risk management are in place to 
provide reasonable assurance that the company’s 
assets are safeguarded and that the �nancial position of 
the company is adequately managed.

The minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are 
placed subsequently to the Board for approval on 
regular basis which contains all issues along with 
various suggestions and recommendations to the 
Management and the Board.
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No. of meetings
in 2017

Name Representation
in Board 

Representation
in Audit

Committee

Date of 
joining the 
Committee

Date of
resignation from 

Committee

Mr. Masud Khan
Independent

Non-Executive
Director 

Chairman 28th April
2013 Existing

Mr. Md Iftikhar-
uz-zaman

Non-Executive
Director Member 1st February

2017
22nd October

2017

Mr. Kazi Sanaul
Hoq

Nominated
Non-Executive

Director 
Member 22nd October

2017 Existing

Held 
during 
tenure

4 4

3 1

1 1

Attended

Ms. Zinnia Tanzina Huq, Finance Director, attended all the meetings held in 2017 to give clari�cations on all 
�nancial matters. She also attended all the meetings held prior to August 2017 as the Company Secretary to act 
as the Secretary of the Audit Committee. From 1 August 2017, Mr. S.O.M. Rashedul Quayum, Head of Legal & 
Government A�airs was appointed as new Company Secretary and attended subsequent meetings as Secretary 
of the Audit Committee.  Head of Internal Audit has attended all meetings of the year as an invitee.

External Auditors have attended one meeting of the year to provide any explanations on the audited �nancial 
statements of the previous year.

On behalf of the Audit Committee 

Masud Khan
Chairman 
Audit Committee

Dhaka, 06 March, 2018

Meetings and Attendance
In the year 2017, the Audit Committee met four times. The details of attendance of each member of the Audit 
Committee meetings in 2017 are as follows:

Ms. Erum Shakir
Rahim

Managing
Director Member 1st January

2017 Existing 4 4
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Maysoon  Sadeq Chowdhury  |  S. 0. M. Rashedul Quayum
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As Managing Director, Erum is responsible for overall management of the 
Company. She oversees all operational aspects including policies, 
objectives, initiatives and compliance. She also directs the long term 
strategy for the Company. Erum joined the GSK Bangladesh Team in 
January, 2016. Prior to her role in Bangladesh, she was the General 
Manager of GSK Pharmaceuticals, Malaysia & Brunei.Brum

 Shakir Rahim  I  Managing Dire
ct

or

As Finance Director, Zinnia is responsible for activities involving �nancial 
reporting and control, tax and treasury, investor relations, �nance system, 
internal audit and other corporate a�airs. She joined GSK Bangladesh 
Limited in August, 2014 as Finance Director-Designate and was 
subsequently appointed as Finance Director on 1 November, 2014.

Zinnia Tanzina Huq  I  Finance Directo
r

Rashedul Qauyum joined the GSK Bangladesh Team in October, 2016. As the 
Head of Legal and Government A�airs he is responsible for all legal and 
corporate a�airs related issues of the Pharmaceutical Business of the 
Company. He also provides strategic and legal advice in all matters of the 
Pharmaceutical business and Chittagong factory. He is also currently the 
Company Secretary. 

S. 0. M
. Rashed

ul Q
uayum

  I  Head of Legal, Government A�airs
 &

 C
om

p
an

y 
Se

cr
et

ar
y

N
oor M

ohammad  I  Director, Human Resourc
es

Noor joined the GSK team in October, 2015 as the Designate Director, 
Human Resources. He assumed the position of Director HR from January, 
2016. Post his BBA from University of Madras and MBA from North South 
University; he started his career in New Zealand Dairy Milk Bangladesh 
Limited as an HR Professional. Prior to joining GSK, he worked for Airtel, 
Nokia, Fonterra Brands PTE Ltd., Singapore and Saudi New Zealand Milk 
Products Co. Ltd. As the Director HR, Noor is responsible for the overall 
development of Human Resources, which include HR strategies, employee 
relationship, performance management, etc., across all the business units 
of GSK Bangladesh which include Pharma, Consumer and GMS.
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Rumana joined GSK in 2008. As Head of Communications, Rumana is 
responsible for all Internal & External Communications of the Company. 
She also leads all CSR related activities which include global initiatives e.g., 
20% re-investment of pro�t to build healthcare infrastructure, etc. Prior to 
joining GSK,  Rumana worked in a number of brand and corporate 
communication roles in renowned local and multinational organizations 
such as Social Marketing Company, Grey Worldwide, US Peace Corps, 
Asiatic MCL, Bitopi Leo Burnett, etc. She holds Masters from Dhaka 
University in English Literature.

Rum
ana Ahmed  I  Head of Communicatio

ns

Nakib joined GSK in 2013 and was appointed as Marketing Director in 
November 2016. Before his current role, Nakib held the position of Head of 
Commercial Excellence. As Marketing Director, he is responsible for both 
Pharma & Vaccines marketing as well as for Commercial Excellence to drive 
e�ectiveness and capability building for the entire Marketing and Sales unit. 
Prior to joining GSK he has worked with leading local and global pharma 
companies like Beximco, Square and Novartis (Sandoz) in various capacities.  
Nakib holds  post-graduation degree  in Pharmacy with specialization in 
Clinical Pharmacy & Pharmacology from the University of Dhaka and also is 
an MBA from the Institute of Business Administration (IBA).

Nakibur Rahman  I  Marketing Directo
r

Moynul assumed the position of Sales Director, Pharma in November, 2016. 
As the Sales Director, he  is responsible for all Pharma Sales. He also leads 
the team to ensure successful launches, grow key products, embed New 
Ways of Working and capability and talent development across sales. 
Moynul joined the Company in 1983 as a Sales Representative and in the 
last 3 decades  worked in di�erent capacities in Sales and Marketing. 
Moynul was also a key contributor in familiarizing Vaccines in the market as 
the Vaccines Manager. He has been successfully leading the Pharma Sales 
team as the National Sales Manager since 2010. He holds an MBA degree 
from American International University of Bangladesh.

Moynul Islam  I  Sales Directo

r

Mahbub joined GSK in 2011. As Head of Medical, Mahbub is responsible for 
management of medical department, medical governance oversight for 
Vaccines and Pharma products marketed in Bangladesh, Pharma and 
Biological clinical trials and Pharmacovigilance activities for marketed and 
investigational products. Prior to joining GSK,  he has worked in a variety of 
clinical & commercial roles in organisations such as BRAC, Square 
Pharmaceuticals and Novo Nordisk. He completed MBBS from Sher-e-Bangla 
Medical College and did post-graduation in Master of Public Health (MPH) 
with major in Epidemiology from State University of Dhaka.

D
r. M

d. M
ahbubur Rahman  I  Director, Clinical R

&D and M
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al
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ad Khalid Hossain  I Manager, R
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Khalid joined the  GSK Bangladesh team in May 2014 as Sr. Executive 
Regulatory A�airs. He became Manager, Regulatory A�airs in 2015. As the 
head of Regulatory A�airs, he  is responsible for leading the regulatory 
department of GSK Bangladesh and support the business through 
product registration, pricing approval and other related work through 
external stakeholder engagement with the Regulatory bodies Prior to 
joining GSK he worked in Sano� Bangladesh Limited. He began his career 
with Haychem Bangladesh Limited in 2010. He is a B. Pharm and MBA from 
East West University, Dhaka. 

Ferdous Noyem Khan joined GSK Bangladesh Limited in October, 2012 as 
Risk & Compliance Manager. He assumed the position of Head of Ethics & 
Compliance in 2016. In his current role, he is responsible for leading GSK 
ethics and compliance programme; help business to manage risks and 
support Risk Management Compliance Board. Ferdous has more than 13 
years of experience in Risk Management, Compliance, Internal Control and 
Corporate Investigations. Prior to joining GSK, he worked for the Hong Kong 
and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (HSBC) as Fraud Risk Manager for 
HSBC Asia Paci�c Risk Management team. He holds Bachelor and Masters in 
Business Administration degrees from BRAC University, Dhaka, Bangladesh.

Ferdous Noyem Khan  I  Head of Ethics & Com
plia

nc
e

Kabir has been appointed as the Head of Vaccines in November, 2016. In 
his role he is responsible for EPI/Public and private market vaccine sales 
and focusing on capturing higher market share and revenue. Kabir joined 
GSK Bangladesh in February 2014 with the Vaccines Commercial Team and 
held the position of Business Development Manager, Vaccines. He was 
instrumental in the growth and expansion of the Vaccines portfolio in the 
Private and Public Market. Prior to GSK, Kabir worked in Novo Nordisk, 
Novartis and Aristopharma in various capacities. Kabir is a Medical 
graduate from Bangladesh Medical College and Hospital, Dhaka.

M
oham

m

ad Mahmudul Kabir  I  H
ead of V
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Maysoon  joined GSK Bangladesh as Manager LOC Quality in 2015. As the 
Head of the LOC Quality, she is responsible to manage all commercial 
quality operations. She graduated from University College London, UK with 
a bachelors degree in Biochemical Engineering. Upon graduation, she 
joined GSK for working in an e�ective QMS implementation role. Maysoon 
also has number of years working on quality assurance knowledge, 
governance and documentation skills in di�erent pharmaceutical 
companies along with GSK Bangladesh. 

M
aysoon Sadeq Chowdhury  I Manager, L

OC Q
ua

lit
y
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As General Manager Prashant Pandey is responsible for overall 
management of the Consumer Healthcare Business (CH) of GSK 
Bangladesh, Myanmar and Nepal. He joined GSK in July 2008 as Nutrition 
Category Head for India. He subsequently moved into the Family Nutrition 
Category Development Director role in July 2013, and then as Marketing 
Director for India in January 2015. In January 2016, he took on the role of 
Area Marketing Lead for Nutrition DH, Expert & Marketing Excellence. 
Under his leadership, the Company has seen many exemplary examples of 
best in class marketing and business turnaround. 

Rakesh Thakur joined GSK Bangladesh Limited in April, 2016 as Head of 
Finance, for the Consumer Healthcare Division. Prior to joining GSK, 
Rakesh worked for 13 years in reputable organisations like Samsung and 
Pepsi in various capacities. As General Manager of Finance Controls at 
Pepsi's Beverages Division, Rakesh set new standards in the Accounting, 
Compliance and Cost monitoring procedures of Pepsi. He also played a 
signi�cant role in Online Trade Business for Samsung Mobile Division. 
Rakesh is a quali�ed Chartered Accountant, and has a Bachelor of 
Commerce degree from University of Delhi.

Md. Naharul Islam Molla joined GSK on May 2016 as Head of Regulatory & 
Corporate A�airs- Myanmar, Bangladesh & Nepal for the Consumer 
Healthcare business. Before joining GSK, he spent 19 years in Nestle 
Bangladesh Limited in various management positions including Expert 
Marketing, Business Excellence, Scienti�c Relations and Code Compliance. 
He did both his graduation and post-graduation from Geology 
Department, University of Dhaka.

Zinnia Tanzina  I  Finance Directo

r
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Rakesh Thakur  I  Head of Finance-M

yBaN
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Zahed joined GSK CH, Bangladesh in April 2013 as Supply Chain Director 
for Bangladesh, Myanmar & Nepal (MyBaN) cluster. As the Supply Chain 
Director, he is responsible for all supply chain related functions of the 
3-country cluster. Prior to joining GSK, he worked at ACI Limited as 
Director - Business Development. He has more than  fourteen years of 
experience in di�erent roles in the supply chain department of British 
American Tobacco ; including the roles of Supply Chain Planning Manager 
& Manufacturing Manager. Zahed graduated from Bangladesh University 
of Engineering & Technology (BUET) in Electrical & Electronic Engineering 
and also has an MBA  degree from IBA, University of Dhaka.

Sujay joined GSK in 1986 as Sales O�cer in North India. He joined the 
Bangladesh team in April 2014, and now as the Sales Director  is 
responsible for the overall Sales Division of GSK CH, Bangladesh and 
Myanmar. Before joining the Bangladesh team he worked in various parts 
of India including Chennai, Mumbai, etc., in both Sales & Trade Marketing. 
Prior to GSK, Sujay worked in Dabur India Ltd., Bennett Coleman, Times of 
India in Delhi. He is a Commerce Graduate from Delhi University with a 
Diploma in Business and Marketing Management.

Zahedur Rahman  I  Supply Chain Dire
cto

r

Ishrat Zerin  I  Director, Legal & Compliance H
ead M

yB
aN

Sujay Kumar Prasad  I  Sales Directo
r

Ishrat joined GSK CH, Bangladesh in 2014 as Head of Legal & Compliance 
for Myanmar, Bangladesh, Prior to joining GSK, she served as Head of 
Compliance Group in Samsung, R&D and had an expanded career as 
corporate legal counsel for over twelve years in various renowned 
organisations like Unilever, Airtel (previously Warid Telecom) and 
GrameenPhone. Ishrat holds degrees from the University of Dhaka, (LL.B. 
and LL.M), the University of London, (LL.B.) and City University, London, 
(BPTC). She was called to the Bar of the Honourable Society of Gray's Inn 
(UK) in 2013, and has been awarded the prestigious title 'Barrister'.
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S.M. Ashrafur Rahman joined GSK Bangladesh in early 2000 as an 
Procurement  Executive. He worked in multiple progressive  roles in di�erent 
functions including Productivity & Packaging Development, Planning, 
Logistics. He  joined the Site Leadership Team as theSite Planning & Supply 
Manager. Ashraf holds a  Post Graduate degree in Business Administration.

S.M
. A

shrafur Rahman  I  Site Planning & Supply
 M

an
ag

er
 

Jobair Hossain joined GSK Bangladesh in July 2016 as Remediation Quality 
Lead and later appointed as Interim Site Quality Assurance Manager in 
November 2016. As the  Site Quality Assurance Manager, Jobair manages the 
overall quality activities as well as Quality Improvement Plan (QIP) of GMS 
Chittagong. He comes with multidimensional experience of more than 16 
years in di�erent sectors. Jobair holds post graduate degree in Microbiology 
from eminent  Indian Universities  and also has an MBA degree with 
specialization in Quality Management. 

Jobair Hossain  I  Site Quality Assurance M
anag

er

Tanvir joined the GSK Site Leadership Team as Site Human Resources Manager 
in May 2013. As HR Generalist, He is responsible for overall HR Operations of 
GMS Chittagong Site. He has more than 13 years of experience in Human 
Resources. He has completed  both Bachelor & Master of Arts from University of 
Dhaka. He has a Post Graduate Diploma in Human Resources Management 
(PGDHRM) from BIM, Dhaka. He also holds an MBA degree with major in Human 
Resources from FBA, University of Science & Technology, Chittagong.

D
ew

an Tanvir Yer Chowdhury  I  Site Human Resourc
es

 M
an

ag
er

Md. Shamsul Alam joind GSK in April 1984 and since then have been serving 
the Company. As the Site Finance Manager he leads the  GMS Finance team and 
is  responsible for Product Costing; Strategic Planning, Forecasting & reporting 
of all GMS Finance related Activities; Financial Risk Management; Project 
Management and ABAC Coordination. Shamsul is a Certi�ed Professional 
Accountant from Institute of Cost & Management Accountant, Bangladesh. 

M
d. Sham

sul Alam  I  Site Finance Manager & ABAC C
oo

rd
in

at
or

Rajib Barua  I  Site Director, GMS- C
hitt

agong

Rajib Barua joined GSK in January 2009 and assumed the position of Site 
Director from March, 2009. As the Site Director and the Head  of the Site 
Leadership Team, Rajib is responsible for all Manufacturing and Site related 
operations of the Company. In order to ensure patient safety, he overlooks 
the supply chain of all local manufacturing and supervises quality control 
safety of production.
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Md. Lokman Hossain joined GSK Bangladesh in February 2002 as Quality Control 
Manager. In his 16 years of service in GSK,  his roles evolved around Head of 
Quality(Interim), Technical Manager, Site Production Manager and �nally has 
been appointed as Head of External Supply & Strategic Projects. He is 
responsible for external supply site & outsourcing opportunity for GSK 
Bangladesh & strategic business projects. Lokman has an MSc degree  in 
Chemistry from  Dhaka  University and also an MBA degree. 

M
d. Lokm

an H
ossain   I  Head of External Supply &

 Str
at

eg
ic

 P
ro

je
ct

s 

Md. Rejwanul Alam Prodhan joined GSK  in July 2015 as Remediation Production 
Lead. From September 2017, he has taken the role of Site Production Manager 
and currently managing site’s overall Production activities. Prior to GSK, he has 
worked for Sano� Bangladesh Ltd and ACI Pharmaceuticals Ltd. Rejwanul  is an  
M.Pharm  with  Specialization in Clinical Pharmacy and Pharmacology from 
Dhaka University and also holds an MBA degree from Institute of Business 
Administration (IBA), Jahangirnagar University. 

M
d. Rejw

anul Alam Prodhan  I  Site Productio
n M

an
ag

er

Mizanul joined GSK team in September 2007 as Procurement Manager  and 
later he was appointed as Procurement  Site Liaison Manager – Bangladesh. 
Mizanul holds a post graduate degree in Physical Inorganic Chemistry from 
Chittagong University and also has an MBA degree from Independent 
University Bangladesh.

M
izanul Islam  I  Procurement Site Liaison M

anag
er

 

Sai Darbha was appointed as Site EHS Lead – GMS Chittagong in July2017. 
Before his current role, Sai held the position of Manager EHS at GSK Nashik 
Site, he worked during the Site EHS improvement journey in remediation and 
sustainability post remediation phases. He joined GSK Nashik Site in Jul 2013, 
prior to which he worked with di�erent multinational & local companies in 
India which include  SAB Miller Plc, Indian Immunologicals Limited, Dr Reddys 
Laboratories, ITC. Sai holds Post-Graduate  degree in Environment 
Engineering from JNTU and  Advanced Diploma in Industrial 

Sai D
arbha  I  Site EHS Lead – GMS Chitt

agong 

Partha joined GSK as Site IT Manager in 2005. Since joining he was engaged in 
development and deployment of di�erent IT Infrastructure and capability at 
Site. He had also taken the Site Risk Management process owner and Major MRP 
and ERP projects lead roles at site. Partha holds Bachelor of Engineering Degree 
in Electronics and Communication from National Institute Of Technology - 
Durgapur, India and MBA in Finance.

Partha Pratim Ghose  I  Site IT M
anager
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M.M. Shah Newaz Chowdhury joined GSK  in August 1997 as Quality 
Assurance O�cer.  In 2006 he became the Functional Head of EHS in his 
role as EHS Manager. Prior to his current role he worked as Sr. Training & 
Safety O�ce and Manager, Training & EHS.  Shah Newaz has an MSc. 
Degree in Organic Chemistry from the University of Chittagong. He also 
has an MBA degree from the Bangladesh Open University (BOU). To further 
hone his professional skill he obtained professional degree on NEBOSH 
Diploma course from Rapid Results College (RRC), UK .

M
.M

. Shah Newaz Chowdhury  I  E
HS M

anag
er

Thomas Costa joined GSK in September 2003 as Management Trainee under 
Production Department and working in di�erent progressive role and �nally  
was appointed as the Site Technical Lead in September 2014. As Technical 
Lead, Thomas is responsible for new product introduction, Technology 
Transfer, Process Robustness, PLM and Packaging Material Development. In 
addition, Thomas also is supporting Site Strategy Deployment for the last 
three years. Thomas is a GSK Certi�ed Auditor and holds both 
Post-Graduation degree in Pharmacy from University of Science and 
Technology, Chittagong (USTC).

Thomas Costa  I  Site Technical L
ead

Surajit joined the GSK team in March 2017 as Site Engineering Manager. In his 
current role, he is responsible for leading the Engineering function as well as 
Asset Management and Capital Project management. Prior to joining GSK, he 
was working as Safety, Health & Environment (SHE) Manager at Nestle 
Bangladesh Limited. His 18 years of work experience include di�erent roles 
with LINDE Bangladesh Ltd. & Haroon Engineering Ltd. in the �eld of 
Engineering & Project, Manufacturing and Safety, Health & Environment 
(SHE). Surajit has done his B. Sc. in Mechanical Engineering from Bangladesh 
University of Engineering & Technology (BUET). 

Surajit Kumar Saha  I  Site Engineering M

anage
r

Usen Mya  I  Site GPS Lead

Usen Mya joined GSK in January 2005 as a Management Trainee. She 
started her GSK journey in Topicals Manufacturing & Packaging section. In 
2011, she was appointed as Manager Topicals. Currently she is appointed 
as Site GPS Lead . As a Site GPS Lead, she is responsible for implementation 
of GSK Production System in GMS, Chittagong. She is also the Women 
Empowerment Board Advisor for GMS Site. Usen has completed her B. 
Pharm from Jahangirnagar University, Dhaka and M. Pharm from Southern 
University, Chittagong. She is a registered Pharmacist under Pharmacy 
Council of Bangladesh.
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The Board of Directors of GlaxoSmithKline Bangladesh 
Limited has the pleasure of submitting the annual 
report together with the Company’s audited �nancial 
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Directors’ Report has been prepared in accordance 
with Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission (BSEC) 
Noti�cation No SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/134/ADMIN/44 
dated 7th August 2012 and Section 184 of The Companies 
Act 1994. This report is being submitted to the members at 
the 45th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be 
held on 19 April 2018.

Challenges to both Consumer Healthcare and the 
Pharmaceuticals business deepened in 2017. 
Consumer Healthcare integrated various strategies to 
combat external challenges and enabled a 
commendable turnaround of the business. The 
pharmaceuticals business e�orts were driven by 
patient focus and compliance initiatives. Throughout 
the year, the Company continued to operate against 
increased regulatory complexities, supply challenges 
and enhanced market competitiveness to ensure 
maximum delivery of shareholder value. This report 
highlights the key business activities that the Company 
carried out and presents the necessary disclosure in 
relation to good corporate governance. 

1. Consumer Healthcare

Industry Outlook and Possible Future 
Developments
In 2017, Fast Moving Consumer Goods (FMCG) market, 
valued at TK. 267 bn grew by 5.8% (Source: Nielsen). 
Major contributions came from Non-food Categories 
(46% of FMCG) which grew in value by 7.1%, while Food 
Category (52% of FMCG) grew by 4.8%. Health Food 
Drinks (HFD) valued at Tk.3.3bn showed �at  growth in 
terms of volume in 2017 over 2016. However, GSK 
continued to gain dominance and further strengthened 
its market share of 92.1% in the Health Food Drink 
Category, which is 4% higher than 2016.

Business Performance
The Consumer Healthcare business of the Company has 
grown by 10.3% in 2017, primarily led by strong growth 
in Horlicks at 6.3% and Sensodyne at 76%. In 2017, sales 
growth was encouraging in the second half of the year, 
boosted by a downside in parallel imports and 
improved consumption, which led to 17% secondary 
sales growth in H2’17 viz. single digit growth at 6% in 
H1’17. Furthermore, the Company continued to 
emphasize food and nutrition through di�erent media 

campaigns. Better value for money o�ers were 
provided on key products that we believe will 
strengthen brand loyalty among customers. We have 
gained market share by 4.0% and maintained a 
dominance of 92.1% in the Health Food Drink Category. 
On parallel imports, the Company continued to engage 
with authorities to take legal steps in order to stem the 
�ow of parallel imports.

Horlicks continued to be in the list of top Brands in 
Bangladesh across all categories. Horlicks was the 2nd 
most loved brand and No.1 Brand in Health Food Drink 
Category held under the auspices of Bangladesh Brand 
Forum. This award is a recognition of the brand’s 
consistent delivery of its ‘Promise of Nutrition’ to the 
consumers. 

Sensodyne continued to grow and expand its reach 
and its urban penetration has reached to 7%.

Your Company is committed to be driving the initiative 
of providing access to good nutrition in Bangladesh.

2. Pharmaceutical Business

Industry Outlook and Possible Future 
Developments
The market size for Pharmaceuticals in Bangladesh was 
estimated at around Tk 190 bn by the end of 2017.
The long-term market volume growth appears to be 
stabilizing at around 10% (5Y CAGR). The growth in 
value is higher, projected at around 15% by the 
industry experts for the next couple of years.   
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This is predominantly, driven by the rise of the higher 
priced newer generation molecules and categories. 
Furthermore, the quick introduction of generic versions 
of such advanced molecules by local manufacturers, 
gaining early adoption and popularity amongst 
physicians and patients (under the prevailing patent 
waiver for Bangladesh) and a supportive regulatory 
framework for local manufacturing have supported this 
projection. Recently the industry saw success in exports 
to highly regulated markets like US by local 
manufacturers. At the same time, the industry saw a 
signi�cant focus on expanding manufacturing facilities 
for di�cult-to-make products like biosimilars (e.g. 
vaccines). Meanwhile, the long-awaited API (Active 
Pharmaceutical Ingredient) Park is now ready to go live. 
With such a favourable backward integration 
infrastructure, advanced �nished products 
manufacturing capabilities and patent waiver 
extended till 2032 by WTO (World Trade Organization), 
the Pharmaceuticals industry in Bangladesh will 
continue to remain particularly attractive for local 
generic manufacturers over the next decade.

Business Performance
In 2017, the Pharmaceuticals business went through a 
mixed bag of successes and challenges. Production 
capacity and supply reliability of our locally 
manufactured products at the Chittagong site 
improved signi�cantly in the second half of the year 
through introduction of additional shift for the topical 
line. This resulted in a modest business growth of 4%. 
The heritage Betnovate range, despite being in a 
highly-matured category, registered double digit 
growth. However, the success of locally manufactured 
products was mostly o�set by challenges with the 
imported portfolio.  The latter drives better value for 
the business compared to the volume driving local 
portfolio, mostly consisting of low price classic drugs, 
requiring disproportionate commercial resources.

Respiratory and allergy, the key therapy areas for GSK 
Bangladesh, came across unprecedented challenges in 
2017. Seretide Evohaler and Engerix B, two of our 
�agship brands, faced signi�cant import restrictions 
resulting in double digit negative growth. The locally 
manufactured Ventolin managed to register growth. 
However, this could not o�set the loss of value incurred 
due to the absence of Seretide.

Vaccines, the other key therapy area for GSK 
Bangladesh, had remarkable success in registering 
double digit growth for relatively newer vaccines like 
Cervarix and Rotarix. However, the higher-value 
higher-equity vaccine brand Engerix-B faced similar 
import restrictions like Seretide Evohaler. Finally, 
reintroduction of Varilrix and Rabipur, although much 
delayed by increased procedural complexities in 
pricing approval and lot release of vaccines, helped the 
vaccines portfolio end the year with some positive 
growth.

To overcome the external challenges, the Company 
continues to engage with relevant authorities and 
stakeholders to foster a level playing �eld for 
multinational companies while driving access to high 
quality global medicines for the patients in Bangladesh.

3. Manufacturing
 
2017 was a challenging year for the GMS in Chittagong 
due to restricted raw material supply, increased internal 
compliance and regulatory expectations for 
manufacturing and supply operations. For the �rst time 
at the Site, three full shift operations in topical 
manufacturing and packing were initiated to support 
the commercial business opportunity in 2017.
 
The Site has been on a journey to improve and sustain 
quality systems and procedures, technical and 
production facilities, organisational capability and 
culture over the last few years. This has been supported
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through extensive Quality Improvement Programs 
(QIP). In 2017 the Chittagong site achieved an 
important milestone by successfully completing its 
remediation program.

The Site continued to invest in 2017 and upgrade the 
facility by extending capacity in line with 
Pharmaceutical compliance requirements under 
current Good Manufacturing Practice (cGMP). Several 
initiatives were undertaken to ensure Data Integrity (DI) 
by investing in GSK systems like One CDS 
(Chromatographic Data System), CDMS (Controlled 
Document Management System) and CMMS 
(Computerized Maintenance Management System). 

In order to build a strong safety culture and as part of 
the Safety Improvement Program (SIP), GMS 
Chittagong closed out on the identi�ed Occupational 
Hygiene, Machinery Physical guarding, Physical 
segregation of pedestrian movement, and Health 
related issues. The Site ended 2017 with “Zero” Lost 
Time Injury and Illness (LTI&I) cases. This is the result of 
closing unsafe conditions, unsafe behaviour and near 
misses as part of the Zero Accident Promotion (ZAP) 
program. The Site has realised signi�cant improvement 
in Water savings, achieving 9% improvement versus 
previous year. 

We will continue to embed new ways of working to 
simplify our operations and improve e�ectiveness and 
e�ciency.  We are also committed to embedding a 
robust compliance culture, living and acting in line with 
GSK values, focusing on health, safety and the 
environment, delivering customer service for the 
bene�t of patients.

4. GSK People
The Human Resources (HR) team is relentlessly 
supporting the business to embed a performance 
driven culture and GSK’s new ways of working.
 

GSK Bangladesh continued its journey of employer 
branding across di�erent universities, and I am pleased 
to share that Nielsen Campus Recruiter Index 2016 has 
ranked GSK amongst the top 10 most preferred 
companies to work for across all industries.
 
The Company continued its �agship ‘Future Leaders 
Programme’ (FLP) across all Business Units (BU). This 
year we hired four new FLP trainees for Consumer 
Healthcare, Pharmaceutical and Global Manufacturing 
& Supply (GMS). We are delighted to share that two of 
the FLP trainees from this intake were inducted in GSK’s 
Global ‘Graduate Advisory Board’, a testament to high 
quality FLP trainees from Bangladesh.



In 2017, as per commitment to develop our line 
managers’ capability a number of  workshops were 
organized for our First Line Leaders (FLL) and First Line 
Sales Leader (FLSL). A number of trainings were rolled 
out for the employees in 2017 which include; Practical 
Coaching at Workplace programme focusing on 
developing line managers coaching capability; 
Employee Resilience Training focusing  on equipping 
employees to handle multi-tasking and demanding 
tasks; and Energy for Performance focusing on creating 
awareness on physical and mental wellbeing to keep 
oneself �t and healthy.

Diversity and Women’s empowerment continues to be 
an area of focus for the Company. Under this initiative, 
the Company has created platforms for female 
employees to promote personal development and 
drive contribution to the business. Finally, the 
Chittagong team also won the regional GPS champions 
awards in South Asia.

The Company continued its engagement initiatives 
with employees through Lets Talk sessions where 
performance and challenges of the company were 
shared and employees were encouraged to share their 
views. At the Annual Conferences, the business units 
shared the functional strategies to meet Company 
objectives. In 2017, GSK achieved signi�cant 
improvement in employee engagement scores across 
all BUs, re�ecting continued e�orts to improve the 
work environment and building employee capability.

5. Financial Results
The Directors take pleasure in reporting the �nancial 
results of the Company for the year ended 31 
December 2017.

Net Sales of the Company amounted to Tk 6,797mn, 
against Tk 6,284mn last year. This represents an 8.2% 
growth from 2016. Both business segments of 
Pharmaceuticals and Consumer Healthcare faced 
enhanced regulatory challenges. Consumer Healthcare 
posted a recovery in H2 through strong uptake in the 
market. On the other hand, the Pharmaceuticals 
business has posted low growth due to increased 
disruptions in the supply chain. The cost of sales across 
the businesses has increased signi�cantly to support 
high standards of raw and packaging materials, as well 
as increased manufacturing expenses from past 
investments in upgradation of facilities. Operating 
expenses were maintained below in�ationary rates 
through rationalisation of discretionary expenses. 
Overall, pro�t after tax increased by 3.8% and stood at 
Tk 669mn. Correspondingly, EPS (Earnings per Share)  
increased from Tk 53.51 to Tk 55.56 for the reported 
year.

6. Dividend
In consideration of the above, the Board of Directors 
recommended a �nal dividend of 550% i.e Tk.55.00 per 
share of Tk 10.00 each for the year 2017. The 
recommended dividend, if approved by the members 
at the Annual General Meeting, will involve a cash 
out�ow of Tk 662.55 mn.

7. Directors’ Disclosures and Declarations
The full �nancial statements are presented in a later 
section of the Annual Report, along with the full notes 
of disclosures. The Board of Directors is further pleased 
to present to you the following disclosures:
a) The �nancial statement prepared by the 

management of the Company presents fairly its state 
of a�airs, the result of its operations, cash �ows and 
changes in equity;

b) Proper books of accounts of the Company have been 
maintained;

c) Appropriate accounting policies have been 
consistently applied in preparation of the �nancial 
statements and that the accounting estimates are 
based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

d) International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as 
applicable in Bangladesh have been followed in 
preparation of the �nancial statements and any 
departure there-from has been adequately 
disclosed;

e) There is no signi�cant variance between Quarterly 
Financial Performance and Annual Financial 
Statements;

f ) All deviations from the last year’s operating results of 
the Company have been highlighted under the 
above point (e);
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Revenue
Cost of Sales
Gross Pro�t
Pro�t before taxation 
Less: Provision for taxation
Net Pro�t after tax
Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax
Add: Unappropriated pro�t 
brought forward from previous year
Total amount available for distribution 
Appropriations:
Dividend paid for the previous year
Closing retained earnings at the year-end
Proposed dividend for the year 
(2017: 550%; 2016: 500%)
Retained earnings after proposed dividend

6,796,559
(4,161,052)

2,635,507
947,601

(278,297)
669,304
(22,434)

2,400,693
3,047,563

(602,322)
2,445,240
(662,555)

1,782,685

6,284,015
(3,834,031)

2,449,984
845,559

(201,005)
644,554

-

2,418,694
3,063,248

(662,555)
2,400,693
(602,322)

1,798,371

Particulars 2017 2016

Figures in Tk 000
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Mr. David Pritchard

Ms. Erum Shakir Rahim

Mr. Masud Khan

Ms. Zinnia Tanzina Huq

Mr. Rajib Barua

Mr. Gopalakrishnan
Venkatramani

Mr. Prashant Pandey

Mr. Md Iftikhar-
uz-zaman

Mr. Kazi Sanaul Hoq

Mr. Md. Mesbah
Ul Hoque

Name of Directors Remarks

Retired with e�ect from
22nd October 2017.

Appointed with e�ect from
22nd October 2017.

Retired with e�ect from
22nd October 2017.

Appointed with e�ect from
22nd October 2017.

Resigned with e�ect  from
1st  September 2017.

Number of
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6

6

6

6

6
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  1

5

1

5
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1

5

6

6

5

1

  1

5

1
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g) All transactions with related parties have been made 
on a commercial basis and the basis was the principle 
of “Arm’s Length Transactions”. Related party 
transactions have been presented in notes to the 
Financial Statements;

h) During the year, the Company has paid a total of Tk. 
200,000 as Board meeting attendance fees. The 
remuneration of Directors has been mentioned in  the 
notes to the Financial Statements;

i) There is no extra-ordinary gain or loss during the year;
j) Utilization of proceeds from public issues is not 

applicable;
k) Explanation of �nancial results after IPO is not 

applicable;
l) The summarized key operating and �nancial data for 

the �ve years (2013-2017) is set out in Annexure-I. 

The Directors also report that:
a) The Managing Director and Finance Director have 

certi�ed to the Board that they have reviewed the 
�nancial statements for the year, and to the best of 
their knowledge, believe that these statements do not 
contain any materially untrue statements or omit any 
material fact or contain statements that might be 
misleading;

b) The Managing Director and Finance Director have 
certi�ed to the Board that they have reviewed the 
�nancial statements for the year, and to the best of 
their knowledge believe that these statements 
together present a true and fair view of the company’s 
a�airs and are in compliance with existing accounting 
standards and applicable laws;

c) The Managing Director and Finance Director have 
further certi�ed to the Board that there are, to the best 
of their knowledge and belief, no transactions entered 
into by the company during the year which are 
fraudulent, illegal or violation of the Company’s Code 
of Conduct.

8. Risks & Concerns
The Company has a robust system of managing its 
business risk which has been described under the 
Corporate Governance Chapter and the notes to the 
Financial Statements.

9. Internal Control
The Company maintains a sound internal control system 
which gives reasonable assurance against any material 
misstatement of loss. The internal control framework is 
regularly reviewed by the Audit Committee in each 
meeting and reported to the Board of Directors. Further, 
the Company Executive Committee also reviews the 
internal controls and risk management process on a 
quarterly basis. This year, the Pharmaceutical Commercial 
operations were subject to a GSK Global Audit. The Audit 
appreciated a high level of proactivity and focus on the 
overall compliance environment.  No major �ndings were 

observed and recommendations were provided for 
improving the control framework. This report further 
encloses a detailed discussion on the internal control 
framework under the Statement of Internal Control.

10. Going Concern
The Directors are of the opinion that the Company is a 
going concern and there are no signi�cant doubts upon 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
Accordingly, Financial Statements are prepared on a 
going concern basis. 

11. Contribution to the National Exchequer 
Every year the Company makes a signi�cant contribution 
to the National Exchequer in the form of duties and taxes. 
During the year 2017, GlaxoSmithKline Bangladesh 
Limited contributed to the government exchequer a sum 
of. Tk. 1,994 mn. 

12. Board of Directors and Shareholding 
Information
 
Composition and Size of the Board
As of 31 December 2017, there were seven members on 
the Board. The Board comprises of Executive and 
Non-Executive Directors. The Non-Executive Directors 
bring independent judgement in the Board’s 
deliberations and decisions. Four Directors, including the 
Managing Director, are Executive Directors. There are 
three Non-Executive Directors, out of which one is 
Independent Director. Due to a vacancy arising during 
the year 2017, an Independent Director was appointed 
on 1 February 2018 to satisfy the condition of Corporate 
Governance guidelines issued by BSEC.
 
Board Meetings and Attendance
During the year 2017, 6 (Six) meetings were held. The 
following table shows the composition of the Board and 
members attendance at the Board meetings:
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The members who could not attend the meeting were 
granted leave of absence.
 
Details of Directors being Appointed/Re-appointed:
Pursuant to the section 91(2) of The Companies Act, 
1994 and Article No. 85 of The Articles of Association of 
the Company, one-third of the Directors excluding the 
Managing Director should be retiring by rotation at 
every Annual General Meeting and if eligible, qualify for 
re-election.

Accordingly, the Director retiring by rotation is Ms. 
Zinnia Tanzina Huq, who being eligible, o�ers herself 
for re-election.

Pursuant to The Article No. 89 of The Articles of 
Association of the Company, Directors appointed at 
Casual Vacancy or as Additional Directors should be 
retiring in the ensuing Annual General Meeting and if  
eligible, qualify for re-election.

Accordingly, Mr. Prashant Pandey and Mr. Kazi Sanaul 
Hoq, having been appointed to the Board since the last 
Annual General Meeting, retire and being eligible, o�er 
themselves for re-election.

Pursuant to the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 
Commission Noti�cation No. 
SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/Admin/44 dated 7 August 
2012, the Board appointed Mr. Mohsin Uddin Ahmed, 
Managing Director of LINDE Bangladesh Ltd. as an 
Independent Director with e�ect from 1 February 2018. 
As per said Noti�cation, the Company will seek the 
approval of the appointment of such Director from 
members who will attended in the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting.

The brief resume of Ms. Zinnia Tanzina Huq, Mr. 
Prashant Pandey, Mr. Kazi Sanaul Hoq and Mr. Mohsin 
Uddin Ahmed are given below:

Zinnia Tanzina Huq
Ms. Zinnia Tanzina Huq has been with GSK Bangladesh 
Limited since August 2014. She was inducted into the 
Board in November 2014 as the Finance Director, GSK 
Bangladesh. She has 17 years of experience as a �nance 
professional in progressive leadership roles. Prior to 
joining GSK, she worked in British American Tobacco in 
Bangladesh. Ms. Zinnia also worked for British 
American Tobacco, Singapore Supply Hub as the 
Finance Lead. She is a quali�ed accountant from the 
Chartered Institute of Management Accounts, UK and is 
also a member of the Institute of Cost and 
Management Accountants of Bangladesh and Institute 
of Internal Auditors, Bangladesh. Zinnia is a business 

graduate from the Institute of Business Administration 
(IBA), University of Dhaka.

Prashant Pandey
Mr. Prashant Pandey was inducted into the GSK 
Bangladesh Board in October 2017.  Currently he holds 
the role of General Manager of MyBan (Myanmar, 
Bangladesh, Nepal). Prior to this role, he was the Area 
Marketing Director for Nutrition & Digestive Health 
category, Expert Sales & Marketing and Marketing 
Excellence, and was based in Gurgaon, India. Mr. 
Prashant joined GSK in July 2008 as Nutrition Category 
Head for India. He subsequently moved into the Family 
Nutrition Category Development Director role in July 
2013, and then as Marketing Director for India in 
February 2015.  He holds a Post Graduate Diploma in 
Business Management from IMT Ghaziabad, India, 1995. 
His full resume is included in the Directors’ Pro�le.

Kazi Sanaul Hoq
Mr. Kazi Sanaul Hoq was inducted into the GSK 
Bangladesh Board in October 2017. He assumed the 
position of Managing Director of Investment 
Corporation of Bangladesh (ICB) on 10 August, 2017. 
Prior to this role, he was the Managing Director at 
Rajshahi Krishi Unnayan Bank (RAKUB). Over his 34 years 
of professional career, he was also the Managing 
Director (Current Charge) and Deputy Managing 
Director at Agrani Bank Ltd. In addition, Kazi Sanaul Hoq 
served as General Manager at Bangladesh Development 
Bank Limited (BDBL) and RAKUB. He also served as CEO 
at ICB Securities Trading Company Ltd. He holds a 
Masters degree with B.com Honours in Accounting from 
The University of Dhaka. Mr. Hoq serves the Board of 
several top organisations of the country. His full resume 
is included in the Director’s Pro�le.

Mohsin Uddin Ahmed
Mr. Mohsin Uddin Ahmed was inducted in the GSK 
Bangladesh Board in February 2018.  He holds the 
position of Managing Director of LINDE Bangladesh 
Limited from January 2017. Prior to joining LINDE 
Bangladesh, he was the President at Emami Group for 
its SAARC Countries’ business operations. Mr. Mohsin 
started his career with British American Tobacco (BAT) 
where he spent about �ve years in various roles under 
Trade Marketing & Distribution function. During his 22 
years career, he worked both localy and abroad in 
Nestle Bangladesh Ltd and Unilever Bangladesh Ltd. 
Mr. Mohsin holds a Masters degree in Applied Physics & 
Electronics from the University of Dhaka. His full 
resume is included in the Directors’ Pro�le.
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Audit Committee:
As per stipulation of the Bangladesh Securities and 
Exchange Commission (BSEC) guidelines, the Board has 
constituted an Audit Committee which governs the 
internal control framework of the Company. The 
Committee comprises of 1 Independent Non-Executive 
Director (Chairman), 1 Non-Executive Director and the 
Managing Director. The Audit Committee met 4 times in 
the year. The Company Secretary acted as the secretary 
to the Audit Committee. Further details of the Audit 
Committee’s responsibilities are included in the Audit 
Committee Report.
 
Remuneration to Directors:
The remuneration, performance and related bonus of 
Executive Directors are reviewed and approved by the 
above country management.

The Executive Directors and some senior employees of 
the Company are entitled to Share Value Plan of 
GlaxoSmithKline plc, UK.
 
Independent and Non-Executive Directors other than 
Directors who are in the employment of the 
GlaxoSmithKline Group Companies are paid 
attendance fees of Tk.10,000 per meeting as 
remuneration.

The details of the remuneration paid to the Executive 
Directors during the year are given in Notes-30 of the 
Financial Statements.

Shareholding Information:
The shareholding information as at 31 December 2017 
and other related information are set out in 
Annexure-II.

Shareholders/Investors Grievance:
During the year under review, the Company received 
some complaints regarding on time receipt of Annual 
Reports and dividend from the shareholders. These 
concerns have been resolved duly.

13. Corporate Responsibilities

The Company’s commitment towards the community 
was reinforced this year with further expansion of 
healthcare initiatives in the country. In addition, the 
Company also responded to the Myanmar Refugee 
crisis in Cox’s Bazar, through support of its parent 
Company, GSK plc. 

Some key initiatives include:
Reinvestment of 20% of pro�ts for Healthcare 
Infrastructure development in Bangladesh:

This is a Public Private Partnership between Ministry of 
Health, GSK and CARE. To date, the initiative has 
empowered 300 skilled birth attendants and 3,000 
Community Health workers in Sunamganj District. The 
initiative has delivered very important milestones in 
the overall Maternal Child Health Sector in project area 
and made a positive change in overall health seeking 
behaviour.  

Our partners include CARE, M&S, Friendship, icddr, b 
and the Ministry of Health and Family Welfare.

Key projects include: 
o GSK-CARE Community Health Worker Initiative
o GSK-FRIENDSHIP m-Health project
o GSK-icddr,b Health System Strengthening Program
o GSK CARE RMG (Ready Made Garments) Healthcare 

Program
o GSK, M&S, CARE Health Access and Linkage 

Opportunities for Workers (HALOW) Project 

Details of these initiatives are provided in CSR Section.

The Duke of Edinburgh’s Awards (DEA)
The Company continued its support as one of the 
Founding Trustees of this international program. The 
program aims at providing the new generation with life 
skills and opportunity to participate in di�erent 
extracurricular activities. This international award is 
now accessible at more than 80 private and public 
educational institutions in Dhaka, Chittagong and 
other divisional cities in the country. More than 15,000 
awardees across the country are now part of the global 
DEA Alumni group.

 14. Code of Conduct
 
The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted a 
Code of Conduct for the Directors and All employees. 
All employees are required to abide by the ethical code 
of conduct in relation to business and regulations. 
Throughout 2017, employees have demonstrated 
living the GSK values of Integrity, Respect for People, 
Patient/Consumer Focus and Transparency. 
Furthermore, 2017 unveiled the four new expectations 
from all employees: Accountability, Courage, 
Development and Teamwork. All employees are 
expected to demonstrate the above in their day-to-day 
operations. 
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The Sales and Marketing employees are further subject 
to an Emerging Markets and Asia Paci�c Promotion  and 
Marketing Code which has become �rmly established 
as the cornerstone of Performance in line with the 
Integrity value. GSK requires that its sales and 
marketing employees not only follow the letter of the 
Code, but enthusiastically embrace its spirit with a �rm 
policy of zero tolerance to deviations.

The Company has in place a Whistle Blower Policy 
named ‘Speak Up’ pursuant to which employees are 
empowered to promptly raise concerns of possible 
misconduct, potential con�icts or known breaches of 
the GSK Code of Conduct, company policies and 
procedures. A supplementary policy of 
“Non-retaliation” ensures that employees can raise such 
concerns without risking any kind of reprisal.   

15. Auditors

The present auditors, Messrs ACNABIN Chartered 
Accountants, will retire and are not eligible for further 
re-appointment as per Bangladesh Securities and 
Exchange Commission order no. 
SEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/Admin, dated 27 July 2011. 
The Board recommends Messrs Hoda Vasi Chowdhury 
& Co Chartered Accountants as the auditor of the 
Company for the year 2018 for approval at the Annual 
General Meeting.

16. Corporate Governance Compliance 
Report

As part of its corporate policy, GSK Bangladesh always 
strives to maintain high standards of compliance in 
corporate governance. The Company’s Corporate 
Governance Charter, outlined in the Corporate 
Governance section, outlines the way in which the 
Company will be operated and managed, and the 
process in place to ensure high standards of 
transparency, accountability and integrity.

We are pleased to con�rm that the Company has 
complied with all necessary guidelines in accordance 
with the requirement of SEC Noti�cation No. 
SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/134/Admin/44 dated 07 August 
2012, with the exception that one of the Independent 
Director’s post was vacant for more than 90 days.  
However, the position was �lled within 153 days of 
vacancy. The Company proactively noti�ed the 
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) 
of the delay in appointing an Independent Director.  The 
Corporate Governance Compliance Report for 2017 is 
attached in Annexure-III, along with the Certi�cate of 
Compliance required under said Guidelines. 
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who exempli�ed the GSK spirit of putting patients and 
consumers �rst. The team has worked tirelessly within 
the constraints to provide appropriate information and 
ensure product availability for patients, consumers and 
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uphold this trust that we hold so dear.

GSK in Bangladesh would like to express its heartfelt 
thanks to all its stakeholders, including The Bangladesh 
Securities and Exchange Commission, The Dhaka Stock 
Exchange Limited, the Bangladesh Investment 
Development Authority, the Ministry of Health, the 
Ministry of Labour, the Central Depository Bangladesh 
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Utility Providers, various Government authorities and 
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On behalf of the Board

David Pritchard                                     Erum Shakir Rahim 
Chairman                                                                Managing Director 
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GlaxoSmithKline evsjv‡`k wjwg‡UW-Gi cwiPvjbv 
cwil` 2017 mv‡ji 31 wW‡m¤^i, mgvß A_©eQ‡ii †Kv¤cvwbi 
evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`b Ges wbixw¶Z Avw_©K weeiY GK‡hv‡M 
Avb‡›`i mv‡_ Dc¯’vcb Ki‡Q|

cwiPvjK‡`i GB cÖwZ‡e`bwU evsjv‡`k wmwKDwiwUR A¨vÛ 
G·‡PÄ Kwgkb (weGmBwm)-Gi 7 AvM÷ 2012 Zvwi‡Li 
GmBwm/wmGgAviAviwmwW/2006-158/134/GWwgb/44 b¤^i 
cÖÁvcb Ges †Kv¤cvwb AvBb 1994-Gi 184 b¤^i Aby‡”Q` 
Abymv‡i MwVZ n‡q‡Q| D³ cÖwZ‡e`bwU 19 GwcÖj, 2018 
Zvwi‡L AbywôZe¨ †Kv¤cvwbi PzqvwƏkZg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq 
Dcw¯’Z m`m¨‡`i Kv‡Q Dc¯’vcb Kiv n‡e|

2017 mv‡j KbRy¨gvi †nj_‡Kqvi Ges dvg©vwmDwUK¨vjm 
e¨emv Dfq †¶‡ÎB cÖwZØw›ØZv AviI MfxiZi n‡q‡Q| evwn¨K 
evav¸‡jv‡K cÖwZnZ Ki‡Z Ges e¨emvq GKwU cÖksmbxq 
cwieZ©b Avb‡Z KbRy¨gvi †nj_‡Kqvi wewfbœ †KŠkj‡K 
mgwš^Z K‡i‡Q| dvg©vwmDwUK¨vjm e¨emvi D‡`¨vMmg~n  
†ivMx‡`i ¯^v_© msiÿ‡Y g‡bvwb‡ek Ges K¤úøv‡qÝ 
wbwðZKi‡Yi gva¨‡g cwiPvwjZ n‡q‡Q| †kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i 
m‡e©v”P  gybvdv wbwðZ Kivi Rb¨ †e‡o hvIqv AvBbMZ 
RwUjZv, mieiv‡ni cÖwZØw›ØZv Ges ewa©Z cÖwZ‡hvwMZvg~jK 
evRv‡ii gy‡LI †Kv¤cvwb Zvi m‡ev©”P cÖ‡Póv Pvwj‡q †M‡Q| GB 
cÖwZ‡e`bwU †Kv¤cvwb KZ…©K m¤cvw`Z cÖavb cÖavb e¨emvwqK 
Kvh©µgmg~n Zz‡j ai‡Q Ges K‡c©v‡iU wbqš¿Y m¤cwK©Z 
cÖ‡qvRbxq Z_¨vewj Dc¯’vcb Ki‡Q|

1| KbRy¨gvi †nj_‡Kqvi

wkíLv‡Zi MwZ cÖK…wZ I fwel¨Z m¤¢vebv
2017 mv‡j 267 wewjqb UvKvi dv÷ gywfs KbRy¨gvi ¸W&m 
(GdGgwmwR)-Gi evRvi e„w× †c‡q‡Q 5.8% (Drmt 
Nielsen)| wmsnfvM Ae`vb G‡m‡Q bb-dzW K¨v‡UMwi 
(GdGgwmwR Gi 46%) †_‡K hvi UvKvi As‡K cÖe„w× 7.1%, 
†hLv‡b dzW K¨v‡UMwii cÖe„w× (GdGgwmwR-Gi 52%) 4.8%| 
2017 mv‡j wewµZ cwigv‡bi wnmv‡e 3.3 wewjqb g~‡j¨i 
†nj_ dzW wWªsKm (GBPGdwW)-Gi cÖe„w× wQj 2016 mv‡ji 
mgvb| ZviciI GSK Zvi AR©b Ae¨vnZ †i‡L‡Q Ges †nj_ 
dzW wWªsKm K¨v‡UMwi‡Z Zvi 92.1% gv‡K©U †kqvi‡K AviI 
kw³kvjx K‡i‡Q, hv wKbv 2016 A‡c¶v 4% †ewk|

e¨emvwqK cvid‡g©Ý
2017 mv‡j †Kv¤cvwbi KbRy¨gvi †nj_‡Kqvi e¨emv e„w× 
†c‡q‡Q 10.3%, cÖv_wgKfv‡e hv‡K †bZ…Z¡ w`‡q‡Q 
Horlicks-Gi 6.3% Ges Sensodyne-Gi 76% 
kw³kvjx cÖe„w×| mgvšÍivj Avg`vwbi wbҚgyLxZv Ges †fv³v‡`i 

AwaKZi e¨envi 2017 mv‡ji wØZxqv‡a© weµq cÖe„w×‡Z 
mnvqZv K‡iwQj, d‡j H2’17-G 17% †m‡KÛvwi weµq e„w× 
†c‡qwQj, hv H1’17-G wQj 6%| AwaKš‘, †KvҜvwbwU wewfbœ 
MYgva¨‡g cÖPviYvi Øviv Lv`¨ I cywó‡Z ¸iæZ¡ †`Iqv Ae¨vnZ 
†i‡L‡Q| Avgiv wek¦vm Kwi, †h mKj cÖavb cÖavb cY¨ 
†µZv‡`i g‡a¨ eª¨v‡Ûi cÖwZ Av¯’v `„p Ki‡e †m¸‡jv‡K mvkªqx 
Kiv n‡q‡Q| Avgiv AwZwi³ 4.0% gv‡K©U †kqvi AR©b K‡iwQ 
Ges †nj_ dzW wWªsK K¨v‡UMwi‡Z 92.1% ‡kqvi eRvq 
†i‡LwQ| mgvšÍivj Avg`vwbi cÖevn‡K _vgv‡Z AvBbx c`‡¶c 
†bIqvi Rb¨ †KvҜvwbwU h_vh_ KZ©…c‡¶i mv‡_ mgš^q mvab 
Ae¨vnZ †i‡L‡Q|

mKj K¨v‡UMwii g‡a¨ Horlicks evsjv‡`‡k kxl© eª¨vÛ¸‡jvi 
ZvwjKvq bvg a‡i †i‡L‡Q| evsjv‡`k eª¨vÛ †dvivg-Gi 
we‡ePbvq Horlicks wQj †`‡ki wØZxq m‡e©v”P cQ‡›`i eª¨vÛ 
Ges †nj_ dzW K¨v‡UMwi‡Z 1 b¤^i eª¨vÛ| †fv³v‡`i cÖwZ 
Òcywói A½xKviÓ ev¯Íevq‡b wbiew”Qbœ cÖZ¨‡qi GwU GKwU 
¯^xK…wZ ¯^iƒc|

Sensodyne-Gi cÖe„w× Ae¨nZ i‡q‡Q, Gi cÖmvi evo‡Q 
Ges knivÂ‡j Gi AbycÖ‡ek 7%-Gi N‡i †cŠŧ‡Q †M‡Q|

evsjv‡`‡k mwVK cywói cÖvc¨Zv wbwðZ Ki‡Z cÖ‡qvRbxq 
D‡`¨vM MÖn‡Y †Kv¤cvwb cÖwZÁve×|
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2 | dvg©vwmDwUK¨vj e¨emv
wkíLv‡Zi MwZwewa I m¤¢vebv
2017 mvj †k‡l evsjv‡`‡ki dvg©vwmDwUK¨vjm evRv‡ii 
AvbygvwbK AvKvi wQj cÖvq 190 wewjqb UvKv| `xN©©-†gqv‡` 
evRv‡ii AvKvi (weµqK…Z Ily‡ai cwigv‡Yi wnmv‡e) cÖe„w× 
10% Gi KvQvKvwQ G‡m w¯’i n‡”Q e‡j cÖwZqgvb n‡”Q (5 
eQ‡ii wmGwRAvi)| UvKvi As‡K Gi cÖe„w× Av‡iv †ewk, 
AvMvgx eQi¸‡jv‡Z †mwU 15% Gi KvQvKvwQ _vK‡e e‡j 
wkí we‡klÁ‡`i Abygvb| GUv cÖavbZ bZzb ai‡bi Ilya 
evRviRvZKiY I D”P g~j¨ K¨v‡UMwii cÖe„w× Øviv cwiPvwjZ| 
¯’vbxq cÖ¯‘ZKviK‡`i gva¨‡g G ai‡bi DbœZ ms¯‹i‡Yi 
Ily‡ai `ªæZ cwiwPwZ, wPwKrmK Ges †ivMx‡`i g‡a¨ Gi 
AskMÖnY I RbwcÖqZv AR©b Ges ¯’vbxq cÖ¯‘ZKviK‡`i Rb¨ 
GKwU mnvqK bxwZ wbqš¿Y (evsjv‡`‡ki Rb¨ weivRgvb 
†c‡U›U ¯^Z¡Z¨v‡Mi Aaxb) GB Abygvb‡K wfwË w`‡q‡Q| 
mv¤cÖwZK mg‡q ¯’vbxq cÖ¯‘ZKvi‡Kiv Av‡gwiKvi g‡Zv 
wbqwš¿Z evRv‡i Ilya ißvwb K‡i mdjZvi gyL †`L‡Q| GKB 
mg‡q, wkíwU ev‡qvwmwgjvimg~‡ni (†hgb- f¨vKwmb) g‡Zv 
RwUj cY¨ ˆZwii Rb¨ ¯’vcbv m¤cÖmvi‡Yi Dci D‡ƏL‡hvM¨ 
D‡`¨vM cÖZ¨ÿ Ki‡Q| Ab¨w`‡K `xN©-cÖZxw¶Z GwcAvB 
(A¨vw±f dvgΠvwmDwUK¨vj Bb‡MÖwW‡q›U) cvK© GLb e¨env‡ii 
Rb¨ cÖ¯‘Z| 
Ggb mnvqK Ae Ges cwiKvVv‡gv, DbœZ cY¨ cÖ¯‘Z Kivi 
¶gZv Ges wek¦ evwYR¨ ms¯’v (WvweøDwUI) KZ©…K 2032 mvj 
ch©šÍ †c‡U‡›Ui ¯^Z¡ Z¨v‡Mi m¤cÖmviY-evsjv‡`‡ki 
dvgvwmDwUK¨vjm wkí‡K AvMvgx `kKRy‡o ¯’vbxq 
cÖ¯‘ZKviK‡`i Rb¨ we‡klfv‡e AvKl©Yxq K‡i ivL‡e| 

e¨emvwqK cvid‡g©Ý
2017 mv‡j dvg©vwmDwUK¨vjm e¨emv mdjZv Ges cÖwZØw›ØZvi 
wgkª GKwU mgq cvi K‡i G‡m‡Q| UwcKvj jvB‡b AwZwi³ 
wkdU Pvjy Kivi gva¨‡g PÆMÖvg mvB‡U Avgv‡`i ¯’vbxqfv‡e 
Drcvw`Z cY¨mg~‡ni Drcv`b ¶gZv Ges mieivn 
wbf©i‡hvM¨Zv eQ‡ii wØZxqv‡a© D‡ƏL‡hvM¨fv‡e DbœwZ jvf 
K‡i‡Q| hvi d‡j 4%-Gi GKwU cwiYZ e¨emvwqK cÖe„w× m¤¢e 
nq| Gi d‡j, h‡_ó cwiYZ K¨v‡UMwii nIqv m‡Ë¡I 
HwZn¨evnx Betnovate †i‡Äi †¶‡Î `yB As‡Ki cÖe„w× 
wbewÜZ nq| Z‡e ¯’vbxqfv‡e Drcvw`Z Ily‡ai e¨emvwqK GB 

mvdj¨ Avg`vbxK…Z Ily‡ai e¨emvq bvbvwea P¨v‡j‡Äi Kvi‡Y 
w¤ªªqgvb n‡q c‡o| †Kbbv Avg`vwbK…Z Ily‡ai e¨emv, †`‡k 
Drcvw`Z ¯^íg~‡j¨i A_P AwaK wi‡mvm©-MÖvmx K¬¨vwmK 
†cvU©‡dvwjI-Gi Zzjbvq, †kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i Rb¨ AwaK f¨vjy 
m„wó K‡i|
2017 mv‡j GSK evsjv‡`‡ki g~L¨ †_ivwc Gwiqv †imwc‡iUwi 
Ges A¨vjvwR© evRv‡i GK Af‚Zc~e© cÖwZK‚jZvi gy‡LvgywL 
n‡q‡Q| Avgv‡`i `ywU cÖavb cY¨- Seretide Evohaler Ges 
Engerix BĲ†K D‡ƏL‡hvM¨ Avg`vwb cÖwZeÜKZvi m¤§yLxb 
n‡Z nq, hvi d‡j `yB As‡Ki FbvZ¡K cÖe„w× N‡U| ¯’vbxqfv‡e 
ˆZwi Ventolin cÖe„w×i ZvwjKvq Avm‡Z m¶g n‡jI 
Seretide bv _vKvi Kvi‡Y N‡U hvIqv Avw_©K ÿwZ GwU 
mvg‡j DV‡Z cv‡i wb|
GSK evsjv‡`‡ki Av‡iKwU ¸iæZ¡c~Y© †_ivwc Gwiqv n‡jv 
f¨vKwmb, Av‡cw¶Kfv‡e †hLv‡b bZzb `ywU f¨vKwmb 
Cervarix Ges Rotarix mdjZvi mv‡_ `yB As‡Ki cÖe„w×i 
ZvwjKvq G‡m‡Q| wKš‘ cÖwZwôZ f¨vKwmb eª¨vÛ 
Engerix-B-†K Seretide Evohaler-Gi g‡Zv GKB 
iKg Avg`vwb cÖwZeÜKZvi m¤§yLxb n‡Z nq|
m‡e©vcwi, Varilrix Ges Rabipur-Gi cybivMgb eQi †k‡l 
f¨vKwmb †cvU©‡dvwjI‡Z wKQz BwZevPK cÖe„w× Avb‡Z mvnvh¨ 
K‡i, hw`I LyPiv g~j¨ Aby‡gv`b Ges jU wiwjR cÖwµqvq 
RwUjZv e„w×i Kvi‡Y G‡Z A‡bK wej¤^ nq| 
evwn¨K evav¸‡jv‡K AwZµg Ki‡Z, †KvҜvwbwU h_vh_ 
KZ©…c¶ Ges †÷K‡nvìvi‡`i mv‡_ mgš^q-mvab Ae¨vnZ 
iv‡L, hv‡Z evsjv‡`‡ki †ivMx‡`i Rb¨ D”P gvbm¤cbœ †˛vevj 
Jla mieivn Kivi †¶‡Î eûRvwZK †KvҜvwb¸‡jvi mgvb 
my‡hv‡Mi Ae¯’vb m„wó m¤¢e nq|
3| Drcv`b
2017 mvjwU PÆMÖv‡g GMS-Gi Rb¨ wQj GKwU P¨v‡jwÄs 
eQi| Gi KviY wQj KvuPvgv‡ji wbqwš¿Z †hvMvb, Af¨ЮixY 
K¤чv‡qÝ Ges wbqš¿K KZ…©c‡ÿi ewa©Z cÖZ¨vkv| evwbwR¨K 
my‡hv‡Mi mØ¨envi wbwðZKi‡Y mnvqZv `v‡bi Rb¨ 2017 
mv‡j mvB‡U cÖ_g ev‡ii g‡Zv UwcK¨vj g¨vbyd¨vKPvwis Ges 
c¨v‡KwRs-G wZbwU c~Y© wkdU Acv‡ikb Pvjy Kiv nq|
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MZ wKQz eQi †_‡K GB mvBU Zvi †KvqvwjwU wm‡÷g Ges 
c×wZ, cÖhyw³MZ Ges Drcv`b my‡hvM-myweav, mvsMVwbK 
mvg_¨© Ges ms¯‹…wZ DbœZ Kivi cÖwµqv Pvwj‡q hv‡”Q| my`xN© 
†KvqvwjwU 
B¤úªyf‡g›U †cÖvMÖvgm (wKDAvBwc)-Gi gva¨‡g GwU mnvqZv 
†c‡q hv‡”Q| 2017 mv‡j PÆMÖvg mvBU-Gi wi‡gwW‡qkb 
Kvh©µg mdjZvi mv‡_ m¤cbœ Kivi gva¨‡g GKwU ¸iæZ¡c~Y© 
gvBj‡÷vb AwR©Z n‡q‡Q|

2017 mv‡j mvBUwU wewb‡qvM Ae¨vnZ iv‡L Ges eZ©gvb ¸W 
g¨vbyd¨vKPvwis cª¨vw±m (cGMP)-Gi Aaxb dvgΠvwmDwUK¨vj 
KҜøv‡qÝ cÖ‡qvRbxZv¸‡jvi mv‡_ m½wZ †i‡L Drcv`b ¶gZv 
e„w×i gva¨‡g Gi my‡hvM myweav DbœZ K‡i| GSK wm‡÷gm-G 
wewb‡qv‡Mi gva¨‡g †WUv B‡›UwMÖwU (wWAvB) wbwðZ Ki‡Z 
wewfbœ D‡`¨vM †bIqv n‡qwQj, †hgb GKwU wmwWGm 
(†µvgv‡UvMÖvwdK †WUv wm‡÷g), wmwWGgGm (K‡›Uªvì WKz‡g›U 
g¨v‡bR‡g›U wm‡÷g) Ges wmGgGgGm (Kw¤cDUvivBRW 
†g‡›U‡bÝ g¨v‡bR‡g›U wm‡÷g)|
 
GKwU kw³kvjx wbivc` Drcv`b ms¯‹…wZ MVb Ki‡Z Ges 
†mdwU B¤cÖŮf‡g›U †cÖvMÖvg (GmAvBwc)-Gi Ask wn‡m‡e, 
GMS PÆMÖvg wba©viYK…Z †ckvMZ ¯^v¯’¨wewa, hš¿cvwZi 
ˆ`wnK cÖniv, Pjv‡divi ˆ`wnK mswоóZv Ges ¯^v¯’¨ msµvЮ 
wel‡qi Dci AviI ¸iæZ¡ Av‡ivc K‡i‡Q| mvBUwU Òk~b¨Ó 

j÷ UvBg BÄzwi A¨vÛ Bj‡bm (GjwUAvBGÛAvB) w`‡q 
2017 mvj †kl K‡i| GwU wR‡iv A¨vw·‡W›U †cÖv‡gvkb 
(†RWGwc)-Gi Ask wn‡m‡e Awbivc` Ae¯’v, Awbivc` 
AvPiY Ges †QvULv‡Uv fzjµwUi Aemvb NUbvi djvdj| 
mvBUwU cvwb msi¶‡Y D‡ƏL‡hvM¨ DbœwZ jvf K‡i, weMZ 
eQ‡ii Zzjbvq 9% †ewk Dbœqb AR©b K‡i|

Avgv‡`i Kvh©Kjvc mnRZi Ki‡Z Ges Kvh©KvwiZv I `¶Zvi 
Dbœq‡b Avgiv Kv‡Ri bZzb c×wZ MÖnY Ae¨vnZ ivL‡ev| GKwU 
my¯’¨ ms¯‹…wZ cÖwZóv, GSK-Gi g~j¨‡ev‡ai mv‡_ m½wZc~Y© 
RxebaviY I AvPiY, ¯^v‡¯’¨i cÖwZ g‡bv‡hvM, wbivcËv Ges 
cwi‡ek, †ivMx‡`i g½‡ji Rb¨ MÖvnK‡mev wbwðZ Ki‡Z 
Avgiv cÖwZÁve×|

4| GSK gvbe m¤ú`

GKwU cvid‡g©Ý-wfwËK ms¯‹…wZ Ges GSK-Gi bZzb Kg© 
c×wZ ˆZwi‡Z wnDg¨vb wi‡mvm© (GBPAvi) wefvM wbiЮi 
mnvqZv K‡i P‡j‡Q|  
 
GSK evsjv‡`k wewfbœ wek¦we`¨vj‡q Zvi GҜøqvi  eª¨vwÛs-Gi 
hvÎv Ae¨vnZ †i‡L‡Q Ges Avgiv Avb‡›`i mv‡_ Rvbv‡Z PvB 
†h, wbj‡mb K¨v¤cvm wiµyU‡g›U Bb‡W· 2016, BÛvw÷ª‡Z 
KvR Kivi †¶‡Î kxl© 10wU m‡e©v”P cQ‡›`i †Kv¤cvwbi g‡a¨ 
GSK-†K ¯’vb w`‡q‡Q|
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mKj weR‡bm BDwb‡U (weBD) †Kv¤cvwbwU Zvi AMÖMY¨ 
ÔwdDPvi wjWvi †cÖvMÖvgÕ Ae¨vnZ †i‡L KbRy¨gvi †nj_‡Kqvi, 
dvg©vwmDwUK¨vj Ges †Møvevj g¨vbyd¨vKPvwis  A¨vÛ mvcøvB 
(wRGgGm)-Gi Rb¨ GB eQi Avgiv PviRb bZzb GdGjwc 
cÖwk¶Yv_©x wb‡qvM K‡iwQ| Avgiv Avb‡›`i mv‡_ Rvbvw”Q †hę 
GB GdGjwc cÖwk¶Yv_©x‡`i `yBRb‡K GSK-Gi †Møvevj 
Mª¨vRy‡qU GWfvBRwi †ev‡W© Awfwl³ Kiv nq, hv evsjv‡`‡k 
D”Pgv‡bi GdGjwc wb‡qv‡M mvd‡j¨i cwiPvqK|

2017 mv‡j Avgiv Avgv‡`i jvBb e¨e¯’vcK‡`i Kg©`ÿZv 
Dbœq‡bi Ges cÖZ¨q Abymv‡i dv÷© jvBb wjWvi (GdGjGj) 
Ges dv÷© jvBb †mjm wjWvi‡`i (GdGjGmGj) Rb¨ 
GKvwaK Kg©kvjv K‡iwQ| 2017 mv‡j cwiPvwjZ Ab¨vb¨ 
cÖwkÿb Kg©m~Pxi g‡a¨ wQj- jvBb e¨e¯’vcK‡`i cÖwk¶Y 
m¶gZv Dbœqb‡K ¸iæZ¡ w`‡q Òcª¨vw±K¨vj †KvwPs G¨vU IqvK© 
†cømÓ; GKvwaK-KvR Ges wWgvwÛs KvR cwiPvjbv Ki‡Z 
Kg©Pvix‡`i cÖ¯‘Z Kivi Dci ¸iæZ¡ w`‡q ÒGgcøqx †iwRwj‡qÝÓ 
cÖwk¶Y Ges my¯’ I ¯^v¯’¨evb ivL‡Z ˆ`wnK I gvbwmK Kj¨v‡Y 
m‡PZbZv ˆZwii Dci ¸iæZ¡ w`‡q ÒGbvwR© di cvd©i‡gÝÓ|

†KvҜvwb ˆewPÎƏ Ges bvix ¶gZvq‡b ¸iæZ¡ Av‡ivc Ae¨vnZ 
†i‡L‡Q| bvixi e¨w³MZ Dbœqb DrmvwnZ Ki‡Z Ges e¨emvq 
Ae`vb ivL‡Z GB D‡`¨v‡Mi Aax‡b bvix Kg©Pvix‡`i Rb¨ 
†Kv¤cvwb чvUdg© ˆZwi K‡i w`‡q‡Q| D‡jøL‡hvM¨ mvd‡j¨i 
g‡a¨ i‡q‡Q, PÆMÖvg wUg KZ…©K `w¶Y Gwkqvi AvÂwjK GPS 
P¨vwҜqb AƏvIqvW© Rq| 

Ò†jUm UKÓ †mkb-Gi gva¨‡g †KvҜvwb Kg©Pvix‡`i mv‡_ 
Askx`vwi‡Z¡i A½xKvi Ae¨vnZ †i‡L‡Q, †hLv‡b †Kv¤cvwbi 
cvd©i‡gÝ Ges cÖwZØw›ØZv †kqvi Kiv nq Ges Kg©Pvix‡`i‡K 
Zv‡`i `„wófw½ †kqvi Ki‡Z DrmvwnZ Kiv nq| evwl©K mfvq 
e¨emvwqK BDwbU¸‡jv †Kv¤cvwbi j¶¨ AR©‡bi e¨envwiK 
†KŠkjmg~n Av‡jvPbv K‡i _v‡K| mvwe©Kfv‡e cyi¯‹vi Ges 
¯^xK…wZ cÖ`v‡bi gva¨‡g Kg©KZ©v-Kg©Pvix‡`i Drmvn cÖ`v‡bi 
aviv e„w× †c‡q‡Q| 2017 mv‡j GSK cÖwZwU weBD-‡Z ÒGgcøqx 
Gb‡MR‡g›U mv‡f©Ó-i djvd‡j D‡jøL‡hvM¨ DbœwZ AR©b 
K‡i‡Q, †mwU †KvҜvwbi Kg© cwi‡ek Ges Kg©`ÿZv ˆZwi‡Z 
Ae¨vnZ cÖ‡Póvi cÖwZdjb|

5| Avw_©K djvdj

cwiPvjKMY AZ¨šÍ Avb‡›`i mv‡_ 2017 mv‡ji 31 wW‡m¤^i 
Abyhvqx eQiv‡Юi Avw_©K djvdj Dc¯’vcb Ki‡Q|

†Kv¤cvwbi wbU weµ‡qi cwigvY 6,797 wgwjqb UvKv, hv 
c~e©eZx eQ‡i wQ‡jv 6,284 wgwjqb UvKv| 2016 mv‡ji 
Zzjbvq 8.2% cÖe„w× cwijw¶Z nq| dvg©vwmDwUK¨vjm Ges 
KbRy¨gvi †nj_‡Kqvi-Dfq e¨emvB wbqš¿KI bxwZ wba©viYx 
ms¯’vi ewa©Z evavi m¤§yLxb n‡q‡Q| KbRy¨gvi †nj_‡Kqvi 
e¨emv eQ‡ii wØZxqv‡a© evRv‡i c‡Y¨i wewµ mvd‡j¨i mv‡_ 
evwo‡q ÿwZ cywl‡q †bq| Ab¨w`‡K, mvчvB †PBb-G †e‡o 
hvIqv we‡Nœi Kvi‡Y dvg©vwmDwUK¨vj e¨emvq cÖe„w×i cÖmvi wb¤œ|

D”P gv‡bi KvuPvgvj Ges c¨v‡KwRs mvgMªx wbwðZ Ki‡Z 
e¨emvq weµq LiP D‡ƏL‡hvM¨fv‡e e„w× †c‡q‡Q, Drcv`b 
AeKvVv‡gv Dbœq‡Y c~‡e©i wewb‡qvM Ges Drcv`b LiP e„w×‡Z 
f~wgKv †i‡L‡Q| †¯^”Qvaxb e¨q †hŠw³Kfv‡e wbqš¿‡Yi gva‡g 
cwiPvjbv e¨q gy`ªvùxwZ nv‡ii wb‡P ivLv n‡qwQj| mvwe©Kfv‡e 
Ki cieZ©x gybvdv 3.8% e„w× †c‡q 669 wgwjqb UvKvq G‡m 
`vuwo‡q‡Q| Abyiƒcfv‡e, cÖwZ‡e`b eQ‡ii BwcGm (Avwb©s cvi 
†kqvi) 53.51 UvKv †_‡K 55.56 UvKv n‡q‡Q|

6| jf¨vsk 

Dc‡ii welq¸‡jv we‡ePbv K‡i, cwiPvjbv cwil` 2017 
mv‡ji Rb¨ 550%, A_©vr cÖwZ 10.00 UvKvi †kqv‡i 55.00 
UvKvi P‚ovЮ jf¨vsk cÖ`v‡bi mycvwik K‡i‡Q| mycvwikK…Z 
jf¨vsk, hw` evwl©K mvaviY mfvq m`m¨iv Aby‡gv`b K‡ib 
Z‡e 662.55 wgwjqb UvKvi bM` ewn: cÖevn n‡e|

7| cwiPvjK‡`i wWm&‡K¬vRvi Ges †NvlYv

evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`‡bi cieZx© GKwU As‡k m¤c~Y© Avw_©K weeiY I 
wWm&‡K¬vRv‡ii m¤c~Y© UxKvmg~n Dc¯’vcb Kiv n‡jv| cwiPvjbv 
cwil` Avb‡›`i mv‡_ wb‡Pi wWm&‡K¬vRvi Avcbv‡`i Kv‡Q 
Dc¯’vcb Ki‡Q: 
K) †Kv¤cvwbi cwiPvjKeM© KZ©…K ˆZwi Avw_©K weei‡Y 

c¶cvZnxbfv‡e Gi mvgMÖxK Ae¯’v, Kv‡Ri djvdj, 
K¨vk †d¬v Ges BKzBwU‡Z cwieZ©b m¤cwK©Z Z_¨ Dc¯’vcb 
Kiv n‡q‡Q;

L) †Kv¤cvwbi A¨vKvD›Umg~‡ni Dchy³ wnmvewbKvk msi¶Y 
Kiv n‡q‡Q;

M) Avw_©K weeiY ˆZwi‡Z h_vh_ wnmvei¶Y bxwZgvjv 
mvgÄm¨c~Y©fv‡e cÖ‡qvM Kiv n‡q‡Q Ges wnmvei¶Y 
cÖv°jbmg~n hyw³hy³ I `~i`k©x we‡ePbvi wfwË‡Z Kiv 
n‡q‡Q;
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weµqjä Avq
weµ‡q‡i LiP
MÖm gybvdv
Ki c~e© gybvdv
we‡qvM: K‡ii cÖwfkb
Ki cieZ©x wbU gybvdv
Ab¨vb¨ mgwš̂Z Avq/(‡jvKmvb), Ki-cieZx©

†hvM: c~e©eZ©x eQi n‡Z AvMZ Aew›UZ gybvdv
†gvU e›Ub‡hvM¨ cwigvY 
A¨v‡cÖvwcÖ‡qkb:
c~e©eZ©x eQ‡ii Rb¨ cwi‡kvwaZ jf¨vsk
eQi †k‡l †K¬vwRs wi‡UBÛ Avq
GeQ‡ii Rb¨ cȪ ÍvweZ jf¨vsk 
(2017: 550%; 2016: 500%)
cȪ ÍvweZ jf¨vsk cieZ©x wi‡UBÛ Avq

6,796,559
(4,161,052)
2,635,507
947,601

(278,297)
669,304
(22,434)

2,400,693
3,047,563

(602,322)
2,445,240
(662,555)

1,782,685

6,284,015
(3,834,031)
2,449,984
845,559
(201,005)
644,554

-

2,418,694
3,063,248

(662,555)
2,400,693
(602,322)

1,798,371

weeiY 2017 2016

A‡_©i cwigvY UvKvq 000



N) B›Uvib¨vkbvj wdbvwÝqvj wi‡cvwU©s ÷¨vÛvW©m 
(AvBGdAviGm) †hfv‡e evsjv‡`‡k cÖ‡hvR¨, †mfv‡eB 
Avw_©K weeiY ˆZwi‡Z GKB gvb`Ð AbymiY Kiv n‡q‡Q 
Ges †mLvb †_‡K †h‡Kv‡bv cÖKvi wePy¨wZ h_vh_fv‡e 
Dc¯’vcb Kiv n‡q‡Q; 

O) ˆÎgvwmK Avw_©K cvd©i‡gÝ Ges evwl©K Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`‡bi 
g‡a¨ D‡ƏL‡hvM¨ †Kv‡bv cv_©K¨ †bB;

P) †KvҜvwbi weMZ eQ‡ii cwiPvjbv djvd‡ji mKj wePŬ¨wZ 
Dc‡ii (O) c‡q‡›Ui Aax‡b wb‡`©k Kiv n‡q‡Q;

Q) mswоó c¶‡`i mv‡_ mKj †jb‡`b evwYwR¨K wfwË‡Z Kiv 
n‡q‡Q| GB wfwËwU wQj ÒAvg©m †js_ UªvÝ¨vKkbÓ-Gi 
bxwZ| mswоó c‡¶i mv‡_ †jb‡`bmg~n UxKv AvKv‡i 
Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`‡b Dc¯’vcb Kiv n‡q‡Q;

R) †KvҜvwbwU †evW© wgwUs-G Dcw¯’wZ m¤§vbx wn‡m‡e eQ‡i 
†gvU 200,000 UvKv cwi‡kva K‡i‡Q| Avw_©K 
cÖwZ‡e`‡bi UxKvq cwiPvjKM‡bi m¤§vbx D‡ƏL Kiv 
n‡q‡Q;

S) eQi Ry‡o A¯^vfvweK †Kv‡bv jvf ev †jvKmvb wQ‡jv bv; 
T) cvewjK Bm¨y n‡Z cÖvß A‡_©i e¨envi cÖ‡hvR¨ bq;
U) IPO cieZ©x Avw_©K djvd‡ji e¨vL¨v cÖ‡hvR¨ bq;
V) weMZ cvuP eQ‡ii (2013-2017) msw¶ß cÖavb cÖavb 

cwiPvjb Ges Avw_©K Z_¨ Annexure- 1-†Z Dc¯’vcb 
Kiv n‡q‡Q|

cwiPvjKMb cÖwZ‡e`‡b AviI Rvbv‡”Qb †h-

K) cwil‡`i Kv‡Q e¨e ’̄vcbv cwiPvjK Ges A_© cwiPvjK 
cÖZ¨qb K‡i‡Qb †h, Zviv GB eQ‡ii Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`b 
ch©v‡jvPbv K‡i‡Qb Ges GB Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`‡b Zv‡`i 
m‡e©v”P Rvbvg‡Z cÖvwYavb‡hvM¨ ¸iæZi AmZ¨ †Kvb weeiY 
†bB ev ¸iæZ¡c~Y© mZ¨ ev` †`Iqv nq wb ev fzj c‡_ 
cwiPvwjZ Ki‡Z cv‡i-Ggb †Kv‡bv wee„wZ cÖ̀ vY Kiv nq wbỸ

L) cwil‡`i Kv‡Q e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK Ges A_© cwiPvjK 
cÖZ¨qb K‡i‡Qb †h, Zviv GB eQ‡ii  Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`b 
ch©v‡jvPbv K‡i‡Qb Ges GB cÖwZ‡e`bwU GKB mv‡_ 
†Kv¤cvwbi Kg©Kv‡Ûi GKwU mZ¨ I wbi‡c¶ †Pnviv 
Dc¯’vcb K‡i Ges we`¨gvb 8wU wnmvei¶Y Av`k© I 
cÖ‡hvR¨ AvBb Abymv‡i cwiPvwjZ nq e‡j Zviv wek¦vm 
K‡ib|

M) cwil‡`i Kv‡Q e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK Ges A_© cwiPvjK 
AviI cÖZ¨qb K‡i‡Qb †h, †Kvb ai‡Yi cÖZviYvg~jK ev 
†eAvBbx ev †Kv¤cvwbi AvPiY wewa j•Nb K‡i GB eQ‡i 
†Kvb ai‡bi †jb‡`b Kiv nq wb e‡j me©‡Zvfv‡e Zviv 
wek¦vm iv‡Lb|

8| SzuwK Ges D‡ØMmg~n

†Kv¤cvwbi e¨emvwqK SuzwK wbqš¿‡Yi Rb¨ GKwU kw³kvjx 
e¨e¯’vcbv c×wZ i‡q‡Q| K‡c©v‡iU Mf‡b©Ý Aa¨vq Ges Avw_©K 
cÖwZ‡e`‡bi UxKvq G¸‡jv eY©bv Kiv n‡q‡Q|

9| Af¨šÍixY wbqš¿Y

†Kv¤cvwb h‡_ó k³ Af¨šÍixY wbqš¿Y c×wZ eRvq iv‡L, hv 
†h‡Kv‡bv ai‡Yi ¶wZi e¯‘MZ fzj wee„wZ wb‡iv‡a †hŠw³K Av¯’v 
cÖ`vb K‡i| cÖ‡Z¨K mfvq Af¨šÍixY wbqš¿Y KvVv‡gv AwWU 
KwgwU KZ©…K wbqwgZ ch©v‡jvPbv Kiv nq Ges cwiPvjbv 
cwil‡`i Kv‡Q cÖwZ‡e`b †`Iqv nq| †KvҜvwbi wbe©vnx KwgwU 
ˆÎgvwmK wfwË‡Z Af¨šÍixY wbqš¿Y Ges SzuwK e¨e¯’vcbv c×wZ 
ch©v‡jvPbv K‡i| GB eQi dvg©vwmDwUK¨vj-Gi evwYwR¨K 
Kvh©µg‡K GSK †Møvevj AwWU-Gi Øviv wbixÿY Kiv nq| GB 
AwWU D”PgvÎvi †cÖv-A¨vw±wfwU Ges mvwe©K KҜøv‡qÝ cwi‡ek  
eRvq ivL‡Z †Kv¤úvwb h‡_ô ¸iæZ¡ †`q e‡j g~j¨vqb K‡i| 
AwW‡U D‡jøL‡hvM¨ wePy¨wZ RwUjZv cwijw¶Z nq wb, Z‡e 
wKQz wbqš¿Y KvVv‡gv Dbœq‡bi mycvwik Kiv n‡q‡Q| GB 
cÖwZ‡e`bwUi GKwU As‡k cieZ©x Af¨šÍixY wbqš¿Y KvVv‡gvi 
Dci GKwU wek` weeiY Dc¯’vcb Kiv n‡q‡Q|

10| †Mvwqs Kbmvb©

cwiPvjKMY gZvgZ w`‡q‡Qb †h, †KvҜvwbwU GKwU †Mvwqs 
Kbmvb© Ges †Mvwqs Kbmvb© wnmv‡e †Kv¤úvwbwU cwiPvjbvi 
wel‡q †Kvb we‡kl m‡›`‡ni †Kvb AeKvk †bB| Z`vbymv‡i, 
Avw_©K weeiY †Mvwqs Kbmvb©-Gi wfwË‡Z cÖ¯‘Z Kiv n‡q‡Q|

11| RvZxq †KvlvMv‡i Ae`vb

†Kv¤cvwbwU cÖwZ eQi ïé Ges Ki AvKv‡i RvZxq †KvlvMv‡i 
GKwU D‡ƏL‡hvM¨ Ae`vb iv‡L| 2017 mv‡j 
GlaxoSmithKline evsjv‡`k wjwg‡UW miKvwi †KvlvMv‡i 
†gvU 1994 wgwjqb UvKvi Ae`vb †i‡L‡Q|

12. cwiPvjbv cwil` Ges †kqvi‡nvwìs Z_¨

cwil‡`i MVb Ges AvKvi
31 wW‡m¤^i, 2017 ZvwiL ch©šÍ cwil‡` 7Rb m`m¨ wQ‡jb| 
cwil`wU wbe©vnx I Awbe©vnx cwiPvjK‡`i mgš^‡q MwVZ| 
Awbe©vnx cwiPvj‡Kiv cwil‡`i Av‡jvPbv Ges wm×v‡šÍ ¯^vaxb 
gZvgZ cÖKvk K‡i _v‡Kb| e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjKmn PviRb 
cwiPvjK wbe©vnx cwiPvj‡Ki `vwq‡Z¡ i‡q‡Qb| 3Rb Awbe©vnx 
cwiPvjK i‡q‡Qb, hvi g‡a¨ GKRb ¯^Zš¿ cwiPvjK| 2017 
mv‡j GKwU c` Lvwj nevi Kvi‡Y weGmBwm KZ©…K RvwiK…Z 
K‡c©v‡iU Mf‡b©Ý wb‡`©kbvi kZ© c~i‡Yi Rb¨ 1 †deªæqvwi, 
2018 Zvwi‡L 1Rb ¯^Zš¿ cwiPvjK wb‡qvM Kiv nq|

cwil` mfv Ges Dcw¯’wZ
2017 mv‡j 6wU (QqwU) mfv AbywôZ nq| cwil‡`i mfvq 
cwil‡`i MVb Ges m`m¨‡`i Dcw¯’wZ wbҚwjwLZ Q‡K †`Lv‡bv 
n‡jv:
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†hme m`m¨ mfvq †hvM w`‡Z cv‡ib wb Zv‡`i Abycw¯’wZ QzwU 
wnmv‡e gÄzi Kiv nq|

wbhy³/cybtwbhy³ cwiPvjK‡`i weeiY: 
†Kv¤cvwb AvBb 1994-Gi aviv 91 (2) Ges †Kv¤cvwbi 
Avw©UK¨vjm Ae G¨v‡mvwm‡qmb-Gi 85 bs aviv Abymv‡i 
e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK e¨ZxZ GK-Z…Zxqvsk cwiPvjK‡K cÖwZ 
evwl©K mvaviY mfvi †iv‡Ukb Abyhvqx Aemi wb‡Z n‡e Ges 
†hvM¨ n‡j cybivq wbe©vP‡bi Rb¨ we‡ewPZ n‡eb|

Z`vbymv‡i, †iv‡Uk‡b Aemi wb‡”Qb cwiPvjK Rbve wRwbqv 
ZvbwRbv nK, whwb †hvM¨Zve‡j cybivq wbe©vwPZ nIqvi B”Qv 
†cvlY K‡i‡Qb|

†Kv¤cvwbi AvwUK¨vjm Ae G¨v‡mvwm‡qmb-Gi aviv bs 89 
Abyhvqx, K¨vRyqvj f¨vKvwÝ‡Z wbhy³ cwiPvjK ev AwZwi³ 
cwiPvjK Avmbœ evwl©K mvaviY mfvq Aemi MÖnY Ki‡eb Ges 
†hvM¨ n‡j cybivq wbe©vP‡bi Rb¨ we‡ewPZ n‡eb|

Z`vbymv‡i, MZ evwl©K mvaviY mfv †_‡K cwil‡` wbhy³ Rbve 
cÖkvЮ cv‡Û I Rbve KvRx mvbvDj nK Aemi MÖnY K‡ib Ges 
†hvM¨Zve‡j wb‡R‡`i‡K cybtwbe©vPb Kivi cÖếve †`b|

evsjv‡`k wmwKDwiwUR A¨vÛ G·‡PÄ Kwgkb-Gi AvM÷ 
2012 Gi 7 Zvwi‡Li GmBwm/wmGgAviAviwmwWwW/ 
2006-158/GWwgb/44 b¤^i weÁwß Abyhvqx, 1 †deªæqvwi, 
2018 †_‡K cwil` wj‡Û evsjv‡`k wjwg‡UW-Gi e¨e¯’vcbv 
cwiPvjK Rbve †gv. gnmxb DÏxb Avn‡g`‡K ¯^Zš¿ cwiPvjK 
wn‡m‡e wb‡qvM w`‡q‡Q| weÁwß Abyhvqx, cieZ©x evwl©K mvaviY 
mfv‡Z AskMÖnYKvix m`m¨‡`i Kv‡Q †KvҜvwb G ai‡bi 
cwiPvjK wb‡qv‡Mi Aby‡gv`b PvB‡e|

Rbve wRwbqv ZvbwRbv nK, Rbve cÖkvšÍ cv‡Û, Rbve KvRx 
mvbvDj nK Ges Rbve gnmxb DÏxb Avn‡g`-Gi msw¶ß 
weeiY wb‡P †`Iqv n‡jv:

wRwbqv ZvbwRbv nK
wRwbqv ZvbwRbv nK GSK evsjv‡`k wjwg‡U‡W-Gi mv‡_ 
AvM÷ 2014 mvj †_‡K Kg©iZ Av‡Qb| 2014 mv‡ji b‡f¤^‡i 
wZwb GSK evsjv‡`‡ki A_© cwiPvjK wn‡m‡e cwil‡` †hvM 
†`b| A_© welqK †ckvq †ckvRxex wnmv‡e cÖMwZkxj †bZ…‡Z¡i 
f‚wgKvq Zvi 17 eQ‡ii AwfÁZv i‡q‡Q| GSK -†Z †hvM`v‡bi 
c~‡e© wZwb weªwUk Av‡gwiKvb †Uve¨v‡Kv-evsjv‡`‡k KvR 
K‡i‡Qb| wRwbqv weªwUk Av‡gwiKvb †Uve¨v‡Kvi wm½vcyi kvLvi 
mvcøvB nv‡e dvBb¨vÝ wjW wn‡m‡eI KvR K‡i‡Qb| wZwb 
weª‡Ub-Gi PvU©vW© Bbw÷wUDU Ad g¨v‡bR‡g›U A¨vKvD›Um-Gi 
GKRb ¯^xK…Z wnmvei¶K Ges Bbw÷wUDU Ad K÷ A¨vÛ 
g¨v‡bR‡g›U A¨vKvD›Um Ad evsjv‡`k Ges Bbw÷wUDU Ad 
B›Uvibvj AwWUim, evsjv‡`k-Gi m`m¨| wRwbqv XvKv 
wek¦we`¨vj‡qi e¨emvq cÖkvmb Bbw÷wUDU (AvBweG)-Gi 
GKRb ¯œvZK|

cÖkvšÍ cv‡Û
A‡±vei 2017 mv‡j GSK evsjv‡`k cwil‡` Rbve cÖkvšÍ 
cv‡Û‡K AšÍf©z³ Kiv nq| eZ©gv‡b wZwb MyBan (wgqvbgvi, 
evsjv‡`k, †bcvj)'Gi †Rbv‡ij g¨v‡bRvi wnmv‡e  Kg©iZ 
Av‡Qb| Gi Av‡M wZwb Zvi †mjm I gv‡K©wUs Ges gv‡K©wUs 
wel‡qi `¶Zvi Rb¨ fvi‡Zi ¸iMvI‡q wbDwUªkb Ges 
WvB‡Rw÷f †nj_& wefv‡Mi AvÂwjK gv‡K©wUs cwiPvjK wbhy³ 
wQ‡jb| Rbve cÖkvšÍ RyjvB 2008-G fvi‡Zi wbDwUªkb 
wefv‡Mi cÖavb wnmv‡e GSK-‡Z †hvM`vb K‡ib| cieZ©x‡Z 
wZwb 2013 mv‡ji RyjvB gv‡m d¨vwgwj wbDwUªkb wefv‡Mi  
K¨v‡UMwi Dbœqb cwiPvj‡Ki f‚wgKv‡Z Ges 2015 mv‡ji 
†deªæqvwi‡Z fvi‡Zi gv‡K©wUs cwiPvjK wn‡m‡e wbhy³ †nvb| 
wZwb 1995 mv‡j fvi‡Zi AvBGgwU MvwRqvev` †_‡K e¨emv 
cwiPvjbvq ¯œvZ‡KvËi wW‡чvgv AR©b K‡ib| Zvi m¤ú‡K© 
we¯ÍvwiZ weeiY cwiPvjK †cÖvdvB‡j AšÍf©z³ i‡q‡Q|

KvRx mvbvDj nK
Rbve KvRx mvbvDj nK 2017 mv‡ji A‡±ve‡i GSK 
evsjv‡`k cwil‡` †hvM`vb K‡ib| wZwb 2017 mv‡ji 10 
AvM÷ Bb‡f÷‡g›U K‡c©v‡ikb Ae evsjv‡`k (AvBwmwe)-Gi 
e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK c‡` AwawôZ †nvb| GB c‡`i Av‡M wZwb 
ivRkvnx K…wl Dbœqb e¨vsK-Gi e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK wQ‡jb| 34 
eQ‡ii †ckv`vwi Rxe‡b wZwb AMÖYx e¨vsK wjwg‡UW-Gi 
Dc-e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK I e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK (PjwZ `vwqZ¡) 
c‡` Avmxb wQ‡jb| GQvovI KvRx mvbvDj nK evsjv‡`k 
†W‡fjc‡g›U e¨vsK wjwg‡UW (wewWweGj) Ges ivKve-Gi 
†Rbv‡ij g¨v‡bRvi wn‡m‡e `vwqZ¡ cvjb K‡ib| wZwb AvBwmwe 
wmwKDwiwUR †UªwWs †KvҜvwb wjwg‡UW-Gi wmBI wn‡m‡eI 
`vwqZ¡ cvjb K‡ib| wZwb XvKv wek¦we`¨vjq †_‡K wnmve 
weÁv‡b we.Kg, m¤§vbmn ¯œvZ‡KvËi wWwMÖ AR©b K‡ib| Rbve 
nK †`‡ki wewfbœ kxl© ms¯’vi cwil‡` `vwqZ¡ cvjb K‡i‡Qb| 
Zvi m¤c~Y© weeiY cwiPvjK †cÖvdvB‡j AšÍf©z³ i‡q‡Q|
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Rbve †WwfW wcÖPvW©

Rbve Bivg kvwKi ivwng

Rbve gvmỳ  Lvb

Rbve wRwbqv ZvbwRbv nK

Rbve ivwRe eo–qv

Rbve †MvcvjK…òbvb
†fsKvU&ivgvwb

Rbve cÖkvšÍ cv‡Û

Rbve †gv. BdwZLvi-
DR-Rvgvb

Rbve KvRx mvbvDj nK

Rbve †gv. †gRevn Dj nK

cwiPvjKM‡bi bvg gšÍe¨

AemicÖvß, 22 †k
A‡±vei 2017 †_‡K Kvh©Ki

22 A‡±vei 2017 †_‡K 
wb‡qvM Kvh©Ki

AemicÖvß, 22 †k
A‡±vei 2017 †_‡K Kvh©Ki

22 A‡±vei 2017 †_‡K 
wb‡qvM Kvh©Ki

1 †m‡Þ¤^i 2017 †_‡K
c`Z¨vM Kvh©Ki

6

6

6

6

6

5

  1

5

1

5

mfvq
Dcw ’̄wZ

1

5

6

6

5

1

  1

5

1

0

cwil` m`m¨
_vKvKvjxb AbywôZ
mfvi msL¨v
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gnmxb DÏxb Avn‡g`
GSK evsjv‡`k cwil‡` Rbve gnmxb DÏxb Avn‡g`‡K 
AšÍf©z³ Kiv nq 2018 mv‡ji †deªæqvwi gv‡m| wZwb 2017 
mv‡ji Rvbyqvwi‡Z wj‡Û evsjv‡`k wjwg‡UW-Gi e¨e¯’vcbv 
cwiPvjK c‡` AwawôZ †nvb| wj‡Û evsjv‡`‡k †hvM`v‡bi c~‡e© 
wZwb mvK©fz³ †`‡ki evwYwR¨K Kg©Kv‡Ûi Rb¨ Bgvwg MÖæ‡ci 
†cÖwm‡W›U wQ‡jb| Rbve gnwmb weªwUk Av‡gwiKvb †Uve¨v‡Kv 
(weGwU)-Gi mv‡_ Zvi Kg©Rxeb ïiæ K‡ib, †hLv‡b wZwb †UªW 
gv‡K©wUs I wWw÷ªweDkb Lv‡Z wewfbœ f‚wgKvq cvuP eQi 
AwZevwnZ K‡ib| 22 eQ‡ii Kg©Rxe‡b wZwb †bm‡j evsjv‡`k 
wjwg‡UW Ges BDwbwjfvi evsjv‡`k wjwg‡UW-Gi n‡q †`‡k 
Ges we‡`‡k KvR K‡ib| gnwmb XvKv wek¦we`¨vjq †_‡K dwjZ 
c`v_©we`¨v I B‡jKUªwb·-G m¤§vb wWwMÖ jvf K‡ib| Zvi 
m¤c~Y© weeiY cwiPvjK †cÖvdvB‡j AšÍf©z³ i‡q‡Q|

AwWU KwgwU:
evsjv‡`k wmwKDwiwUR A¨vÛ G·‡PÄ Kwgkb (weGmBwm) 
wb‡`©kbv Abyhvqx, cwil` GKwU AwWU KwgwU MVb K‡i‡Q hv 
†Kv¤cvwbi Af¨šÍixY wbqš¿Y KvVv‡gv Z`viK K‡i| KwgwU 1Rb 
¯^Zš¿ Awbe©vnx cwiPvjK (†Pqvig¨vb), 1Rb Awbe©vnx cwiPvjK 
Ges e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK-Gi mgš^‡q MwVZ| AwWU KwgwU eQ‡i 
4evi ̂ eVK K‡i| †KvҜvwbi mwPe, AwWU KwgwUi mwPe wn‡m‡e 
KvR K‡ib| AwWU KwgwUi `vwq‡Z¡i AviI weeiY AwWU KwgwU 
wi‡cv‡U© AšÍf©z³ Kiv n‡q‡Q|

cwiPvjK‡`i m¤§vbx: 
wbe©vnx cwiPvjK‡`i m¤§vbx, cvd©i‡gÝ Ges mswоó †evbvm 
GlaxoSmithKline MÖæc-Gi AvšÍ©RvwZK e¨e¯’vcbv KZ…©cÿ 
KZ©…K ch©v‡jvwPZ Ges Aby‡gvw`Z nq|

wbe©vnx cwiPvjKMY Ges †Kv¤cvwbi K‡qKRb ˆRô¨ wbe©vnx 
GlaxoSmithKline wcGjwm, BD‡K-Gi †kqvi cø¨v‡bi 
AwaKvix| GlaxoSmithKline MÖæc -Gi g‡bvbxZ 
cwiPvjKiv e¨ZxZ ¯^Zš¿ I Awbe©vnx cwiPvjKiv cÖwZ cl©` 
mfvq Dcw¯’wZi m¤§vbx wnmv‡e 10 nvRvi UvKv †c‡q _v‡Kb|

cÖ‡`q eQ‡i wbe©vnx cwiPvjK‡`i cÖvß A‡_©i weeiY Avw_©K 
weeiYxi †bvUm 30-G †`Iqv n‡q‡Q|

†kqvi‡nvwìs Z_¨ 
31 wW‡m¤^i, 2017 ch©šÍ †kqvi‡nvwìs Z_¨ Ges Ab¨vb¨ mswkøó 
Z_¨¸wj Annexure-II -G ewY©Z|

†kqvi‡nvìvi/wewb‡qvMKvix‡`i Awf‡hvM
ch©v‡jvPbvaxb eQ‡i †kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i KvQ †_‡K †KvҜvwb 
mgqg‡Zv evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`b Ges jf¨vsk cÖvwß msµvšÍ wKQz 
Awf‡hvM †c‡q‡Q| GB welq¸‡jv h_v mg‡q mgvavb Kiv 
n‡q‡Q|

13. K‡c©v‡iU `vqe×Zv

GB eQi †`‡ki cÖwZ †KvҜvwbi Aw½Kvi ¯^v¯’¨welqK D‡`¨v‡Mi 
AwaKZi m¤cÖmvi‡Yi gva¨‡g `„p nq| Dciš‘, †Kv¤cvwb Zvi 

cÖwZôvZv msMVb GSK wcGjwmi gva¨‡g K·evRv‡i gvqvbgvi 
kiYv_©x msK‡U mvov †`q|

wKQz D‡ƏL‡hvM¨ D‡`¨vM
evsjv‡`‡k ¯^v¯’¨‡mev AeKvVv‡gv Dbœq‡b 20% jv‡fi cybtwewb‡qvM:

GwU ¯^v¯’¨ gš¿Yvjq, GSK Ges †Kqvi (CARE)-Gi g‡a¨ 
GKwU cvewjK cÖvB‡fU cvU©bviwkc| D‡`¨vMwU GLb ch©šÍ 
mybvgMÄ †Rjvq 300 `¶ avÎx Ges 3000 Rb KwgDwbwU 
¯^v¯’¨ Kg©x ˆZwi K‡i‡Q| cÖ‡R± GjvKvq mvgwMÖK gvZ…Z¡Kvjxb 
wkï ¯^v¯’¨ Lv‡Z GwU AZ¨šÍ ¸iæZ¡c~Y© GK gvBjdjK Ges 
mvgwMÖK ¯^v¯’¨‡mev MÖn‡Yi Af¨v‡m BwZevPK cwieZ©b Avbqb 
K‡i‡Q|

Avgv‡`i Askx`viM‡Yi g‡a¨ i‡q‡Q †Kqvi, GgGÛGm, 
†d«Ûwkc, AvBwmwWwWAvi,we Ges ¯^v¯’¨ I cwievi Kj¨vY 
gš¿Yvjq|

cÖavb cÖKímg~n:
• GSK- †Kqvi KwgDwbwU ¯^v¯’¨ Kg©x Kg©m~Px
• GSK- †d«Ûwkc Gg-¯^v¯’¨ cÖKí
• GSK-AvBwmwWwWAvi,we ¯^v¯’¨ e¨e¯’v kw³kvjxKiY Kg©m~wP
• GSK †Kqvi AviGgwR (†iwW‡gW Mv‡g©›Um) ¯^v¯’¨‡mev cÖKí
• GSK, GgGÛGm, †Kqvi †nj_ A¨v‡·m A¨vÛ wjs‡KR 
AciPzwbwUm& di IqvK©vm© (HALOW) cÖKí

GB D‡`¨v‡Mi weeiY we¯ÍvwiZ AvKv‡i GB cÖwZ‡e`‡bi 
ÒK‡c©v‡iU mvgvwRK `vqe×ZvÓ  Aa¨v‡q ewY©Z n‡q‡Q|

wWDK Ad GwWbevM©-Gi A¨vIqvWΠ (DEA)

GB AvšÍR©vwZK Kg©m~wPi cÖwZôvZv Uªvw÷¸‡jvi Ab¨Zg wnmv‡e 
†Kv¤cvwbwU Zvi mg_©b Ae¨vnZ †i‡L‡Q| GB Kg©m~wPi D‡Ïk¨ 
n‡jv bZzb cÖRb¥‡K Rxeb`¶Zv Ges wewfbœ mn-wkÿv 
Kg©Kv‡Û AskMÖn‡Yi my‡hvM cÖ`vb| GB AvšÍR©vwZK A¨vIqvW©wU 
GLb XvKv, PÆMÖvg, †`‡ki wewfbœ wefvMxq kni¸‡jvi 80wUiI 
†ewk †emiKvwi I miKvwi wk¶v cÖwZôv‡b cÖ`vb Kiv n‡q 
_v‡K| mviv †`‡k 15 nvRv‡iiI †ewk cyi¯‹vicÖvß e¨w³ GLb 
†Møvevj wWBG GjvgbvB Mªæc-Gi AšÍf©z³|

14. AvPiY wewa

†Kv¤cvwbi cwiPvjbv cwil` mg¯Í cwiPvjK Ges Kg©Pvix‡`i 
Rb¨ GKwU AvPiYwewa wba©viY K‡i‡Q| e¨emvq Ges cÖweav‡bi 
†¶‡Î mg¯Í Kg©Pvix‡K AvPiY wewa Aek¨B †g‡b Pj‡Z n‡e| 
2017 mvj Ry‡o Kg©xiv mZZv, gvby‡li cÖwZ kª×v, †ivMxi/ 
†fv³vi ¸iæZ¡ Ges ¯^”QZvi BZ¨vw` GSK gyj¨‡ev‡ai cÖ`k©b 
K‡i‡Qb| Dciš‘, 2017 mvj Kg©Pvix‡`i Rb¨ PviwU bZzb 
cÖZ¨vkv Zz‡j a‡i: `vqe×Zv, mvnm, Dbœqb Ges `je×Zv| 
mg¯Í Kg©xiv Zv‡`i cÖwZw`‡bi Kvh©µ‡g DcwiD³ ¸Yvewj 
cÖ`k©b Ki‡e e‡j Avkv Kiv n‡”Q|
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†mjm Ges gv‡K©wUs Kg©xiv BgvwR©s gv‡K©U Ges Gwkqv 
c¨v‡mwdK †cÖv‡gvkb Ges gv‡K©wUs †KvW-Gi AvIZvf~³| GwU 
`„pfv‡e mZZvi mv‡_ cvdΠi‡gÝ mgš^‡qi wfwË n‡q D‡V‡Q| 
GSK Pvq Gi †mjm Ges gv‡K©wUs Kg©xiv †hb ïaygvÎ †Kv‡Wi 
AbymiY bq, eis Drmvnxfv‡e Gi wek¦vm‡K MÖnY K‡i weP¨ywZi 
wecix‡Z `„p bxwZ †g‡b P‡j|

†KvҜvbxwU Ôw¯cK AvcÕ bvgK GKwU ûBmj †eøvqvi cwjwm Pvjy 
†i‡L‡Q hv‡Z Kg©xiv m¤¢ve¨ ˆelg¨, m¤¢ve¨ Ø›Ø ev GSK 
bxwZgvjvi, †KvҜvwbi bxwZgvjv Ges c×wZi j•Nb NU‡j 
AvIqvR Zzj‡Z cv‡ib| m¤c~iK bxwZ Òbb-wiU¨vwj‡qkbÓ 
wbwðZ K‡i †h, Kg©xiv †KvbI ai‡bi ¶q¶wZi SzuwK QvovB 
GB ai‡bi AvIqvR Zzj‡Z cv‡ib|

15. wbix¶K

eZ©gvb wbix¶KMY, †gmvm© ACNABIN PvU©vW© GKvD›U¨v›Um, 
evsjv‡`k wmwKDwiwUR A¨vÛ G·‡PÄ Kwgkb AW©vi bs 
GmBwm/wmGgAviAviwmwW/2009-193/GWwgb, 27 RyjvB 
2011 ZvwiL Abyhvqx Aemi †b‡eb Ges cybivq wb‡qvM †hvM¨ 
bq| cwil` evwl©K mvaviY mfvq †gmvm© û`v fvwm †PŠayix A¨vÛ 
†Kv-PvU©vW© A¨vKvD‡›Um‡K 2018 mv‡ji Rb¨ †Kv¤cvwbi 
wbix¶K wn‡m‡e Aby‡gv`‡bi mycvwik Ki‡Q|

16. K‡c©v‡iU Mf‡b©Ý KҜøv‡qÝ wi‡cvU©

K‡c©v‡iU bxwZi Ask wn‡m‡e, GSK evsjv‡`k K‡c©v‡iU 
Mf‡b©Ý-Gi myD”P gvb eRvq ivLvi Rb¨ me©`v m‡Pó| †KvҜ
vwbi K‡c©v‡iU Mf‡b©Ý PvU©vi K‡c©v‡iU Mf‡b©Ý †mKk‡b 
DwjøwLZ| c×wZwU wKfv‡e †KvҜvwbwU cwiPvwjZ n‡e Ges 
¯^”QZv, Revew`wnZv Ges mZZvi gvb wbwðZ Kiv n‡e Zvi 
cÖwµqv wb‡`©k K‡i |

GmBwmi weÁwß b¤̂i GmBwm/wmGgAviAviwmwW/2006-158/ 
134/GWwgb/44 ZvwiL 07 AvM÷ 2012 ZvwiL Abyhvqx 
cÖ‡qvRbxq GKwUgvÎ e¨wZµg Qvov mg Í̄ wb‡ ©̀kbv ev Í̄evqb 
Ki‡Z †c‡i Avgiv Avbw›`Z| e¨wZµgwU n‡jv-¯̂Zš¿ 
cwiPvjK-Gi c` 90 w`‡bi †ewk Lvwj _vKv| Z‡e, 153 w`‡bi 
g‡a¨ †m k~b¨ ’̄vb c~iY Kiv nq| †Kv¤cvwb GB wb‡qv‡Mi wej¤̂ 
evsjv‡`k wmwKDwiwUR A¨vÛ G·‡PÄ Kwgkb (weGmBwm)-†K 
Rvbvq| 2017 mv‡ji K‡c©v‡iU Mf‡b©Ý KҜøv‡q‡Ýi cÖwZ‡e`b 
Annexure-III-G hy³ Kiv n‡q‡Q, †mBm‡½ wb‡ ©̀kbv Abyhvqx 
KҜøv‡q‡Ýi mb`I hy³ Kiv n‡q‡Q|

17. ¯^xK…wZ

GSK-Gi PvwjKv kw³- †ivMx Ges †fv³v‡`i‡K m‡e©v”P 
AMÖvwaKvi †`qvi Rb¨ cwiPvjK cwil` †KvҜvwbi mKj 
Kg©x‡`i MfxiZg K…ZÁZv Rvbv‡”Q| †ivMx, †fv³v Ges 
¯^v¯’¨‡mev †ckvRxex‡`i h_vh_ Z_¨ cÖ`vb I cY¨ cÖvwß wbwðZ 
Kivi Rb¨ wewfbœ mxgve×Zvi g‡a¨I Kg©x `jwU K‡Vvifv‡e 
KvR K‡i‡Q|

†KvҜvwbi cÖwZ wek¦vm Ges Av¯’v a‡i ivLvi Rb¨ ¯^v¯’¨‡mev 
†ckvRxex, †ivMx, †fv³v Ges e¨emvwqK Askx`vi‡`i Kv‡Q 
Avgiv Mfxifv‡e K…ZÁ| ōvivB Avgv‡`i Aby‡cÖiYv| Avgiv GB 
wek¦vm eRvq ivLvi Rb¨ `„p cÖwZÁ|

evsjv‡`k wmwKDwiwUR A¨vÛ G·‡PÄ Kwgkb, XvKv ÷K 
G·‡PÄ wjwg‡UW, evsjv‡`k Bb‡f÷‡g›U †W‡fjc‡g›U 
A_wiwU, ¯^v¯’¨ gš¿Yvjq, kªg gš¿Yvjq, †K›`ªxq wW‡cvwRUwi 
evsjv‡`k wjwg‡UW, Avw_©K cÖwZôvbmg~n, exgv †Kv¤cvwb, 
BDwUwjwU cÖ`vbKvix, wewfbœ miKvix KZ©…c¶ Ges mKj e¨w³ 
I ms¯’v †÷K‡nvìvi‡`i GSK AvšÍwiK ab¨ev` Rvbvq|

†ev‡W©i c‡ÿ

†WwfW wcÖPvW©                Bivg kvwKi ivwng 
†Pqvig¨vb            g¨v‡bwRs wW‡i±i

6 gvP© 2018  
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 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Assets Employed   

Property, Plant And Equipment 694,252  701,867 600,794 546,216 536,861

Intangible Assets 51,638  23,911  3,437  4,374  5,467

Net Non-Current Assets 36,466  24,903  10,370   27,713   44,046

Net Current Assets 1,868,237   1,841,437   2,037,951   1,876,912   1,391,003

Total Assets Employed 2,650,593  2,592,118 2,652,552 2,455,215 1,977,377

Financed by    

Share Capital 120,465    120,465   120,465   120,465   120,465

Reserves and Surplus 2,509,885    2,465,338   2,483,339   2,196,032   1,730,647

Shareholders’ Equity 2,630,350  2,585,803 2,603,804 2,316,497 1,851,112

Retirement Bene�t Obligations -       40,822   77,241   81,469 

Obligation under Finance Lease 3,114    6,315   8,813   14,865   12,757

Deferred Tax Liabilities 17,129    -     (887)  46,612   32,039

 20,243   6,315   48,748   138,718   126,265

Total Capital Employed 2,650,593  2,592,118 2,652,552 2,455,215 1,977,377

Turnover and Pro�t     

Sales-Net of Vat and Trade Discount 6,796,559    6,284,015   6,698,828   7,187,255   6,774,872

Pro�t/(Loss) from Operation  884,892    786,807   1,040,612   1,062,530   604,604

Pro�t before Int, Dep & Tax 1,011,002  908,568 921,341 942,649  505,488 

Pro�t/(Loss) for the Year  669,304    644,554   831,079   826,778   546,249

Ratios    

Gross Pro�t Ratio - %  38.78    38.99   39.33   37.72   32.67

Earning per Share (EPS)-Taka  55.56    53.51   68.99   68.63   45.35

Price/Earning (P/E) Ratio-times  27.92    28.65   26.09   22.04   21.08

Price/Equity Ratio-times  155.10    153.29   179.98   151.23   95.57 

Dividend per Share (DPS)-Taka  55.00    50.00   55.00   42.00   30.00

Dividend Payout-Percentage  98.99    93.45   79.72   61.20   66.16

Dividend Yield-Percentage  3.53    3.26   3.06   2.78   3.14

Net Assets Value per Share-Taka  218.36    214.66   216.16   192.30   153.67

Net Operating Cash Flow per Share  117.75   71.87   84.42   111.14   82.22 

Return on Shareholders Equity-%  25.45    24.93   31.92   35.69   29.51 

Return on Capital Employed -% 33.34    30.32   39.22   43.28   30.58 

Debt Equity Ratio-times  111.78    269.35   53.41   16.70   14.66

Current Ratio-times  1.52  1.67   1.73   1.73   1.69
Market Price per Share at
 31 December -Taka  1,551.00  1,532.90   1,799.80   1,512.30   955.70
Market Capitalisation at
31 December (Taka Million)  18,684  18,466   21,681   18,218   11,513

Average Number of Employees  967    940   906   822   714 
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Earning Per Share (EPS) Taka

2017

2013

2014

2015

2016

55.56

45.35

68.63

68.99

53.51

Net Assets Per Share (Taka)

2017

2013

2014

2015

2016

218.36

153.67

192.30

216.16

214.66

Return on Shareholder's Equity (%)

2017

2013

2014

2015

2016

25.45

29.51

35.69

31.92

24.93
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2013

200
400
600
800

1,100
1,200
1,400
1,600
1,800
2,000

Market Price Per Share (Taka) on 31st December

2014 2015 2016 2017

Shareholder’s Funds (Taka ‘000)

2017

2013

2014

2015

2016

2,630,350

1,851,112

2,316,497

2,603,804

2,585,803

Net Assets/Market Price Per Share (%)

2017

2014

2013

2015

2016

14.08

16.08

12.37

12.01

14.00
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Underlying EBITDA +11% (Taka ‘000)

2017

2013

2014

2015

2016

1,011,002

505,488

942,649

921,341

908,568

Revenues +8% (Taka ‘000)

2017

2013

2014

2015

2016

6,796,559

6,774,872

6,698,828

6,284,015

7,187,255

Net Operating Cash Flow +64% (Taka ‘000)

2017

2013

2014

2015

2016

1,418,375

990,410

1,338,742

1,016,941

865,707

Operating pro�t +12% (Taka ‘000)

2017

2013

2014

2015

2016

884,892

604,604

1,040,612

786,808

1,062,530
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2017
%

2016
%

Cost of Goods
Salary, Wages and Bene�ts
Depreciation
Fuel & Power
Other Expenses
Income Tax
Pro�t after Tax
Total

52.56
15.44

1.93
0.76

15.37
4.09
9.85

100.00

52.94
14.54

1.95
0.78

17.60
3.20
9.00

100.00

53%

14%

2%
1%

18%

3%

9%
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15%
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15%
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10%
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The positive number of EVA reveals that the Company has more than covered its cost of capital.

Net Operating Pro�t After Tax (NPAT)
Total Capital Employed
Cost of Capital in %
Cost of Capital (COC)
EVA = NPAT-COC

Calculation of EVA 2017 2016
 669,304

 2,653,881
23%

 603,509
 65,795

 644,554 
 2,595,403 

23%
 604,166 
 40,388 

Economic Value Added (EVA)
EVA provides a measurement of a company's economic success over a period of time. It shows how well a 
company has added value for its investors and it can be compared against company's peers for an analysis of how 
well the company is operating in its industry.

Market share information of major categories of products - %

Health food drink
Glucose Powder
Vaccines
Dermatology

Categories 2017 2016
 92.10
 93.80
 45.10
 14.37

88.10
93.81
45.00
14.30

The value added statement provides a detailed account of total value addition and the 
distribution of the value created by the company.

Distribution of  Value

GSK Bangladesh contributes positively to socio-economic development by empowering employees through the 
payment of salaries and allowances; by paying attractive and consistent dividend to the shareholders; by assisting 
the regulatory authorities through paying taxes & duties.

Government Revenue & Taxes
Employees Remuneration & Bene�ts
Dividends
Depreciation & Retained Pro�t

Value Added:

Turnover including VAT 7,873,988   7,263,617
  
Less Bought in Materials & Services 3,553,464  3,459,331
 4,320,524 97.98 3,804,286 97.98
Other income 26,178 0.59 19,555 0.50
Financial Income 62,709 1.42 58,751 1.51
 4,409,411 100 3,882,593 100

2016 Amount %2017 Amount %

Applied to:

*Figures for 2016 are amended

Government Revenue & Taxes 1,994,471 45.23  1,733,158 44.64

Employees Remuneration & Bene�ts 1,079,860 24.49  786,616 20.26

Dividends 538,791 12.22  596,505 15.36
 3,613,122 81.94  3,116,279 80.26
Depreciation & Retained Pro�t 796,289 18.06 766,314 19.74
 4,409,411 100  3,882,593 100

18%

45%

12%

25%

20%

20%

45%

45%

2017 2016
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Shares Held % of HoldingName of Shareholder
i) Parent:
 Set�rst Limited, UK
ii)  Directors/CEO/CS/CFO/Audit Head and
 their spouses and minor children

iii)  Executives
 Mr. Noor Mohammad
 Mr. Mahbubur Rahman

iv)  Shareholders who hold 10% or more
 Investment Corporation of Bangladesh (ICB) & ICB Units
 and Mutual Funds

v)  Other Shareholders, who hold less than 10% 
 General Public
 Sadharan Bima Corporation
 Other Local Institutions

 9,875,144 

Nil

1
2

 

1,596,324 

 246,001 
 76,437 

 252,540 
 12,046,449 

81.98%

Nil

0.00001%
0.00002%

13.25%

2.04%
0.63%
2.10%
100%

Set�rst Limited, UK

96 I GSK Annual Report 2017

82%

13%

2%

1%

2%

Investment Corporation
of Bangladesh (ICB) & ICB Units
and Mutual Funds

General Public

Sadharan Bima
Corporation

Other Local Institutions
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We have examined compliance to the BSEC guidelines on Corporate Governance Guidelines by GlaxoSmithKline 
Bangladesh Limited for the year ended 31 December 2017. These guidelines relate to the noti�cation 
#SEC/CMRRCD/2005-158/134/Admin/44 dated 7 August 2012 and subsequently amended through the 
noti�cation # SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/147/Admin/48 dated 21 July 2013 of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 
Commission (BSEC) on Corporate Governance under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969.

Such compliance to the codes of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the company's management. Our 
examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by the company in ensuring 
the compliance to the conditions of Corporate Governance Guidelines. This is a scrutiny and veri�cation only and 
not an expression of opinion on the �nancial statements of the company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us, we certify that, 
subject to the remarks and observations as reported under 1.2(iv) of condition #7 in the attached Compliance 
Statements, the company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance Guidelines as stipulated in 
the above-mentioned guidelines issued by the BSEC.

We also state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company, nor a 
certi�cation on the e�ciency or e�ectiveness with which the management has conducted the a�airs of the 
company. This is also no endorsement about quality of contents in the Annual Report of the company.

Certi�cate on compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance Guidelines of 
Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission to the Shareholders of 

GlaxoSmithKline Bangladesh Limited

Corporate O�ce:
SMC Tower (7th Floor)
33, Banani C/A, Road 17
Dhaka-1213, Bangladesh
Phone  : +88-02-9821057-58
 : +88-02-9821365-66
E-mail : info@mabsj.com
Web : www.mabsj.com

Dhaka, 06 March 2018 MABS & J Partners
Chartered Accountants

Motijheel Branch O�ce:
21, Purana Paltan Line
(4th & 7th Floor)
Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh
Phone : +88-02-58315469/ 58315471
 : +88-02-9332936
E-mail : info@mabsj.com
Web : www.mabsj.com

Certi�cate of Compliance
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Annexure iii

Status of compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance Guidelines as set by the Bangladesh 
Securities & Exchange Commission (BSEC) by the Noti�cation # SEC/CMRRCD/2006- 158/134/Admin/44 dated 07 
August 2012 and subsequently amended through their noti�cation # SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/147/Admin/48 
dated 21 July 2013 issued under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969:

GlaxoSmithKline Bangladesh Limited
Statement of Compliance of Corporate Governance Guidelines

(Report under Condition No. 7.00)

Condition
No. Title

Compliance Status
(Put √ in the

appropriate column) Remarks
(if any)

Complied
Not

complied

1 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1.1 Board's Size

1.2(i) Minimum number of Independent Directors

1.2(ii)(a) Shareholding by Independent Directors

1.2(ii)(b) Relationship with Company's Sponsor

1.2(ii)(c) Relationship with the Company

1.2(ii)(d) Member/Director/O�cer of Stock Exchange

1.2(ii)(e) Shareholder/Director/O�cer of any member of Stock Exchange

1.2(ii)(f ) Partner of Statutory Audit Firm

1.2(ii)(g) Directorship in other Listed Companies

1.2(ii)(h) Defaulter in payment of bank/NBFI loan

1.2(ii)(i) Conviction for criminal o�ence

1.2(iii) Appointment of Independent Director(s) 

1.2(iv) Vacancy of the post of Independent Directors

1.2(v) Code of Conducts Annual Compliance

1.2(vi) Tenure of Independent Directors

1.3 Quali�cation of Independent Director (ID)

1.3(i) Knowledge & Integrity of Independent Directors

1.3(ii) Quali�cation and Experience of Independent Directors

1.3(iii) Relaxation of Quali�cation of Independent Directors

1.4 Chairman of the Board & Chief Executive O�cer

1.5 Directors' Report to Shareholders

1.5(i) Industry Outlook  Possible Future Development

1.5(ii) Segment or Product-wise Performance

1.5(iii) Risk and Concerns

1.5(iv) Discussion on COGS, GP & Net Pro�t

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

-

√

√

√

√

 

√

√

√

√

√

One Independent 
Director post remained 
vacant for the period 
from 01 Sept 2017 to 
31 Dec 2017. However, 
subsequently 
appointed on 1st 
February 2018.

N/A

Statement of Compliance 
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√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

(Report under Condition No. 7.00)

Condition
No. Title

Compliance Status
(Put √ in the

appropriate column) Remarks
(if any)

Complied
Not

complied

1.5(v) Extraordinary gain or loss

1.5(vi) Basis for related party transaction

1.5(vii) Utilization of proceeds from PI/RI

1.5(viii) Explanation of deterioration of �nancial result

1.5(ix) Explanation of variance between quarterly &

 annual Financial Statement

1.5(x) Remuneration of Directors

1.5(xi) Fairness of �nancial statement

1.5(xii) Maintenance of proper books of accounts

1.5(xiii) Adoption of appropriate accounting policies and estimates

1.5(xiv) Compliance with IAS/BAS/IFRS/BFRS

1.5(xv) Soundness of Internal Control System

1.5(xvi) Ability to Continue as a going Concern

1.5(xvii) Signi�cant Deviation in Operating Results compared to last year

1.5(xviii) Key Operating and Financial Data of preceding �ve years

1.5(xix) Reason for not declaring Dividend

1.5(xx) Board Meeting attendance

1.5(xxi)(a) Shareholding by Parent/Subsidiary/Associated companies

1.5(xxi)(b) Shareholding by Directors, CEO,CFO, CS, HIA

1.5(xxi)(c) Shareholding by Executives

1.5(xxi)(d) Shareholders holding 10% or more

1.5(xxii)(a) Resume of Directors

1.5(xxii)(b) Expertise of Directors

1.5(xxii)(c) Directorship in other companies

2. CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO), HEAD OF INTERNAL
 AUDIT (HIA) AND COMPANY SECRETARY (CS)

2.1 Appointment

2.2 Requirement to attend the board meetings

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE

3(i) Audit Committee as a sub-committee

3(ii) Function of Audit Committee

3(iii) Reporting to the Board of Directors

3.1 Constitution of the Audit Committee

3.1(0 Composition of Audit Committee

3.1(ii) Appointment of Members

3.1(iii) Quali�cation of Members

No such incidence 
arose

N/A

N/A

N/A
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(Report under Condition No. 7.00)

Condition
No. Title

Compliance Status
(Put √ in the

appropriate column) Remarks
(if any)

Complied
Not

complied

3.1(iv) Filling of Vacancy

3.1(v) Secretary of the Committee

3.1(vi) Quorum of meeting

3.2 Chairman of the Audit Committee

3.2(i) Selection

3.2(ii) Requirement of presence in the AGM

3.3 Role of Audit Committee

3.3(i) Oversee the Financial Reporting Process

3.3(ii) Monitor Accounting Policies and Principles

3.3(iii) Monitor Internal Control Risk management process

3.3(iv) Oversee hiring & performance of external auditors

3.3(v) Review the Annual Financial Statements

3.3(vi) Review the quarterly and half yearly �nancial statements

3.3(vii) Review the adequacy of Internal Audit Function

3.3(viii) Review of signi�cant related party transactions

3.3(ix) Review of the Management Letters

3.3(x) Application of fund raised through IPO/PRO/RI

3.4 Reporting of the Audit Committee

3.4.1 Reporting to the Board of Directors

3.4.l(i) Reporting on activities

3.4.1(ii)(a) Report on con�icts of interest

3.4.1(ii)(b) Material defect in Internal Control System

3.4.1(ii)(c) Suspected infringement of laws

3.4.1(ii)(d) Any other matters

3.4.2 Reporting to the Authorities

3.5 Reporting to the Shareholders & General Investors

4 EXTERNAL/STATUTORY AUDITORS

4(i) Appraisal or Valuation Services

4(ii) Financial Information System

4(iii) Book-Keeping or other services

4(iv) Broker dealer services

4(v) Actuarial services

4(vi) Internal Audit Services

4(vii) Any other services

4(viii) Possession of share by Partner or Employee of Audit Firm

4(ix) Audit/certi�cation service on compliance of Corporate Governance

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

No such incidence 
arose

N/A

No such incidence 
arose
No such incidence 
arose

No such incidence 
arose

No such incidence 
arose



H
e

a
l

t
h

i
e

r
 

T
o

m
o

r
r

o
w

GSK Annual Report 2017 I 101

(Report under Condition No. 7.00)

Condition
No. Title

Compliance Status
(Put √ in the

appropriate column) Remarks
(if any)

Complied
Not

complied

5 SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

5(i) Composition of the Board of Directors

5(ii) Independent Director

5(iii) Submission of minutes to the holding company

5(iv) Review of a�airs by the holding company

5(v) Review of �nancial statement by the 
 Audit Committee of holding company

6 DUTIES OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) AND
 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO)

6(i)(a) Financial Statements do not contain any untrue or
  misleading statement

6(i)(b) Financial Statements present a true & fair view of the 
 company's a�airs and are in compliance with Accounting 
 Standards and applicable laws

6(ii) Certi�cation that there are no fraudulent, illegal or in 
 violation of the Company's code of conduct

7 REPORTING AND COMPLIANCE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

7(i) Certi�cation on compliance of Corporate Governance

7(ii) Directors' statement on compliance of the above 
 conditions in the Directors' Report

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

√

√

√

√

√
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CEO & CFO’s Certi�cation
Annexure iv
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Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders

We have audited the accompanying �nancial 
statements of GlaxoSmithKline Bangladesh Limited 
which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as 
at 31 December 2017, Statement of Pro�t and Loss, 
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of 
Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the 
year then ended and a summary of signi�cant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year then ended.

Management’s Responsibility for the 
Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of these �nancial statements in 
accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting 
Standards (BFRS), the Companies Act 1994, the 
Securities & Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable 
laws and regulations. This responsibility includes: 
designing, implementing, and maintaining internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair 
representation of �nancial statements that are free 
from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or 
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting 
policies and making accounting estimates that are 
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
�nancial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with Bangladesh Standards on 
Auditing (BSA). Those standards require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute assurance 
whether the �nancial statements are free from material 
misstatement due to fraud and error.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain 
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the �nancial statements. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgment including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
�nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In 
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and 
fair presentation of the �nancial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the e�ectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall 

presentation of the �nancial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
su�cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the �nancial statements of 
GlaxoSmithKline Bangladesh Limited prepared in 
accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting 
Standards (BFRS), give a true and fair view of the state 
of the company's a�airs as at 31 December 2017 and of 
the results of its operations and cash �ows for the year 
then ended and comply with the Companies Act 1994, 
the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other 
applicable laws and regulations.

We also report that
a) We have obtained all the information and 

explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our 
audit and made due veri�cation thereof;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by GlaxoSmithKline 
Bangladesh Limited so far as it appeared from our 
examination of these books;

c) The Company’s Statement of Financial Position 
(Balance Sheet) and Statement of Pro�t and Loss 
(pro�t and loss account) dealt with by the report are 
in agreement with the books of account and returns; 
and

d) The expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the 
company's business.

ACNABIN
Chartered Accountants

Dhaka,
27 February 2018
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Statement of Financial Position 
Taka in '000

As at 31 December

Report of the Auditors to the Shareholders:
This is the Statement of Financial Position referred to in our report of even date.

Dhaka 
27 February 2018

ACNABIN
Chartered Accountants

Managing Director                                                            Director                                                                   Company Secretary

 Notes 2017 2016
ASSETS  
Non-current assets  
Property, plant and equipment  4  694,252 701,867 
Intangible assets 5 51,638 23,911 
Other receivables  7.6 4,031 5,150 
Deferred tax asset 11   -  6,235 
Retirement bene�t assets  15   32,433   13,518 
   782,355   750,681 
Current assets  
Inventories  6   920,530  785,826 
Trade and other receivables  7   1,014,510   1,011,441 
Cash and cash equivalents  8   3,526,422   2,844,505 
  5,461,462   4,641,772 
TOTAL ASSETS   6,243,817   5,392,453 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   
Equity attributable to the Company's equity holders  
Share capital  16  120,465   120,465 
Retained earnings  18   2,445,240   2,400,693 
General reserve   5,000   5,000 
Revaluation reserve  17.1  59,479   59,479 
Capital reserve  17.2   166   166 
Total equity   2,630,350   2,585,803 
  
LIABILITIES  
Non-current liabilities  
Deferred tax liability  11   17,129   -   
Obligation under �nance lease  14   3,114   6,315 
Total non-current liabilities   20,242   6,315 
  
Current liabilities  
Trade and other payables  9   3,471,318   2,738,145 
Current tax liabilities  10   118,619   58,905 
Obligation under �nance lease  14   3,288   3,285 
Total current liabilities   3,593,225   2,800,335 
Total liabilities   3,613,467   2,806,650 
   
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   6,243,817  5,392,453
CONTINGENT  LIABILITIES  &  COMMITMENTS 19 & 20 
  
The �nancial statements were authorised for issuance by the Board of Directors on 27 February 2018

As of 31 December 2017

GlaxoSmithKline Bangladesh Limited
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Statement of Pro�t and Loss
Taka in '000

Year to 31 December

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the �nancial statements.
The �nancial statements were authorised for issuance by the Board of Directors on 27 February 2018

Report of the Auditors to the Shareholders:
This is the Statement of Pro�t and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

ACNABIN
Chartered Accountants

Dhaka 
27 February 2018

 Notes 2017 2016
Revenue 21  6,796,559  6,284,015 
Cost of sales 22  (4,161,052)  (3,834,031)
Gross pro�t   2,635,507   2,449,984 

Operating expenses:  
Selling expenses 23   (1,298,614)  (1,301,554)
Distribution expenses 24   (32,064)  (27,057)
Administrative expenses 25   (446,116)  (354,122)
Other income 26   26,178   19,555 
Total    (1,750,615)  (1,663,177)
Pro�t from operations   884,892   786,807 
Finance income 27  62,709   58,751 
Pro�t  before  taxation   947,601   845,558 
Income tax expenses 32  (278,297)  (201,005)
Pro�t for the year   669,304   644,554 

Earnings per share (Taka)   
Basic and diluted 34 55.56  53.51 

For the year ended 31 December 2017

GlaxoSmithKline Bangladesh Limited

Managing Director                                                            Director                                                                   Company Secretary
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Report of the Auditors to the Shareholders:
This is the Statement of Comprehensive Income referred to in our report of even date.

ACNABIN
Chartered Accountants

Dhaka 
27 February 2018

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Taka in '000

Year to 31 December

 Notes 2017 2016
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR   669,304  644,554 
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax   -  -   
Items that will not be reclassi�ed subsequently to pro�t or loss:
Remeasurement of pension fund assets 15.2 (22,434)  -   

Items that may be reclassi�ed subsequently to pro�t or loss:  -  -   

Total comprehensive income for the year   646,869  644,554 

For the year ended 31 December 2017

GlaxoSmithKline Bangladesh Limited

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the �nancial statements. The �nancial statements were 
authorised for issuance by the board of Directors on 27 February 2018.

Managing Director                                                            Director                                                                   Company Secretary
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Managing Director                                                            Director                                                                   Company Secretary

Statement of Changes in Equity
Taka in '000

Year to 31 December

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the �nancial statements.
The �nancial statements were authorised for issuance by the Board of Directors on 27 February 2018

Report of the Auditors to the Shareholders:
This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date.

ACNABIN
Chartered Accountants

Dhaka 
27 February 2018

Balance at 31 December 2015  120,465 2,418,694 5,000 59,479 166 2,603,804 
       0
Pro�t  for the year   -     644,554   -      -     644,554 
       
Other comprehensive income    -        -   
       
Final dividend  12  -     (662,555)  -      -     (662,555)
       
Balance at 31 December 2016   120,465   2,400,693   5,000   59,479   166   2,585,803 
       0
Pro�t  for the year   -     669,304   -      -     669,304 
       
Other comprehensive income    (22,434)     (22,434)
       
Final dividend  12  -     (602,322)  -      -     (602,322)
       
Balance at 31 December 2017   120,465   2,445,240   5,000   59,479   166   2,630,350 

Notes Share 
capital

Retained
earnings

General
 reserve

 Revaluation
 reserve

Capital
 reserve

Total
equity

For the year ended 31 December 2017

GlaxoSmithKline Bangladesh Limited
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of the �nancial statements.
The �nancial statements were authorised for issuance by the Board of Directors on 27 February 2018

Report of the Auditors to the Shareholders:
This is the Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date.

ACNABIN
Chartered Accountants

Dhaka 
27 February 2018

Statement of Cash Flows
Taka in '000

Year to 31 December

 Notes 2017 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers   6,767,803  6,554,954 
Payment for cost and expenses   (5,215,397)  (5,414,364)
Other income 26  5,513  411 
Cash generated from operations   1,557,919  1,141,000 
Interest received 27  49,385  67,563 
Interest paid on �nance lease 27  (1,187)  (1,866)
Income tax paid 10 (187,742)  (340,990)
Net cash from operating activities   1,418,375  865,707 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES   
Acquisition of property, plant & equipment   (159,450)  (244,816)
Sales proceeds of property, plant & equipment 43  28,512  20,235 
Net cash used in investing activities   (130,938)  (224,581)
   
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Dividend paid 12.1  (602,322)  (662,555)
Finance lease paid   (3,198)  (5,265)
Net cash used in �nancing activities   (605,520)  (667,820)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents    681,917  (26,693)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 8  2,844,505  2,871,198 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 8  3,526,422  2,844,505 

For the year ended 31 December 2017

GlaxoSmithKline Bangladesh Limited

Managing Director                                                            Director                                                                   Company Secretary



Notes To The Financial Statements

1 The Company and its nature of business
1.1 The Company
 GlaxoSmithKline Bangladesh Limited (the 

Company) was  incorporated on 25 February 1974 
as a public limited company and is listed with 
Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited. The Company is a  
subsidiary of  GlaxoSmithKline Plc, UK through its 
fully owned subsidiary Set�rst Limited, UK.

1.2 Nature of business
 The principal activities of the Company 

throughout the year continued to be 
manufacturing and marketing of pharmaceuticals, 
vaccines and consumer healthcare products.

2 Basis of preparation of �nancial statements

2.1 Financial statements
2.1.1 Composition
 The �nancial statements comprise:
 Statement of Financial Position
 Statement of Pro�t and Loss
 Statement of Comprehensive Income
 Statement of Changes in Equity
 Statement of Cash Flows
 Notes to the Financial Statements

2.1.2 Statement of compliance
 The �nancial statements have been prepared in 

accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting 
Standards (BFRSs) and the relevant requirements 
of the Schedule to the Securities & Exchange 
Rules, 1987, the Listing Regulations of Dhaka 
Stock Exchange Limited, 1996 and of the 
Companies Act 1994.

2.1.3 Financial period
 This �nancial statements cover the �nancial year 

from 01 January to 31 December 2017, with 
comparative �gures for the �nancial years from 01 
January to 31 December 2016.

2.2 Basis of measurement
 These �nancial statements have been prepared 

under the 'historical cost' convention except for 
certain operating �xed assets which were 
revalued in1978.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency
 These �nancial statements are presented in 

Bangladesh Taka which is the functional and 
presentation currency. Figures have been rounded o� 
to the nearest thousand Taka, unless stated otherwise.

2.4 Use of estimates and judgements
 The preparation of �nancial statements in 

conformity with BFRS requires management to 
make judgements, estimates and assumptions 
that in�uence the application of accounting and 
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses. Judgements and estimates are based 
on historical experiences and other factors, 
including expectations that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances. Hence, 
actual experience and result may di�er from these 
judgements and estimates.

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are 
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period 
in which the estimate is revised if the revision 
a�ects only that period, or in the period of the 
revision and future periods if the revision a�ects 
both current and future periods. Information 
about signi�cant areas of estimation, uncertainty 
and critical judgements in applying accounting 
policies that have the signi�cant e�ect on the 
amounts recognised in the �nancial statements 
are mentioned below:

3 Summary of Signi�cant Accounting Policies

3.1.1 Property, plant and equipment (PP&E)
 Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost or 

valuation less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment. Capital work-in-progress is stated at 
cost. E�ective from January 2013, all personal 
computers (Desktop, Laptop, Note Book, Monitor) 
are charged o� as revenue expenditure. PCs 
purchased up to 31 December 2012 were 
capitalised and will continue to be depreciated over 
the remaining useful life of the PCs. Maintenance 
and normal repairs are expensed as incurred while 
major renewals and improvements are capitalised.

For the year ended 31 December 2017

GlaxoSmithKline Bangladesh Limited

 Policy Note
Property, plant &
equipment-Valuation 3.1.1 4
Property, plant &
equipment-Depreciation 3.3.1 4
Valuation of inventories 3.4 6
Deferred tax 3.6.2 11
Impairment of property,
plant & equipment 3.2 N/A
Employee bene�t liabilities 3.5 15
Amortisation 3.3.2 5
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3.1.2 Intangible assets
 Intangible Assets represent cost incurred for 

acquiring and developing computer software for 
Enterprise Resources Planning (ERP) of the 
company where the software supports a signi�cant 
business system and the expenditure leads to the 
creation of a durable asset. ERP systems software 
generally involves signi�cant customisation prior 
to implementation and is expected to have a useful 
economic life of seven years.

3.2 Impairment of PP&E
 The carrying values of all PP&E are reviewed for 

impairment on annual basis to assess whether 
there is any indication that the assets might be 
impaired. Any provision for impairment is 
charged to the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income in the year concerned.

 There is no impairment in 2017 and 2016.

3.3.1 Depreciation
 Depreciation is provided on straight line method 

at the annual rates shown below and leasehold 
land is amortised annually in such a manner that 
at the end of the period of lease the land is fully 
amortised :

 Category of PP&E Rate (%)
 Freehold buildings 2.5
 Plant and machinery 5, 10 & 33.33
 Furniture, �xtures and equipment 10,12.5 & 15
 Computers 25, 33.33 & 100
 Vehicles 25
 
 Depreciation on additions made during the year 

is charged from the month in which the newly 
acquired assets are put into commercial 
operations. Depreciation on disposal of property, 
plant and equipment is made up to the month 
prior to the disposal. 

 Depreciation method, useful lives and residual 
values are reviewed at each reporting date.

3.3.2 Amortization of intangible assets
 Amortization is calculated to write o� the cost of 

the intangible assets, using the straight-line 
method, over their expected useful lives. The 
normal expected useful life of any computer 
software is as follows:

 Category of PP&E Years
 Commercial ERP 8
 Software other than ERP 7

3.4 Basis of valuation of inventories

3.5 Retirement bene�t schemes

 Gratuity fund:
 The  Company  operates  an  unfunded  gratuity  

scheme,  provision  in  respect  of which is made 
annually covering all its  eligible permanent  
employees  other  than   the management sta�.

 Pension fund
 The  Company  contributes  (based  on  actuarial  

valuation of 2015)  to  a  recognised pension fund 
which  is  operated  for  its  eligible  permanent  
management sta�. The fund has now been closed 
to new entrants joining the Company on and after 
1 September 2012.

 
 Provident fund:
 The Company maintains contributory recognised 

provident funds for its eligible permanent  
employees.

3.6 Taxation
 Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax 

currently payable and deferred tax.

  3.6.1 Current tax
 Provision for current year's taxation is based on 

the elements of income and expenditure as 
reported in the �nancial statements and is 
computed in accordance with the provisions of 
the Finance Act/Ordinance.

Category Basis of valuation

Finished products and
Work-in-process

At the lower of cost 
and net realisable 
value. The cost 
includes allocation of 
production overheads 
that relate to bringing 
the inventories to their 
present condition and 
location.

Raw and packaging 
materials

At  the  lower  of cost 
and net  realisable value. 

Stores and spares At the lower of weighted 
average cost and net 
realisable value.

Materials & stores
in-transit

At cost including 
related charges.
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3.6.2 Deferred tax
 Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the 

liability method, on temporary di�erences arising 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and 
their carrying amounts in the �nancial 
statements. Currently enacted tax rates are used 
in the determination of deferred income tax.

 Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all 
temporary taxable di�erences.

 
 Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent 

that it is probable that future taxable pro�t will be 
available against which the temporary 
di�erences can be utilised.

3.7 Foreign currencies translation/transaction 
Foreign  currency receipts and payments during 
the year are translated at  the exchange  rate 
ruling on the transaction date. However, assets 
and liabilities at the reporting date are converted  
at  the  rate existing on that date.

3.8 Revenue recognition
 Revenue represents product invoiced during the 

year to customers net of value added tax, rebates, 
discounts and commission.

3.9 Leases 
 Leases are classi�ed as �nance leases whenever 

the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All 
other leases are classi�ed as operating lease.  

3.10 Dividend distribution
 Dividend distribution to the Company's 

shareholders is recognised as a liability in the 
�nancial statements in the period in which the 
dividends are approved by the Company's 
shareholders.

3.11 Earnings per share
 The Company calculates its earnings per share in 

accordance with Bangladesh Accounting 
Standard (BAS-33) which has been shown on the 
face of Statement of Comprehensive income.

 Basic earnings
 This represents earnings for the year attributable 

to ordinary shareholders. As there were no 
preference shares requiring returns or dividends, 

minority interest or extraordinary items, the net 
pro�t after tax for the year has been considered 
as fully attributable to the ordinary shareholders.

 
 Basic earnings per share
 This has been calculated by dividing the basic 

earnings by the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding during the year.  
   
Diluted earnings per share  
 No diluted earnings per share is required to be 
calculated per year as there was no scope for 
dilution during the year. 

 
3.12 O�setting
 Financial assets and liabilities are o�set and the 

net amount is reported in the �nancial 
statements only when there is legally enforceable 
right to set-o� the recognized amounts and the 
Company intends either to settle on a net basis, 
or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities 
simultaneously.

 
3.13 Materiality and aggregation
 Each material class of similar items is presented 

separately in the �nancial statements. Items of 
dissimilar nature or function are presented 
separately unless they are immaterial.  
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Taka in '000

At  cost        
Freehold land  221   -   -  221   -     -     -     -    221
Leasehold land 619    -  - 619 188 7 - 194 425 
Freehold buildings 142,681  - - 142,681 67,511 3,324  -     70,835  71,846 
Plant and machinery  700,527  108,136 _ 808,662 449,185 62,756  -     511,940 296,722 
Furniture, �xtures &
equipment  203,704  104,722 3,422 305,004  121,698   19,698   2,085   139,311 165,693 
Vehicles  254,341  21,072   71,374   204,038  175,976   39,200   64,709   150,467  53,572 
  1,302,092   233,930   74,796   1,461,226  814,557   124,984   66,794   872,747  588,478 
Capital work-in-progress  206,505  108,556   215,989   99,073  -     -     -     -  99,073 
  1,508,598   342,486   290,785   1,560,298  814,557   124,984   66,794   872,747  687,551 
At  valuation - in  1978 

Freehold  land  4,831   -     -     4,831  -     -     -     -   4,831 
Leasehold land  12   -     -     12  12   -     -     12  -   
Freehold buildings  45,747   -     -     45,747  43,496   1,126   -     44,622  1,125 
Plant and machinery  7,397   -     -     7,397  6,678   -     -     6,678  720 
Furniture, �xtures
& equipment  1,491   -     -     1,491   1,466   -     -     1,466  25 
  59,479   -     -     59,479   51,651   1,126   -     52,777  6,702 
2017  1,568,076  342,486   290,785   1,619,777  866,208   126,110   66,794   925,524  694,252 

2016  1,456,365  250,662   138,951   1,568,076  855,572   121,760   111,123   866,209   701,867 

4 Property, Plant and Equipment  
4.1 The  following  is  the  statement  of property, plant & equipment

4.2 The  depreciation  charge  has  been  allocated  to

 Notes 2017 2016
Cost of sales 22 89,033  85,442
Selling expenses 23 18,400  21,624
Distribution expenses 24 1,681   1,893
Administrative expenses 25 16,983  12,777
Intercompany  13 23
  126,110  121,760

Disposals/
TransfersOpening Additions Closing DisposalsOpening Charged Closing

Value
As at 31 Dec

CarryingDepreciationGross   book   value at cost / valuation
2017
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Plant and machinery  - - - - Co. policy

 - - - - 
Furniture, �xtures
and equipment 3,422  2,085 1,337  

 3,422  2,085  1,337  Co. policy Management
      Sta�

      
Vehicles 71,374  64,709   6,665   28,512  Co. policy Management 
      Sta�
 71,374  64,709  6,665  28,512   

2017 74,796  66,794  8,002  28,512   
2016 74,796   67,221  7,575  20,235   

4.3 The following property, plant & equipment were disposed o� during the year

5 Intangible Assets
5.1 The following is the statement of intangible assets

5.2 As part of the global transaction between GSK Plc and Novartis AG, the Company has paid BDT. 156
 (Taka'000) to purchase some signi�cant portfolio vaccine business of Novartis Bangladesh according to
 the agreement between the Company and Novartis Bangladesh.
5.3 Capital work-in-progress represents cost of implementation of ERP which has been capitalised in 2017
 as intangible asset.

Cost or
valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
value

Sale
proceeds

Mode of
disposal

Particulars of
purchasers

Items

Taka in '000

At  cost        
Computer Software  7,654  -     -     7,654  5,466   1,095   -     6,561  1,093 
Acquisition of business  156  -     -     156  -     156   -     156  -   
ERP Software  -  54,520   -     54,520   -     3,975   -     3,975  50,545 
  7,810   54,520   -     62,330  5,466   5,226   -     10,692  51,638 
 Capital work-in-progress  21,567  32,953   54,520   -  -     -     -     -   -  
 
2017  29,377  87,473   54,520   62,330  5,466   5,226   -     10,692  51,638 

2016  7,810  21,567 -  29,377  4,373   1,093   -     5,466  23,911 

Disposals/
TransfersOpening Additions Closing DisposalsOpening Charged Closing

Value
As at 31 Dec

CarryingAmortizationGross   book   value at cost / valuation
2017

Taka  in  '000
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Taka in '000
As at 31 December

  Notes 2017 2016
6 Inventories    
 Finished products 39  399,227  345,985 
 Raw and packing materials   232,303  247,239 
 Work-in-process   117,663   74,887 
 Stores & spares   15,300   19,626 
 In transit - materials and stores   156,037   98,089 
    920,530   785,826 
7 Trade and other receivables   
7.1 The make-up of    
 Trade receivables - unsecured    808,220   764,953 
 Intercompany receivables   56,676   46,285 
 House building loan to employees - current portion   1,895   1,411 
 Others    51,331   61,558 
    918,122  874,208 
7.2 Prepayments    
 Suppliers   18,546   31,565 
 Employees    6,210   9,640 
 VAT    67,735   91,322 
 Security deposits    3,897   4,706 
    96,388   137,233 
     
    1,014,510   1,011,440 
     
7.3 Others include interest accrued on investments  - due   -     -   
                                                                                                - not due   25,627   11,116 
    25,627   11,116 
     
7.4 These include aggregate amount due by the managers and
 o�cers of the Company    
    6,210  9,640 

7.5 The maximum aggregate amount due by the managers and
 o�cers of the Company at the end of any month during the year
               14,833  18,376 
     
7.6 Other receivables realisable or adjustable after twelve months
 from the reporting date    
     
     House building loan    3,317   4,575 
     Rental   714   575 
    4,031  5,150
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Taka in '000
As at 31 December

  Notes 2017 2016
8 Cash and cash equivalents   
 Term deposits with scheduled commercial banks  3,034,986  1,837,332 
 Special Notice Deposit (SND) accounts with scheduled commercial banks   2,343  2,317 
 Current account with scheduled commercial banks   488,896  1,004,215 
 Cash in hand   197  641 
   3,526,422  2,844,505
 
9 Trade and Other Payables  
9.1 The make-up of    
 Trade payables   1,883,527  1,274,164 
 Expenses and other �nance 9.3  473,981   422,525 
 Provisions 9.2  1,102,564   1,031,424 
 Unclaimed dividend  9,042   8,793 
 Capital  expenditures   2,204   1,240 
         3,471,318  2,738,145 
     
9.2 These include the following items:
               Provisions for Contract Manufacturing   810,596  920,596 
               Provisions for Distributor's Claims   291,968   110,828 
    1,102,564   1,031,424 
     
 Provision for contract manufacturing    
 As GSK engages in contract manufacturing, the company agrees to cover for probable claims, including
 control lapses, arising from such arrangement. GSK standing on the prudent side, makes suitable provisions
 to cover such claims.
     
 Provision for Distributor’s claims   
 The agreement between GSK and the distributor requires GSK to give protection to its distributors from 
 certain losses, if arise. Out of a notice from the distributor indicating a probable claim this provision was made.

9.3 These include the following items:
 Tax deducted at source  26,511  18,652 

10 Current tax liabilities  
 Opening balance  58,905  193,543 
 Provided during the year 32  247,456  206,352 
    306,361  399,895 
 Paid during the year  (187,743)  (340,990)
 Closing balance   118,619  58,905 
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11 Deferred tax liability
Taka in '000

As at 31 December

Year 2017
Deferred tax relating to items of pro�t or loss    
Property, plant and equipment  639,193 427,509 211,684
Provision for gratuity  62,831    (62,831)
Net taxable temporary di�erence     148,853
Applicable tax rate    25.00%
Deferred tax liability relating to items of pro�t or loss at the end of the year (a)      37,213
Deferred tax liability relating to items of pro�t or loss at the beginning of the year      6,372
Deferred tax expense/ (income) recognized in pro�t or loss  32   30,842

Deferred tax asset relating to items directly recognised in other comprehensive income  
Actuarial gain/ (loss) directly recognized in other comprehensive income    (29,912) -  (29,912)

Applicable tax rate    25%
Deferred tax liability/ (asset) relating to items directly recognized in
other comprehensive income at the end of the year      (7,478)

Deferred tax liability/ (asset) relating to items directly recognized in 
other comprehensive income at the beginning of the year (b)    (12,607)
Deferred tax income recognized in other comprehensive income     (20,085)

Net deferred tax (assets) / liability (a+b)     17,129 

Year 2016    
Deferred tax relating to items of pro�t or loss  
Property, plant and equipment   492,565 394,020 98,545
Provision for gratuity  73,058  -     (73,058)
Net taxable temporary di�erence    25,487
Applicable tax rate    25.00%
Deferred tax liability relating to items of pro�t or loss at the end of the year (a)      6,372
Deferred tax liability relating to items of pro�t or loss at the beginning of the year      11,719
Deferred tax income/ (expense) recognized in pro�t or loss 32    (5,347)

Deferred tax asset relating to items directly recognised in other comprehensive income
Actuarial gain/ (loss) directly recognized in other comprehensive income   

Applicable tax rate    25.00%
Deferred tax asset relating to items directly recognized in other
comprehensive income at the end of the year     

Deferred tax asset relating to items directly recognized in other
comprehensive income at the beginning of the year   
Deferred tax income recognized in other comprehensive income (b)     (12,607)

Net deferred tax (assets) / liability (a+b)     (6,235)

Carrying
amount on
reporting

date
Tax baseNotes

Taxable
temporary
di�erence/
(Deductible
temporary
di�erence)
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Taka in '000
As at 31 December 

  Notes 2017 2016
12 Dividends
 Shareholding details 16.3 Final for 2016 Final for 2016
12.1 Paid
 a. Set�rst Limited, UK
 GBP 4,228,177.74 [2016: GBP 3,024,963.07]    493,757 543,133 
 b. Investment Corporation of Bangladesh and Mutual Funds   79,816 70,641 
 c. General public   12,300 7,551 
 d. Sadharan Bima Corporation   3,822 4,204 
 e. Other local �nancial /securities companies   12,627 37,026 
   602,322 662,555 

12.2  Unclaimed - on account of Bangladeshi shareholders 
  Prior year    1,541 1,769  
 Years  prior  to that   7,501 7,024  
    9,042 8,793

14 Obligations under �nance lease
 Amount payable under �nance lease:
 Within one year  4,012 4,447 
 In the second to �fth years inclusive   3,356 7,281 
    7,368 11,728 
 Less : Future �nance charge   966 2,128 
 Present value of lease obligations   6,402 9,600 
    
 Less : Amount due for settlement within 12 months     3,288 3,285 
 (shown under current liabilities)   
 Amount due for settlement after 12 months   3,114 6,315

15 Retirement bene�t obligations 

 15.1 Gratuity   62,831 73,059 
 15.2 Net pension fund   (95,263) (86,577)
   (32,433) (13,518)

13 Dividend per share
 The dividends for 2016 paid in 2017 were Taka 602,322.00 (Taka'000) (Tk 50.00 per share). A dividend in 

respect of 2017 of Taka 55 per share, amounting to a total dividend of Taka 662,554.70(Taka'000) is to be 
proposed at the 45th Annual General Meeting on 19th April, 2018. These �nancial statements do not re�ect 
this dividend payable.

The lease term is 5 years. For the year end 31 December 2017, the average e�ective borrowing rate was 
15.28%. Interest rates are �xed at the contract date. All leases are on a �xed repayment basis and no 
arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments.

All lease obligations are denominated in Taka.

The Company's obligations under �nance lease are secured by the lessor's charges over the leased assets.
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Taka in '000
As at 31 December

   2017 2016
15.1 Gratuity   
 Opening balance  73,059 71,493 

 Provision made during the year   1,430  9,908 
 Paid during the year   (11,658)  (8,342)
    (10,228) 1,566 
 Closing balance   62,831  73,059 
 This represents total liability of the Company on account of gratuity that would be payable if all eligible
 employees retire at the end of the year.

15.2 Pension fund 
 Net pension fund   
 De�ned bene�t obligation   365,381  368,895 
 Plan assets    460,645   455,472 
 Net funded status   (95,263)  (86,577)
    
 The actuarial valuation of pension fund was carried out at December 31, 2015. The Projected Unit Credit
 Method, using the following signi�cant �nancial assumptions has been used for the actuarial valuation:

   % %
 Discount rate  4.3 8
 Expected rate of increase in salaries  7 7
 Expected rate of return on plan assets  8 8

 Movement in the present value of de�ned bene�t obligation 
 Opening balance   368,895 364,995 
 Current service cost   17,622 16,320 
 Interest cost   15,862 29,200 
 Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations   -  -   
 Bene�ts paid   (36,999) (41,620)
 Present value of de�ned bene�t obligation    365,381 368,895   

 Movement in the fair value of plan assets   
 Opening balance   455,472 395,666 
 Expected return on plan assets   19,585 31,653 
 Actuarial gain/(loss)   (29,912)  -   
 Contribution by employer    52,499 69,773 
 Bene�ts paid   (36,999) (41,620)
 Fair value of plan assets    460,645 455,472 
     
 Net actuarial gain/ (loss)
 Actuarial gain/ (loss) on obligations   - -   
 Actuarial gain/ (loss) on fair value of plan assets   (29,912  -   
    (29,912)  -   
 Deferred tax on actuarial gain/ (loss)   (7,478)  -   
    (22,434)  -

 As per the last audited balance sheet of GlaxoSmithKline Bangladesh Limited Pension Fund as of 31 December, 
2017, the total fund stands at Tk. 460,395 (Tk. '000) (2016: Tk. 414,663) ( Tk.'000) represented by assets invested 
mainly in Treasury Bills.
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Taka in '000
As at 31 December

    2017 2016
16 Share capital (Ordinary shares)

16. Authorised  
  20,000,000   Shares   of  Tk  10  each 200,000 200,000

16.2 Issued,  subscribed  and  fully  paid - up
   Issued  for  cash  
  350  Shares  of  Tk  10   each  in  1974 4 4
  4,943,949  Shares  of  Tk  10  each  as  rights  issue  49,440  49,440
  4,944,299   49,444 49,444.00
   Issued  for  consideration  other  than  cash  
  3,787,650 Shares  of  Tk  10  each  in  1974 37,876 37,876
  3,314,500 Shares  of  Tk  10  each  as  bonus issue  33,145 33,145
  7,102,150  71,021 71,021
  12,046,449 120,465 120,465

16.3  Position of shares holding
 The composition of share holders at 31 December were:

16.4  Classi�cation of shareholders by holding:

        a. Set�rst Limited, UK 81.98 9,875,144 81.98 9,875,144 98,752.00 98,752 
        b.  Investment Corporation 
         of Bangladesh (ICB) & ICB Unit    
             and Mutual Funds 13.25 1,596,324 13.22 1,592,762 15,963.24 15,928
        c.  General public 2.04 2,46,004  1.27 153,435 2,460.04 1,534
        d.  Sadharan Bima Corporation  0.63 76,437 0.63 76,437 764.37 764
        e.  Other local  institutions 2.10 252,540 2.89 348,671 2,525.40 3,487

  100.00 12,046,449 100 12,046,449 120,465 120,465

% of 
Holdings

No. of
Shares

% of 
Holdings

2017 2016

20162017
No. of
Shares

Less than 500 shares 1,089 1117 0.62 0.62 
500 to 5,000 shares 77 80 1.01  1.01 
5,001 to 10,000 shares 13 20  1.19  1.19 
10,001 to 20,000 shares 6 1  0.12  0.12 
20,001 to 30,000 shares 2 3  0.62  0.62 
30,001 to 40,000 shares 3 2   0.59  0.59 
40,001 to 50,000 shares 1 1   0.38  0.38 
50,001 to 100,000 shares 2 2  1.43  1.43 
100,001 to 1,000,000 shares 2 2  3.38  3.38 
Over 1,000,000 shares 2 2 90.67  90.67 
 1,197 1230 100.00 100.00 

Total holdings% Number of holders
2017 2016 2017 2016
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Taka in '000
As at 31 December

  Notes 2017 2016
17 Reserves    
17.1 Revaluation reserve   
 Opening balance   59,479 59,479
 Adjustment made on account of disposal of revalued assets   -  -
 Closing balance 4.1  59,479 59,479

 The balance represents surplus  arising  from  the  revaluation  of  �xed  assets carried  out  in  1978.

17.2 Capital reserve   
 Opening balance   166 166
 Adjustment  for the year   - -
 Closing balance   166 166
 This is the balance  of  surplus   of  assets  over   liabilities   as  at  28 February  1974  after  issue  of  shares
 there against.

18 Retained earnings  2,445,240 2,400,693
 Retained earnings include capital gain, net of tax of Tk. 191,491 thousand arising out of disposal of
 Bogra, Chittagong and Dhaka properties. This is not remittable until the Bangladesh Bank's restriction
 thereon is waived.

19  Contingent liabilities 
     a. Guarantees issued by the Company's scheduled bank to
 third parties on counter - indemnities given by the Company
 against the bank's limit of Tk. 15 million.  25,362 8,052
 Less than 1 year                                                   24,779 
 1 to 5 years                                                            583  

 b. Excise duty on sale of certain quantity of Mycil powder e�ected after
 10 September 1981 which would be payable if the case presently
 pending with the hon'ble High Court Division of the Supreme
 Court of Bangladesh is  decided  against  the  Company.   873 873

 c. An ex-executive of the Company �led a case in the Court against the
 Company for compensation of Tk. 10.8 million as claimed by the plainti�
 due to termination of his services from the Company. The Company �led
 an appeal in the Appellate Division of Supreme Court of Bangladesh
 against the judgement passed by the High Court Division and such
 appeal is still pending before the honorable court.   10,800 10,800

 d. There were no other claims against the Company not
 acknowledged as debts.  - -
   37,035 19,725

16.5     No. of shares held by the members of the Company Executive Committee:

    2017 2016
Mr. Noor Mohammad Director, Human Resources   1  10 
Mr. Mahbubur Rahman Director, Clinical R&D and Medical A�airs  2 2

No. of shares
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20 Commitments
    2017 2016
 a. Capital expenditure
     Contracted  but  not  provided for in these accounts     12,572 277,661
     Authorised  but  not  contracted    215,250  62,539 
 b. L/C Outstanding   205,180   357,575 
   433,002  697,775 

21 Revenue 

   Quantity Taka in'000 Quantity Taka in'000
 a. Pharmaceuticals Local Market     
     Tablets  and  Capsules Million  754   583,154   675   589,886 
     Topicals Tonne  297   685,812   256   613,289 
     Vials  and  Drops Thousand  1,132   409,089   1,040   427,098 
     Oral  Liquids Kilolitre  221   150,256   163   113,515 
    Granules Tonne  5   15,843   5   13,866 
    Inhalers Thousand  698   255,452   680   278,034 
     2,099,606    2,035,688 
      
 Export     
 Tablet  Million  82   36,997   63   21,430 
 Granules Tonne  1   2,756   1   2,734 
     39,753    24,164 
     2,139,359    2,059,852 
 b. Consumer Healthcare      
      Powder Tonne  8,214   4,334,624   7,700   4,040,700 
      Oral  Thousand  3,001   322,576   2,052   183,463 
     4,657,200    4,224,163 
     6,796,559    6,284,015

 Items Unit 2017 2016
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Taka in '000
  Notes 2017 2016
22    Cost of sales 
 Cost of products manufactured:
 Raw and packing materials consumed  41 
 Opening inventories  345,328 390,444
 Purchased during the year   2,845,391  2,538,639 
   3,190,720  2,929,083 
 Closing inventories  (399,227) (345,328)
   2,791,493  2,583,755
 Manufacturing expenses:
 Salaries, wages and welfare  284,866  246,074 
 Retirement bene�t expense  8,977  13,245 
 Fuel and Utilities  48,019  45,323 
 Repairs and maintenance  95,586  56,517 
 Insurance  1,837  3,563 
 Depreciation and amortisation 4.2  90,128  86,534 
 Rents, Rates and Taxes  861  306 
 Travel and training  11,247  12,124 
 Entertainment  1,015  553 
 Motor running expenses  11,313  12,804 
 Information and communication expenses  6,549  3,620 
 Professional Fees and Consultancy fees  3,249   574 
 Advertisement  68  -   
 Conference and Seminars  28  371 
 O�ce expenses  13,112  15,391 
 Other Expenses  2,240  1,298 
 Stores and spares consumed 41  9,900  9,010 
    588,995  507,307 
   3,380,488  3,091,062 
 Opening inventory of work-in-process  74,887  62,479 
   3,455,375  3,153,541 
 Closing inventory of work-in-process   (117,663) (74,887)
   3,337,712  3,078,654 
 Opening inventory of �nished products  345,985   379,698 
 Cost of �nished products purchased 40  896,082  736,552 
 Finished products available   4,579,778  4,194,904 

 Closing inventory of �nished  products  39  (399,227) (345,985)
 Replacement, medical attention, and other issues  (19,499) (14,889)
   (418,726) (360,874)
   4,161,052   3,834,031
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24 Distribution expenses  
 Salaries, wages and welfare  12,165  10,170 
 Retirement bene�t expense  467  491 
 Repairs and maintenance  1,945  1,844 
 Insurance  100  350 
 Depreciation and amortisation 4.2 1,681  1,893 
 Rents, Rates and Taxes  14,271  11,130 
 Travel and training  375  238 
 Motor running expenses  296  92 
 Information and communication expenses  98  290 
 Professional Fees and Consultancy fees  6  126 
 O�ce Expenses  208  424 
 Other Expenses  450  10 
   32,064  27,057 

25  Administrative expenses
 Salaries, wages and welfare  273,308  193,381 
 Retirement bene�t expense   5,733   5,028 
 Fuel and Utilities   3,857   3,776 
 Repairs and maintenance   512   14,477 
 Insurance  2,177   4,276 
 Depreciation and amortisation   20,958   12,777 
 Rents, Rates and Taxes   41,490   41,051 
 Travel and training   13,955   13,168 
 Entertainment   560   408 
 Motor running expenses   7,476   5,702 
 Information and communication expenses   4,217   4,841 
 Directors' fee   200   200 
 Professional Fees and Consultancy fees   6,199   3,003 
 Advertisement   1,057   602 
 Conference and Seminars   3,654   881 
 O�ce expenses   5,055   4,219 
 Workers’ Pro�t Participation Fund   49,874   44,503 
 Professional Books   250   -   
 Other Expenses   5,583   1,830 
    446,116   354,122

23 Selling expenses  
 Salaries, wages and welfare  478,812   432,186 
 Retirement bene�t expense  20,494  19,524 
 Repairs and maintenance  3,144  2,595 
 Insurance   2,281  1,827 
 Depreciation and amortisation 4.2 18,400  21,624 
 Rents, Rates and Taxes  31   -   
 Travel and training  84,670   99,336 
 Entertainment   505  625 
 Motor running expenses  12,962  13,938 
 Information and communication expenses   9,803  4,764 
 Professional Fees and Consultancy fees   84  1,888 
 Advertisement and promotion   753,655  796,061 
 Conference and Seminars   26,360  12,723 
 O�ce expenses   1,908  4,210 
 Professional Books   977  1,045 
 Other Expenses   603  599 
 Promo Support   (116,076) (111,391)
    1,298,614  1,301,554 

Taka in '000
  Notes 2017 2016



28     Business segments information

Consumer healthcarePharmaceuticalsNote Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

 Gross revenue - net of trade
 discount & commission   2,411,052 2,321,557 5,462,936 4,942,060 7,873,988  7,263,617 
 VAT    (271,693) (261,705) (805,736) (717,896) (1,077,429)  (979,601)
 Revenue 21  2,139,359 2,059,852 4,657,200 4,224,164 6,796,559  6,284,015 
 Cost  of  sales  22  (1,732,960) (1,674,621) (2,428,093) (2,159,410) (4,161,053)  (3,834,031)
 Gross  pro�t   406,399  385,230  2,229,108  2,064,754  2,635,507  2,449,985 

 Assets and liabilities
 Segment assets (excludes cash
 and cash equivalents)   1,926,438  1,772,556  716,065  689,836  2,642,503  2,462,392 
 Segment liabilities
 (excludes  tax liabilities)   629,321  500,655 2,771,049 2,138,834 3,400,369  2,639,490

Taka in '000
  Notes 2017 2016
29 Auditors' remuneration
 Audit  fee   600  600
 Audit  of  provident, pension  and  workers'  pro�t  participation  
 & welfare funds  and  special  certi�cations   70  70
    670  670

The pharmaceutical business of the company is facing challenges from the operating environment. Despite these 
challenges, the Company has put in e�orts with the aim of delivering consistent gross margin. The business will 
continue to consider options to drive shareholder value.

26 Other income  
 Pro�t on disposal of  property, plant and  equipment  20,356  19,820 
 Scrap sales and other income   5,823  (264)
    26,178  19,555 

26.1 Scrap sales and other income include Forex gain/(loss)

27 Finance income and cost 
 Interest  income on:
 Term deposit and special notice deposit   63,489  60,235 
 Housing loan to employees   407  382 
    63,895  60,617 
 Interest expense on:  
 Bank overdraft   -   (81)
 Leasing   (1,187)  (1,785)
    (1,187)  (1,866)

 Net �nance income   62,709  58,751

Taka in '000
  Notes 2017 2016
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Taka in '000
  Notes 2017 2016
32 Income tax expense
 Current tax 10  247,456  206,352 
 Deferred tax 11  30,842   (5,347)
    278,297  201,005

30     Remuneration of Directors, Managers and O�cers
     30.1  The  details 

2017 2016

Directors Managers
& O�cers Total Directors Managers

& O�cers Total

 Remuneration 57,597  680,468  738,065  35,666  552,454 588,119
 Housing:
     Rent  7,263  107,979  115,243  5,180  89,335  94,515
     Utilities  943  7,563  8,506  1,102  10,463  11,565
  8,207  115,543  123,749  6,282    99,798  106,080 
 Contribution  to retirement bene�t scheme  812  35,559  36,371  1,071  32,515  33,585
 Leave  passage  657  14,792  15,450  626  11,403  12,029 
 Medical  275  18,161  18,436 53  24,085  24,138 
 Other   477  6,438  6,914   185  3,084  3,269
  68,024  870,961  938,985  59,315  583,519  767,221 
 Number  5  728  733  4  721  725

31 Number of employees engaged 
 The Company employed 967 (2016:940) permanent employees and a varying number of casual and temporary 

workers as required. All permanent employees receive total remuneration in excess of Tk 36,000 per annum.

32.1 Reconciliation of e�ective tax rate 

 Pro�t before Tax  %  947,601 %  845,558 
 Income tax using applicable tax rate  25.00% 236,900  25.00%  211,390 
 Factors a�ecting the tax charge for current year 
 Non-deductible expenses and others    20,970    20,858 
 Prior year adjustment    (10,414)   (25,896)
 Deferred tax (income)/Expense    30,842   (5,347)
 Total Income Tax Expense  29.37% 278,297 23.77%  201,005 

   2017 2016

i. Directors: The Managing Director and the expatriate Executive Director were provided with free furnished 
accomodation and a chau�eur driven full time vehicle. The other two (2016:two) Executive Directors were 
provided with a full time vehicle with a driver's costs and certain house furniture and equipment.

ii. Expatriate Managing Director joined in mid 2016, hence 2017 records full year remuneration payment. 
Additionally, in 2017 two expat directors' remuneration was paid during the transition period.

iii. Managers, in de�ned grades, are provided with full time car and certain house furniture and equipment.

30.2   The Company based on respective employment terms having speci�ed limits provides the following bene�ts:
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Name of the party Nature of transaction Nature of relationship
Transaction

value
Taka in '000

Transaction
value

Receivable/
(Payable)

Taka in '000
GlaxoSmithKline Services
Unlimited, UK
GlaxoSmithKline Biologicals
S.A, Belgium
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer
Healthcare, India
GlaxoSmithKline Inc, Canada
GlaxoSmithKline Pte Ltd.,
Singapore
GlaxoSmithKline
Export Ltd., UK
GlaxoSmithKline Trading
Services Ltd, UK
GlaxoSmithKLine LLC, USA
GlaxoSmithKline Research
& Development Limited, UK
SmithKline Beecham
Bangladesh (Pvt) Limited
Burroughs Wellcome &
Co. (Bangladesh) Ltd.

Inter Company Services/Fees,
Meeting, Training and Seminar
Import of �nished products, promotional
allowance & Service fee
Import of raw & �nished products

Inter Company Services/Fees and Others
Inter Company Meeting, Training
and Seminar
Import of raw & �nished products
and promotional allowance
Inter Company export sales

Inter Company Services/Fees
Inter Company Services/Fees,
Meeting, Training and Seminar
Inter Company Services

Purchase of �nished goods &
Inter Company Services 

GSK Group Company

GSK Group Company

GSK Group Company

GSK Group Company
GSK Group Company

GSK Group Company

GSK Group Company

GSK Group Company
GSK Group Company

GSK Group Company

GSK Group Company

 9,432

 320,057

 1,018,716

333
 72

 192,836 

 42,916 

6675
770

 - 

 165,055

 (2,998)

 24,303

 (230,540)

 -   
 -   

 (14,446)

 -   

6675
770

 (30,210)

 191 

34    Earnings per share
There is no dilutive e�ect on the basic earnings per share of the Company, which is based on:

Taka in '000

No. of shares

  2017  2016
 Pro�t for the year 669,304  644,554 

 Weighted average number of ordinary shares  12,046,449  12,046,449 

 Basic and diluted earnings per share (Taka) 55.56  53.51

35     Value of imports - at  C&F basis
    2017 2016
 Raw & packing materials  1,526,104 1,311,338
 Capital goods  53,106 88,741
 Stores & spares  10,357 7,378
   1,589,567  1,407,457

Taka in '000

Raw & packing materials, and stores & spares 41 %   %
 a.  Imports - Raw & packing materials  75  2,087,763  1,988,191 77
 b.  Indigenous    
           Raw & packing materials  25 693,830  595,564 23
           Stores & spares  0.35  9,900  9,010 0.35
   25  703,730 604,574 23
   100  2,791,493 2,592,765 100

36     Consumption 
  Note % 2017 2016 %

33.1 Transactions with related parties were carried out on commercial terms & conditions and at prices agreed
    based on intercompany prices.
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During the year, the Company carried out a number of transactions with related parties in the normal course of 
business and on an arms' length basis. The name of these related parties, nature of these transactions and their 
total value have been set out in accordance with the provisions of BAS-24: Related party disclosure.

33 Related Party Disclosures



37     Expenditure incurred in foreign currency
    2017 2016
 Foreign travel for the Company's business   11,864  16,503

39 Closing inventory of each class of goods produced or purchased (At cost)- Note-22

   Quantity Taka Quantity Taka
 a. Pharmaceuticals     
 Tablets and capsules Million  45   43,253   13   25,444 
 Topicals Tonne  43.34   78,999   5   22,150 
 Vials and drops Thousand 268.228  147,654   283   206,178 
 Oral liquids Kilolitre  0.07   46,808   8   1,076 
 Granules Tonne  1.06   2,828   0.33   877 
 Inhalers Thousand  49.40   31,828   96   45,328 
    351,370    301,052 
      
 b. Consumer Healthcare      
 Powder Tonne  180.38   25,297   76   21,267 
 Oral Thousand  535.00   22,560   134   23,666 
     47,856    44,933 
    399,227    345,985 

 Items Unit 2017 2016

38 Value of export business
 USD  321 165
 GBP 73 105

Foreign currency in '000s

41 Materials consumed 

   Quantity Taka Quantity Taka
 i) Pharmaceuticals     
 a. Paracetamol powder  109,756 Kg 46,097 80,630 Kg  33,865 
 b. Betamethasone valerate  320 Kg  54,013  242 Kg  40,752 
 c. Griseofulvin powder  5,904 Kg  30,596  4,597 Kg  23,824 
 d. Other items  individually below 10% of total consumption   Various 616,528  Various 547,081 
  Total  Pharmaceuticals   747,234   645,522 
      
 ii) Consumer Healthcare      
 a. Powder  5805 Tonne 1,426,022  5,272Tonne  1,383,637 
 b.  Other items individually below 10% of total consumption Various  618,237 Various 554,596 
 Total Consumer Healthcare    2,044,259  1,938,233 
    2,791,493  2,583,755 

 iii) Stores & spares   
 Items individually below 10% of total consumption  Various 9,900  Various 9,010 
   Total 2,801,393  Total 2,592,765 

 Items  2017 2016

40 Finished products purchased (At cost)-Note-22

   Quantity Taka Quantity Taka
 a.  Tablets & capsules Thousand  9,698   21,172   12,625   24,625 
 b.  Topicals Tonne  32   60,920   20   40,531 
 c.  Injections Thousand  477   410,696   627   415,845 
 d.  Inhalers Thousand  650   252,393   281   132,984 
 e. Oral Thousand  3,017   150,900   903   122,567 
     896,082    736,552 

 Items Unit 2017 2016
Taka in '000
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43 Financial risk management objectives and policies

 To mitigate the credit risk against trade receivables, the company has a system of speci�c credit line period
 to the distributor. This outstanding period and amount are regularly monitored. The Company endeavors to
 cover the credit risks on all other receivables, where possible, by restricting credit facility and stringent
 monitoring.

a) Pharmaceuticals
 Tablets and capsules  Million  1,320  874 702 
 Oral liquids  Kilolitre 615  207  149 
 Vials and drops  Thousand 1660  634  310 
 Topicals  Tonne 370  306  232 
 Granules  Tonne 50  9  7 
b. Consumer healthcare 
 Powder  Tonne  1,644  1,644  1,447 

 Licensed capacity is no longer enforced and the regulatory authority does not exercise any control over
 the production.

 Classes of goods
Unit

Actual  production

2017 2016

Annual
installed
capacity

42 Installed capacity and actual production

    2017 2016
 Loans to employees    1,895  1,411 
 Advances to employees   6,210   9,640 
 Advances to suppliers   18,546  31,565 
 Security  deposits     3,897  4,706 
 Trade receivables     808,220  764,953 
 Cash and cash equivalent   3,526,422  2,844,505 
     4,365,190  3,656,781 

 The aging of trade receivables at the reporting date is as follows:
 Trade receivables  
 Not past due    808,220  764,953 
 Past due 1-180 days    -  -   
 Past due more than 180 days   -  -   
     808,220  764,953

Taka in '000

The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk 
management framework. The Board is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk 
management policies. The Company has also formed 'Risk Management & Compliance Board (RMCB)'.

The objective of the RMCB is to review and assess the quality and e�ectiveness of the risk management 
system and ensure that the risk policies are e�ectively managed and incorporated in the management 
structure of the Company. It also oversees the risk management strategies to achieve current and accurate 
compliance with operational and legal requirements and identi�cation of foreseeable trends that could 
signi�cantly impact the Company’s overall business objectives.

43.1 Credit risk
Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter parties fail 
completely to perform as contracted. It mainly comprises trade receivables, advances to suppliers, trade 
deposits and bank balances. The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as 
follows:
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 Change in exchange rate   1% 1%
 E�ect on pro�t/loss before tax (Taka'000)   1,860  1,615

43.2 Liquidity risk  
 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its �nancial obligations as they fall due.
     
 The table below summarises the maturity pro�le of the Company's �nancial liabilities as at the reporting date.

Taka in '000
Less than

12 months 1 to 2 years 2 to 5 years
Carrying
amount

 Financial liabilities 2017    
 Finance lease 3,288 3,114  6,402
 Trade and other payables 3,471,318    3,471,318 

 Financial liabilities 2016  
 Finance lease  3,285  3,289   3,026  9,600 
 Trade and other payables 2,738,145    2,738,145

Taka in '000

  Foreign currency 2017 2016
 Trade and other receivables  USD  738  379 
  GBP  92  89 
 Cash and bank balances  USD  270  249 
  GBP  13  13 
 Trade and other payables  USD  3,383  2,632 
  GBP  7  140 

 By Maintaining su�cient cash, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed bank 
facilities, the company manages the liquidity risk.

43.3 Market risk
 Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash �ows of a �nancial instrument will �uctuate because of 

changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and other price risks. The objective of 
market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within an acceptable range.

43.3.1 Foreign currency risk 
 The risk that the fair value or future cash �ows of a �nancial instrument will �uctuate because of changes in 

foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates 
primarily to company's operating activities with the foreign suppliers.

 The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk in major currencies at their gross values is as follows:

 The Company did not experience any unusual pro�t or loss causing from foreign exchange �uctuation till 
date. The following is the demonstration of the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in exchange rate 
of all currencies applied to assets and liabilities as at reporting date represented in foreign currencies, with all 
other variables held constant, of the Company's pro�t/loss before tax.
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43.3.3 Other price risk 
 Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash �ows of a �nancial instrument will �uctuate because of 

changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk and currency risk). The Company is 
not exposed to any equity price risk, as the Company does not have any investment in equity shares. The 
Company also is not exposed to commodity price risk.

44  Comparatives   
 Previous year's �gures and account titles in the �nancial statements have been rearranged and reclassi�ed 

driven by change in ERP system as well as alignment to global chart of accounts of GSK, wherever necessary, 
for the purpose of comparison, without creating any impact on the pro�t and value of assets and liabilities as 
reported in the �nancial statements for the current year and ensuring compliance with accounting standards.

 45  Events after the reporting period   
 Since the reporting period, there have been no material changes a�ecting the �nancial position of the 

Company.

 At the reporting date, the average interest rate  of the Company's interest bearing �nancial instruments
 was as follows:

Financial assets    
Term deposit 2.25%-4.00% 2.15%-3.20%  3,034,986  1,837,332
Financial liabilities 
Finance lease 15.28% 15.28%  6,402  9,600

Taka in '000E�ective rates %
2017 2016 2017 2016

 The Company’s policy is to keep its short-term running �nances at the lowest level by e�ectively keeping the 
positive bank balances. Further, the Company also minimizes the interest rate risk by investing in �xed rate 
investments like term deposit receipts.

43.3.2 Interest rate risk  
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash �ows of a �nancial instrument will �uctuate 

because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest 
rate relates primarily to the Company's short-term deposits and running �nances.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 45th Annual General Meeting of GlaxoSmithKline Bangladesh Limited will be held 
at Radisson Blu Chittagong Bay View, RDCH, SS Khaled Road Lalkhan Bazar, Chittagong on Thursday, 19th April 
2018 at 11:00 A.M. to transact the following business.

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st December 2017 
together with the Directors’ Report and the Auditors’ Report thereon.

2. To declare dividend for the year ended 31st December 2017.

3. To elect Directors of the Company in the vacancies caused under Article 85 and 89 of the Articles of Association.

4. To appoint Auditors for the year 2018 and to �x their remuneration.

5. To approve the appointment of Independent Director as per Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission’s 
Noti�cation. 

 By order of the Board

Dhaka, 27th February 2018

Notes: 
1. Members whose name appeared in the Members/Depository Register as on “Record Date” i.e. 21st March 2018 

are eligible to attend and vote in the Annual General Meeting (AGM) and to receive the dividend as declared in 
the AGM.

2. Members entitled to attend and vote at the AGM may appoint a Proxy to attend in his/her stead. The Proxy Form 
must be a�xed with revenue stamp of TK. 20 and deposited at the Company’s Registered O�ce not less than 48 
hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting.

3. Members are requested to provide their 12 digits e-TIN Certi�cate to their DP (for BOID number holders) and 
share department of the company (for Folio number holders) before the ‘Record Date’ with a view to update 
their records, failing which, income tax at source will be deducted from cash dividend @15% instead of @10% 
(for individual) as per income tax rules in force.

4. DP/Stock Brokers are requested to send the list of Margin Account Holders, if any, within 1st April 2018 to the 
company, otherwise, the dividend will be paid to Member’s bank account whose names appeared on the 
‘Record Date’. 

5. In compliance with the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission’s Circular No. 
SEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/154 dated 24th October, 2013, no gift/food  shall be distributed at the time of the 
AGM.

….…………….…….....……
S.O.M. Rashedul Quayum

Company Secretary



Contact Details

Corporate O�ce
House: 2A, Road: 138
Gulshan:1, Dhaka1212
Phone- PABX: 880-2-9858870-75
Fax: 880-2-8826628,
Website: www.gsk.com.bd
e-mail: gsk.bangladesh-info@gsk.com

Chittagong
1 No. Dewanzee Pukur Lane
Machua Jharna,
Nawab Siraj-Ud-Dowla Road,
Chittagong
Phone; (031)615883,621596

Maijdee
Red Crescent Bhaban
Maijdee Court, Noakhali
P.O. Box-Maijdee-3800
Phone; (0321)62988

Comilla
204, Shaheed Shamsul Hague Sarak
P.O. Box:99, Comilla-3500
Phone: (081)69132

Sylhet
3, Paira (2nd �oor)
Darga Moholla
Sylhet-3100
Phone: (0821)720899

Jessore
80, Ghope Central Road
New town Housing Estate
P.O. Box-10
Jessore-7400
Phone: (0421)68509

Bogra
Dr. Ishaq Lane
528, Sutrapur, Bogra
Phone: (051)60060, 64746

Dhaka
191/A (3rd Floor), Tejgaon I/A
Gulshan Link Road, Dhaka-1208
Mobile: 01922 928 952

Mymensingh
6, Mritunjoy School Road
PO. Box 31, Mymensingh 2200
Phone: (091)67577

Barisal
N. Hossain Complex
Police Line Road
P. 0. Box-38
Barisal-8200
Phone: (0431)2173351

Rangpur
Shajeda Mahal
Civil Station Road
P.O. Box-05, Rangpur 5400
Phone: (0521)62757

Rajshahi
2, Kazi Hata, Greater Road
P.O. Box-04
Rajshahi-6000
Phone:(0721)770948

Khulna
252/3, Sher-E-Bangla Road
Khulna- 9000
Phone:(041)2834037

Operated by Zuellig Pharma Bangladesh Ltd.

Factory
Fouzderhat Industrial Area
North Kattali
P.O. Box-53, Chittagong 4217
Phone: 880-31-752071-78
FAX: 880-31-751051
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Proxy form

GlaxoSmithKline Bangladesh Limited
Registered O�ce: Fouzderhat Industrial Area

North Kattali, Chittagong
Corporate O�ce: House: 2A, Road: 138

Gulshan:1, Dhaka1212

PROXY FORM

I/ We, the undersigned being a member of named Company hereby appoint
Mr . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
another member of the Company, whom failing Mr . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
of   . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
another member of the Company, as my proxy to vote and act for me, and on my behalf, at the 45th Annual 
General Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday the 19th April, 2018 and at any adjournment thereof.

Dated this . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2018

Note:
A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint a proxy to attend and vote in 
his/her stead. The proxy form, duly stamped, must be deposited at the Corporate O�ce of the company not later 
than 48 hours before the time appointed for the meeting.

(Signature of the Proxy)
Dated:. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

(Signature of the Shareholders)
Registered Folio No: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Dated: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

ATTENDANCE SLIP

I do hereby record my attendance at the 45th Annual General Meeting of GlaxoSmithKline Bangladesh Limited 
being held at Radisson Blu Chittagong Bay View, Chittagong on Thursday 19th April 2018 at 11:00 a.m.

Full name of the Shareholder . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
(in block letter)

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Signature

Full name of the Proxy. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
(in block letter)

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Signature

Shareholder's Folio / BO No . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
(Please complete this and deposit at the registration counter on the day of the AGM)

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
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Registered O�ce & Factory:
Fouzderhat Industrial Area
North Kattali
P.O. Box-53, Chittagong 4217
Phone: 880-31-752071-78
FAX: 880-31-751051

Corporate O�ce:
House 2A, Road 138, Gulshan 1
Dhaka 1212, Bangladesh
PABX: 9858870, Fax: 8826628
Email: gsk.bangladesh-info@gsk.com

www.gsk.com.bd

GlaxoSmithKline
Bangladesh Limited
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